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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

EFTEHREREEBNWE DM

Review of Results

We are pleased to present the outstanding results of the Group for the
period ended 31 December 2017 (the “Period”). The Group recorded
a positive revenue of approximately HK$228.1 million as compared
to the negative revenue of approximately HK$52.1 million last year.
It was mainly attributable to the one-off dividend income from listed
equity securities of approximately HK$157.7 million in the financial
investments and services segment and interest income from money
lending business of approximately HK$33.0 million. The net profit for
the Period was approximately HK$368.9 million as compared to the
net loss of approximately HK$156.4 million for the last year. Basic
earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent for the Period was approximately HK$0.03 (31 March 2017:
basic loss per share of approximately HK$0.02). The Group’s net
profit for the Period was mainly attributable to the unrealized fair
value gains on equity investments of approximately HK$121.6
million and the fair value gain of approximately HK$91.0 million in
investment properties. The unrealized fair value gain on available-
for-sale equity investments of approximately HK$581.3 million was
taken to revaluation reserve account and resulted in an increase in
the Group’s other comprehensive income and total net assets.

Business Review

The year of 2017 marked the 20th anniversary of Hong Kong's return
to our Motherland. Over the past 20 years, Hong Kong has increasing
the economic integration with the Mainland China. This has brought,
and will continue to bring, heightened opportunities to Hong Kong.
With the firm US economy, low interest rates and the stable
economic growth of Mainland China, Hong Kong’s economy grew at
a fast pace throughout the year. Moreover, external demand stayed
vibrant, supported by the broadly benign global economic conditions.
Domestic demand stayed firm and the labour market remained in a
state of full employment.

Against the backdrop of the overall economic recovery, the Hong
Kong stock market has a satisfactory recovery with the Heng Seng
index up approximately 24%, outperforming the other major markets
in the world. The Stock Connects also provided a catalyst in shoring
up the share price and recorded a new high in the trading volume.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Brokerage and Commission

The brokerage and commission business of the Group comprise
securities and futures brokerage, margin financing and placements of
bonds. The business are carried on through Instant Achieve Limited
(the “1AL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, which in turn
owned 100% equity interest in Central Wealth Securities Investment
Limited (the “CWSI”) and Central Wealth Futures Limited (the
“CWEF”). CWSI and CWF are incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability and are carrying on business in type 1 (dealing in securities),
type 2 (dealing in futures contracts), type 4 (advising on securities)
and type 5 (advising on futures contracts) regulated activities under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The Group completed the
acquisition of 100% equity interest in IAL by step acquisitions in
September 2017.

During the Period, the commission income from securities and
futures dealing was approximately HK$12.6 million and the share of
profit of associates by the Group was approximately HK$6.5 million.
During the Period, the interest income from the securities margin was
approximately HK$7.6 million. The Group will maintain its prudent
credit policy and risk management approach with a view to achieve
a sustainable business environment. The placing business was in the
start-up stage and recorded an commission income from placing of
approximately HK$18.7 million. The Group will continue to
strengthen our services in the coming year and broaden our service
range with an aim to provide one stop service to our customers.

Property Investments

The Group principally focuses on the luxury property investments in
Hong Kong market and currently holds two luxury properties in Hong
Kong, located at No. 1 Lincoln Road, Kowloon Tong in Hong Kong
(“No. 1 Lincoln Road Property”) and No. 2 Lincoln Road, Kowloon
Tong in Hong Kong (“No. 2 Lincoln Road Property”). The Group has
completed the acquisition of No. 2 Lincoln Road Property in May
2017. The Group acquired No. 1 Lincoln Road Property in September
2017. Detailed information was set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 7 September 2017. The Group has entered into
a conditional sale and purchase agreement dated 29 December 2017
to dispose of No. 1 Lincoln Road Property to FWF for a consideration
shares of approximately HK$260 million. For details, please refer to
the announcement dated 29 December 2017. During the Period, the
rental income of No.2 Lincoln Road Property was HK$3.6 million.
The Group will continue to monitor its property portfolio with an aim
to generate the stable rental income and the capital appreciation.
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
TRBERERE WL

Financial Investments and Services

The financial investments and services of the Group comprise
financial investments and trading, debt and equity investments and
money lending business.

During the Period, the Hang Seng Index was on the upwards trend
with fluctuations between 24,111 points to 29,919 points. Due to the
satisfactory performance of global equity market, in particular the
U.S. stock market, the launch of the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock
Connect, continuous influx of China investment funds was attracted
to the Hong Kong stock market. The Group recorded a realized losses
on disposal of equity investments at fair value through profit of loss of
approximately HK$5.2 million, a realized gain on disposal of
available-for-sale equity investments of approximately HK$20.6
million, an unrealized fair value gain on equity investments at fair
value through profit of loss of approximately HK$121.6 million, an
unrealized fair value gain on available-for-sale equity investments of
approximately HK$581.3 million and one-off dividend income from
investment in listed equity securities of approximately HK$157.7
million. Please refer to the below section “Significant Investments”
for details.

During the Period, the interest income from the money lending
services was approximately HK$33.0 million. The net balance of loan
book recorded a growth of approximately HK$296.1 million to
approximately HK$476.8 million as compared to approximately
HK$180.7 million for the financial year ended 31 March 2017. The
money lending services charged annual interest rates at a range from
5% to 12% (31 March 2017: range from 5% to 10%). Despite the
rapid growth achieved by the money lending business during the
Period, the Group will maintain its prudent credit policy and risk
management approach with a view to achieve a sustainable business
environment.

Electronic and Accessory Products

The electronic and accessory products business continued to slow
down amid the sluggish export trade performance and the intense
competition in the consumer electronic market. During the Period,
there was no revenue generated, compared to that of approximately
HK$2.5 million for the last year. The Group will cease the operation
of the electronic and accessory products business in the future.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Prospects

Looking forward, the year of 2018 will be a year of opportunities and
challenges. The Group is cautiously optimistic about the global
economic growth, in particular, the U.S. and the Mainland China for
the year to come. With the implementation of the belt and road
initiative, the development of Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater
Bay Area and the launch of the Shanghai-HK Stock Connect,
Shenzhen-HK Stock Connect and the HK-China Bond in July 2017, it
is expected that Hong Kong will benefit from the increasing demand
for the financial investments and business services. Further, Hong
Kong will have completed several major infrastructure projects like
the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge and the Express Railway Link
in the coming years. The Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge, the
world’s longest combined sub-sea tunnel and bridge, will accelerate
Hong Kong’s economic integration with the western Pearl River Delta
region. The Hong Kong section of the Express Rail Link which will
slash journey time between Guangzhou and Hong Kong, on a non-
stop basis. It will connect Hong Kong to our country’s national rail
network and its 22,000km of high-speed track.

Despite the above, we shall not overlook the downside risks due to
the expectation of US interest hike and the threat of geopolitical
tension of North Korea which continue to cloud the global economic
recovery. In light of these macroeconomic challenges, the Group will
continue to be on the alert to pursue its prudent investment strategy
in developing its existing and new businesses.

The Group plans to commence its asset management business in
2018 to provide investment management services for customers’
assets. The Group will provide different asset management services in
accordance with the methods, conditions, requirements and
limitations as set forth in asset management contracts. Riding on the
sound investors base of its securities brokerage business and the
clients resources accumulated in its investment banking business, the
Group intends to focus on issuing and managing various kinds of
funds, offering institutional and individual clients comprehensive
asset management services.

Besides, the Group is also aware of the importance of the financial
technology (the “FinTech”) and will deploy more resources in the
development of FinTech in the future. FinTech is driving innovation
in financial services globally and changing the nature of commerce
and end-user expectations for payments and financial services. The
integration of finance and technology in modern-day style has
evolved to become a vibrant industry. While FinTech may carry
different meanings, it is now commonly considered to cover areas
such as payments, big data analytics, applications, platforms and
cybersecurity. With the support from the Fintech Facilitation Office of
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority and other government regulatory
bodies and their determinations to promote Hong Kong as a FinTech
hub in Asia, the Group is prudently optimistic in the sustainable
development of the FinTech industry and FinTech ecosystem in Hong
Kong. The Group will continue to study the benefits and risks brought
by it and the updates in the relevant regulatory requirement. At the
same time, the Group will continue to look for possible FinTech
investment opportunities and create the greatest value and return to
the shareholders.

TEHmE N ERE WA

Bl 5=
REMK  —T— \FHAEBERIEL TN —
FoAREERFERIR(LEREBERTEARM)

MEEIERIBFHFREBRE - BE—H —BHX
REWMR BBERXNERRERNERSE  XEBR

PEEERR T —tFLAME  EHESS
STENRERISEMEERBER EF - i &
BERARBFETXRSE TEBEEZEE - HloE
KR AB N EFRERRER - BUHRABIEAT
AESEBRSENBREAASLQE BEHE LR
HKZAmISENREERS - ERSm RS
BB B GEE BN BT B IREER (T e s
) o BB E A EEBRERAE K2R 22,000
NEZ =R -

BEL - ENFEHIKE NS R X B LR IR
RERTE 2REEERDAESESY - B
TREBHE LARAERMHRZ TTRR ° SR AR
ESEHRRERE - AEEBEERSED -
RBERRALAEBHRGEERERE

AEEHEN T \FRAEEETIEXY
REFZFEENREEEBRYG - AEEERIEE
EERAHMETRA  RF - RERRBHRMEA
REEEERE BHEEFLLEBHEAKRE
EEMRFERTEHRENETFER  A5H
BMEPRBETREETARUNES  MHEER
BRI PR F2EEEEER

AN AEEIVEES S RA R (S RB )8
EEN BREEMEZERERSAMR -2
BRI 2 IRAIF 2 BR  WAENR R
BMREHHETERREARRAL - B pH
MBS SEREDNITE - HERAS BB
AREEESTRER  WREBEENR  ABE
o EBARR  FAaRBRLE2FRE - B
FETRMEERTRBMSRERAEREMBF
EERBNOXE  MEEEFEEXNSTMEE
B R LRPRL - AEEHFESBMEHRITRN
ARFEERESBMRITEERBRFRLEDE
JE o ANSR B AL B BT I EL AT A SR N 4 Be S LB DA
FREERENRINEE - HURE - N&EH
BEESRERSRHMRNRERS  LAKRRK
BlERAEERER

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F3%R 7



Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis

RS RERETRRAN

Financial Review

The Group for the Period recorded positive revenue of approximately
HK$228.1 million as compared to the negative revenue of
approximately HK$52.1 million last year. The Group’s revenue
principally comprised the one-off dividend income from investment
in listed equity securities of approximately HK$157.7 million, interest
income from money lending business of approximately HK$33.0
million, commission income from placing of approximately HK$18.7
million, the commission income from securities and futures dealing
of approximately HK$12.6 million, interest income from securities
margin of approximately HK$7.6 million, a realized loss on the
disposal of equity investment of approximately HK$5.2 million and
property rental income of HK$3.6 million.

The Group’s net profit for the Period was mainly attributable to the
unrealized fair value gain on equity investments of approximately
HK$121.6 million and the fair value gain of approximately HK$91.0
million in investment in properties. The Group recorded total
comprehensive income of approximately HK$950.1 million for the
Period compared to the total comprehensive income of
approximately HK$288.9 million for the last year.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s net asset value was
approximately HK$2,723.9 million compared to the net asset value
of approximately HK$1,315.6 million as at 31 March 2017. The
consolidated net asset value per share of the Group as at 31
December 2017 was approximately HK$0.21 (31 March 2017:
HK$0.147). The Group’s total assets and total liabilities were
approximately HK$4,228.6 million (31 March 2017: HK$1,424.5
million) and approximately HK$1,504.7 million (31 March 2017:
HK$108.9 million).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the Period, the Group generally financed its operation with
internally generated cash flow, overdrafts, bank and other borrowings
and other fund raising activities. The Group’s cash and bank balances
as at 31 December 2017 were approximately HK$123.4 million (31
March 2017: HK$4.0 million).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had bank overdrafts of
approximately HK$59.5 million (31 March 2017: Nil), interest-
bearing bank borrowings of approximately HK$331.8 million (31
March 2017: Nil), interest-bearing other borrowings of approximately
HK$525.9 million (31 March 2017: Nil), shareholder loan of HK$122
million (31 March 2017: Nil) and non-current notes payable of
approximately HK$86.6 million (31 March 2017: HK$86.6 million).
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2017 the Group’s current ratio was approximately
1.65 times (31 March 2017: 12.2 times) based on current assets of
approximately HK$2,072.5 million (31 March 2017: HK$271.5
million) and current liabilities of approximately HK$1,254.0 million
(31 March 2017: HK$22.3 million).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has no capital commitment (31
March 2017: HK$0.9 million). The Group also had no other
contingent liabilities (31 March 2017: Nil).

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s gearing ratio was
approximately 41.33 % (31 March 2017: 6.58%). The significant
increase in gearing ratio was mainly due to the drawdown of
additional borrowings of approximately HK$1,039.2 million for the
Period. The additional borrowings was used for the acquisition of
property, expansion of money lending business, investment in
securities and development of brokerage and commission business.
Gearing ratio equals total borrowings divided by net asset value as at
the end of the year. The total borrowings of approximately
HK$1,125.8 million includes shareholder loan, bank and other
borrowings, bank overdraft and notes payable.

The Group’s bank balance and borrowings are mainly denominated
in Hong Kong and United States dollars. Most of the Group’s revenue
are made in Hong Kong and United States dollars. Therefore, the
exchange risks that the Group is exposed to are insignificant.

In May 2017, the Company placed a total of 1,300,040,000 shares at
HK$0.155 per placing share representing 14.50% of its total issued
capital at that time. The net proceeds of approximately HK$198.5
million was raised from the placing. Detailed information was set out
in the Company’s announcements dated 6 April 2017 and 8 May
2017 respectively.

On 27 July 2017, the Company and FWF entered into the share swap
agreement under which the Company shall subscribe for
470,000,000 FWF shares at HK$0.11 per share for a total
consideration of HK$51.7 million and FWF shall subscribe for
470,000,000 Company’s shares at HK$0.11 per share for a total
consideration of HK$51.7 million. On completion, the total
consideration of the Company and FWF will be fully set off against
each other. Detailed information was set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 27 July 2017, 31 July 2017 and 7 August 2017
respectively.
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B - NAE R FWF 2 8RB ERBEIRH -
HBEHRARABHSAE T —+F+ A
—++tH ZZE—+tFtA=+—RHAKR=-ZT—+t
FNALHZRE -
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
TRBERERE WL

Significant Investments

As at 31 December 2017, the Group maintained a portfolio of equity
investments (including available-for-sale equity investments and
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss) with total
carrying amount of approximately HK$2,271.1 million (31 March
2017: HK$1,170.9 million). The details of the portfolio of equity
investments as at 31 December 2017 and 31 March 2017 are
respectively set out as follows:

31 December 2017

BEAKRE

RIE—+F+-_A=+—8 AEEHAEE
WIEH A2,271,100,0008 T( ZE—+tF = A
=+—H :1,170,900,000/& 7T ) Z I A& E4H A
(BREAHREE ZRAKRE RBBIBRIEATFED
RIZBAKE) R_T—+FF+-_A=Z+—HBRK
T tFZAZ T+ BHHBRAREEAFED
BIEFN AT -

—EF—t&+=A=+—H

% of Unrealized Fair value
shareholding gain/(loss) of the
in the listed for the investment
securities period from in listed
held by the 1 April securities
Group as at 2017 to as at
31 December 31 December 31 December
Stock Code Name of Securities 2017 2017 2017
e
R-ZE—tF MA—= S
+t=A=+—H —E—tF —E—+tE
r&EEHRE +=A=t—-RA +=ZA=+-H
tmEHz ZREBBR LiES
RIRHE RTHEE REBFDL Wi, (&) REZATE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET
Available-for-sale equity investments
AHEHERTRE
572 Future World Financial Holdings Limited 8.48% 46,015 249,059
AR RIZERAR LR
1004 China Smarter Energy Group Holdings Limited 0.79% 15,284 74,170
TEREZEREEERERAT
1141 CMBC Capital Holdings Limited 5.68% 519,987 1,377,966
RIBERZERBR LA
1370 Aowei Holding Limited (formerly known as 0.31% (800) 9,500
Hengshi Mining Investments Limited)
BEZERERAF (FIEEERFREGRAR)
Total 580,486 1,710,695
CEl
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China Soft Power Technology Holdings Limited FEIEE QR EBEHRA A



Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
TRBEREEEN WL

% of Unrealized Fair value
shareholding gain/(loss) of the
in the listed for the investment
securities period from in listed
held by the 1 April securities
Group as at 2017 to as at
31 December 31 December 31 December
Stock Code Name of Securities 2017 2017 2017
—E—tF
R-B—tHF A—Z »
+t=A=+—-~H - —2—tF
r&EEfE +ZA=t—-B +ZA=+-H
Nl 22 ZARBE LiES
R RTHEEH REBDL Wi (E1R) REZAVE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TET
Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss
ERBEREAFEIRZBREARE
1141 CMBC Capital Holdings Limited 2.28% 120,485 552,361
RIBERZERERAA
388 Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited 0.00% 1,138 8,007
EER S REETAR AT
Total 121,623 560,368
A&t
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
TRBERERE WL

31 March 2017

—E-tH=RA=+-—H

% of Fair value
shareholding of the
in the listed Unrealized investment
securities gain/(loss) in listed
held by the for the year securities
Group as at ended as at
31 March 31 March 31 March
Stock Code Name of Securities 2017 2017 2017
R-ZB—tH #HE-E-—tF i
=A=t+-H =ZA=+-H =
RERE A IEFEZ =A=t—H
Ewm@EHz REH L
BRERE HHEW REBDE Wi (EE) REZDFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TATT TR
Available-for-sale equity investments
AHEERSIRE
572 Future World Financial Holdings Limited 4.84% 87,263 185,170
(formerly known as Central Wealth
Financial Group Limited)
ARERSRIZERAR QT
(AP EEREEERAR)
1004 China Smarter Energy Group Holdings Limited 0.93% 6,966 67,923
FEIEZREREEERAR AR
1141 CMBC Capital Holdings Limited 14.43% 350,515 857,979
(formerly known as Skyway Securities
Group Limited)
RIBEARZEBRER AT
(A RIEE A EEERAR])
1370 Aowei Holdings Limited (formerly known as 0.31% (3,947) 10,300
Hengshi Mining Investments Limited)
BEZERBR AR
(AIEEERXREERATF])
Total 440,797 1,121,372
At
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis
TRBEREEEN WL

% of Fair value
shareholding of the
in the listed Unrealized investment
securities gain/(loss) in listed
held by the for the year securities
Group as at ended as at
31 March 31 March 31 March
Stock Code Name of Securities 2017 2017 2017
R-ZB—tHF BEZF—+HF i
=ZA=t+—H =Z=A=t+—H —E—+tF
KBTI LFEEZ =A=+-—H
twmEE2 REHR EmES
RS REESE REB DL e (EER) REZATE
HK$’000 HK$’000
TAET TET
Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss
EBESRAFEIRZRERE
1141 CMBC Capital Holdings Limited 0.83% 20,250 49,500
(formerly known as Skyway Securities
Group Limited)
RIRERIZERARAE]
(AITEXIEZEHEEFRAA)
Total 20,250 49,500
At
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
TRBERERE WL

Details of Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had charges on assets in the
form of certain Hong Kong listed securities collectively held by two
wholly-owned subsidiaries charged to independent third party to
secure a US$30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$234,000,000) term loan facility (31 March 2017: Nil).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had pledged certain listed
equity investments of approximately HK$1,925,744,000 (31 March
2017: Nil) to secure the other loan.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had pledged its investment
properties with a carrying amount of approximately HK$830,000,000
to secure the bank borrowing (31 March 2017: Nil).

Material Acquisitions

(@ Acquisition of No. 2 Lincoln Road Property
On 28 November 2016, the Group, through a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, conditionally agreed to acquire
from a wholly-owned subsidiary of CMBC Capital Holdings
Limited, the sale shares and sale loan of a target company for a
consideration of HK$227.0 million. The sole asset of the target
company is its beneficial interest in the entire issued share
capital of a subsidiary which in turn holds No. 2 Lincoln Road
Property. The acquisition was completed on 9 May 2017.
Details of the acquisition were set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 28 November 2016, 28 February 2017, 8
March 2017 and 9 May 2017 and the circular of the Company
dated 31 March 2017.

(b) Share Swap between the Company and Future World

Financial Holdings Limited (the “FWF”)

On 27 July 2017, the Company and FWF entered into a share
swap agreement. The Company has subscribed for 470,000,000
FWEF subscription shares under the FWF general mandate and
FWF has subscribed for 470,000,000 subscription shares of the
Company under the Company’s general mandate. The
completion of the share swap has taken place on 7 August
2017. Details of the share swap were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 27 July 2017, 31 July
2017 and 7 August 2017.

EERBFE
RZE—+F+-_A=+—H0 AEBEURBEL
F-FEAEMEAEENBRARERIZEE AT
ERLTESFZEAFTEEERT - EREH
B 3@ & 30,000,000 3 7T (FHE 72 47 234,000,000
BLN(ZE—+F=A=+—H &) -

R-Z—+F+-A=+—H AEEDEHFSE
T E R AR E 491,925,744,0007%8 T ( Z B —+
FZAZ+—H  E)NEREMER -

R-T—+F+-A=+—H AEEZEFE
{47 830,000,000 7T 2 1 & W) 2 LAEARIRIT1E
B(ZZ2—+F=ZA=+—H:8)-

B RS

@ WEMEE2HREME
RZBE—RE+—AZ+N\B x&EE(E
BARAEZEMBAR) BRKHERERRIR
BAREBRERARZZENBARREBEZ
RElzHEROLEBEER REA
227,000,000/87C - BEIRRAIZE—BE AR
ER—HNBARZIMEBITRA 2 Bl
w EMBARRIBEMSE2RME-F
BUEER_E—tFRANATEK - EH
WEZHFBIRARTHPA-ZE—RF
+—A-+N\H - ZZE—+F-_A=-1+N
H —E—+F=ANBRFT—+tFHA
NBZRAEUARARGBHA-—T—tF=
A=+—HBZ#@K& -

b)) ALAFHEKRRHUHASHERERAA
(TFWF]) TR
RZZT—+tFEA-++H  AQFEHEFWF
IS R R o AN A EIREE FWF — R IR HETR
N 2 470,000,000 i% FWF R B& R 17 » T FWF
RIER RS N 2 5] — AR #E TR T~ 470,000,000 A%
RARRIERD - MR = —EF)\A L
BYEETK - BERR ZFBENEARFA
HE-_ZT—+F+A-_t++H —ZE—+F
tA=+—AER=E—+tFNAEHZAE -
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(c)

(d

Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Acquisition of IAL

On 3 April 2017, the Company entered into an agreement with
FWEF for the transfer of shares equivalent to 34% equity interest
of IAL for a total consideration of HK$7 million. IAL directly
holds the entire issued share capital of CWSI, a licensed
corporation carrying on business in type 1 (dealing in securities)
and type 4 (advising on securities) regulated activities under the
SFO; and the entire issued share capital of CWF, a licensed
corporation carrying on business in type 2 (dealing in futures
contracts) and type 5 (advising on futures contracts) regulated
activities under the SFO. The acquisition was completed on 7
April 2017.

On 1 September 2017, the Company entered into an agreement
with Mr. Siu Gee Tai for the transfer of shares equivalent to
66% equity interest of IAL for a total consideration of HK$16
million, which would be settled by way of allotment and issue
of consideration shares by the Company to Mr. Siu Gee Tai (or
such designated party as Mr. Siu Gee Tai may direct) at
approximately HK$0.108 per consideration share of the
Company upon completion. The acquisition was completed on
8 September 2017.

On 1 September 2017, the Company conditionally agreed to
acquire from Globally Finance Limited (“GFL”) a loan due and
owing to GFL by IAL pursuant to a loan agreement, which is in
the sum of HK$90.0 million, interest-free and repayable on 30
September 2020 for a consideration of HK$90.0 million, which
will be settled by way of allotment and issue of consideration
shares by the Company to GFL (or such designated party as
GFL may direct) at approximately HK$0.108 per consideration
share of the Company upon completion. The acquisition of the
loan was completed on 8 September 2017.

Acquisition of No. 1 Lincoln Road Property

On 7 September 2017, the Group entered into an agreement
with Dragon Huge Development Limited for the transfer of
shares equivalent to 100% equity interest of Goodview Assets
Limited for a total consideration of HK$150.0 million. The sole
asset of the target company is No. 1 Lincoln Road Property. The
acquisition was completed on 13 September 2017. Details of
the acquisition were set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 7 and 13 September 2017 respectively.

(c)

(d)

TEHmE N ERE WA

W B B 52

MNZB—+EMA=0  KNAFHEFWFgtEE
BIEE RBNE 34% I 2 IRIDFT LI - 48
KB A7,000,00087C - BZEEEFE R E
BEHEEHEBITRA  PEBLHINEES
MEEROETEI1R(FARARS) RE4E
(REHRBEER)ZRELY  REERES
PERERSIHCHITRA > EHEAHRE
BELEENETE2B(HEAHRS)
MESHE(RBEAOREZER)XHRER
o BAKEDN - E—+EFHA+HATK -

R-ZT—tFNLA—R RARREEEE
FABDIZ 66% AR A 2 AR5 BB 2 S EFT L 1
&% 8RB 7516,000,00087C 5B BAEAN
N RN TR B IR TR AR BB 490.108
BB R (B ELETRIETR
ZHEEAL)RERETRERDZHAE
o BRAWEERN-_ZE—+F A N\BFK -

RZE—+tFNA—HB ARAIBEHERE
Mt AR AR AR ([GFLL) Y RER %
— M ERBHEE RS RCGLZ B X
90,000,00087C * BEAER T ERAERZ
T-_ZETFAA=Zt+HEE REBA
90,000,000 7T » # LA AR BIR SE K B 1%
FBRARRRERMLH0.108 F T A GFL (3%
GFLATREIE R B E A L) BLEE RBITHRE
Bz AEMN WEEFRER = —CF
NANBREK °

WIS E 1R

RZFBE—tFNALH AEEEELEER
B IR A At 48 5 48 B 7 Goodview Assets
Limited & 3F Be 8 < I D BT L ek - BB
#%150,000,000/87C - BERERARIZE—BE
AMEBIRYE - BRAKER_Z—tF
NA+=B5%EK - BEAKE 2 FBEHRER
AR NAZE—+tFNAEAKT=AH

ZRE e
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
TRBERERE WL

Material Disposal

Proposed Disposal of No. 1 Lincoln Road Property

On 29 December 2017, the Group entered into a conditional sale
and purchase agreement to dispose of its entire interest in Goodview
Assets Limited, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
to FWF for a cash consideration of HK$260 million. The sole asset of
the disposal company is a property located at No. 1, Lincoln Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. This disposal was not yet completed. Details
of the proposed disposal were set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 29 December 2017, 22 January 2018, 12 February
2018, 12 March 2018 and 16 March 2018, and the circular of the
Company dated 21 March 2018.

Events after the Reporting Period

On 11 January 2018, the Company and CTOP Blockchain
Technology Inc. entered into a framework agreement, pursuant to
which the Company intended to cooperate with CTOP Blockchain
Technology Inc. in respect of the research and development of
blockchain technology and exploration of the application of
blockchain technology in the financial sector. Details of the proposed
cooperation were set out in the announcement of the Company dated
11 January 2018.

Employment, Training and Development

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 71 employees.
The Group is committed to staff training and development and
structured training programmes for all employees.

Remuneration packages are maintained at a competitive level and
reviewed on a periodic basis. Bonuses and share options are awarded
to certain employees according to individual performance and
industry practice.

EXHE

ERLHEMSE1RYE
RZZE—tF+ZAZ+NE  REEFTLEK
HEEHE  UEWFHEERAQRBEEE2E
Mt B8 2 T Goodview Assets Limited 2 & 2 A% #E -
[ERE 260,000,000 7C ° HEARZMHE—E
EAMNREBNENBBEIRZYE - BEALE
MARTTHK - BRHECHFBHENEARFTAHAES
E—+tF+-_A=-+hB - ZFE-—NF—A4
Z+ZH -ZE-\FZA+ZH - ZE—NF
ZA+TZBRERZE-NFZAF+NAZAEREK
RElHHAZE—\F=ZAZ+—HZEBX -

HREHRER

RZF—-\F—HA+—8  KNA7HECTOP
Blockchain Technology Inc. R S AEZE sk » 15t -
RN BV HESRA EE (R UR gE R AT R R R SR S R 0
® Bt 2 2 & A B CTOP Blockchain Technology
Inc. 5 1E - BEAEZHBENARRBEHR-F
—NF-—A+—BzRE-

RE - ZIRBRE
RZZE—EF+_A=+—8 AEEHXFNE
BE - AEEMAOREIEIRRE W ASE
EERELEIETE -

AEBERRBRT N2 F B 813 E BE TR
AEBERBMEE Lz TERBRERNEN G T
ETREIEANR B -
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The directors present their report and the audited financial statements
for the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017 (the “Period”).

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries during the Period consisted of
securities and futures dealing business, financial investments,
property investments and money lending business.

Business Review

A review of the Group’s business during the Period, which includes a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of the Period, an indication of likely future
developments in the Group’s business, an analysis of the Group’s
performance using financial key performance indicators and
discussion on the Company’s environmental policies and
performances and the relationships with its key stakeholders, are
included in the “Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion
and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report” and “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” of this annual report. The review
forms part of this directors’ report.

Results and Dividends

The Group's profit for the Period and the financial position of the
Group at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 62
to 172.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the Period.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements, is set out below. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements.

Report of the Directors

ESTHME

EFERENREREEUR-ZT—LFMNA—H
EEAFTA=+—RAHBETEXHEHE]) 2
REZIBREK -

FEXHK
ARRZEEXBR/REEZR - RAHEKE R
AZIEXBEREFLPETERK MR

FI OB

AEBRAHRNERBER AN mASERY
M EZE R R TR ZE - B ANHIR & R AR
BAEREAREEASHFRE  AREEHRE
BRNBT  KAMBRARRAESENAKEER
BAOMARFIRARRRERR LR MEAL T
ZMEHBENRE  BRAFR(ETFERERE
BEMmWEON]  [REERARE | MRE &
ERERAME] RBECRBUAEZTEREN

,f/'\ °

RERBE
AR A B2 H T R AR ERZ A 2 B
WABNE 2 AEE172 A2 HBHRE -

EFERERTREABRE MBS

MBERERE

DT AR BB R EMEREE 2 ZEUREE
REEHE (BRACTEZEERMBRE) -
UL HEE Y TR B R B 1Rk 2 — 515 -
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

Results

Revenue A

Profit/(loss) before tax BB ADEF, (B518)

Tax A

Profit/(Loss) for the year TR AFERF
attributable to (E18)
Owners of the parent [SYNGIE Z DN
Non-controlling interests ~ JE#E &gz

Assets and liabilities

Total assets BERE
Total liabilities BERE
Net assets BESE

18  China Soft Power Technology Holdings Limited FEIEE W& EEBR A A

For the period
from

1 April to

31 December
BR—HZE
+=H
=t+-—-H
HAR

2017
—E—tF
HK$’000
THET

228,055
373,375

(4,520)

368,855

368,855

As at

31 December
W+=A
=+-A
2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
FTET
4,228,648
1,504,744

2,723,904

ES
Year ended 31 March
BZE=HA=1+—-HILEFE
2017 2016 2015 2014
—T—tfF TR —T-nf _FT-OEF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAL FHL FHEL FHIT
(52,128) (472,438) 6,548 36,119
(156,397) (1,214,744) (1,274,973) (7,906)
- (1) (166) -
(156,397) (1,252,637) (1,266,154) 5,404
- 37,892 (8,985) (13,310)
(156,397) (1,214,745) (1,275,139) (7,906)
EEHEE
As at 31 March
M=ZA=+—H

2017 2016 2015 2014
“T—+tF —E-R¥ —T-1Ff _—ZT-MmF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHT FHT
1,424,451 1,025,544 1,315,513 295,713
108,872 91,088 196,786 167,024
1,315,579 934,456 1,118,727 128,689




Share Capital
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital are set out in
note 30 to the financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Period.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2017, the Company had no reserves available for
cash distribution and distribution in specie. In addition, the
Company’s share premium account and capital reserve, with an
aggregate balance of approximately HK$4,492,045,000 may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Period under review, the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 10.2% of the total revenue for the
Period and the largest customer accounted for approximately 4.5%.
The Group has no major suppliers due to the nature of the Group’s
principal activities of provision of trading in securities and futures
contracts services, financial investment, property investments and
money lending.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close associates
or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the above customer or supplier.

Report of the Directors
EXEWE

R
AR FRAEE 2 EEMR S BEREIIHE 30 -

BErRBEE
ARz @WRIHARE NN\ FRREEES
MELHERZAE  BFAATRLAIARE
R BITHRR °

BE BOHEALQT LHES

ARRHHEEAMBRARAMENASHEEE - &
Elek HEARBEM LEHES

o IkfEE
R-ZE—tF+-_A=+—8 ARRLETH
REDRREYD IR ZFHE - o AAEZ B
1% B R KB N #4845 15 89 4,492,045,000 78
TL AIRERAR 2 T RDIR

FEFEFRMUER

ROESE  AEBAATSHARBAWEYD
10.2% ' RAEBFAMGHI4.5% AR AEEHE
TESUHERIRBEEEEFLBEANRY - &
BIE  MERENNE  HAEEWEEDH

ARBEZXREETMETHEALTLRESTS
PR FIER AR A S BEITRAS% A £ 2 FfAR
R BEER L EPRHEHZ EMERES
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EREWE

Directors
The directors of the Company during the Period and up to the date of
this report are as follows:

Executive directors:

Mr. Chen Xiaodong

Mr. Xu Ke (appointed on 27 February 2018)

Mr. Yu Qingrui

Ms. Lam Hay Yin

Ms. Lee Chau Man Ada (appointed on 18 September 2017)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Mr. Chen Youchun

Mr. Mai Qijian

BEE
WABERESAREEN  AAFAZEEMT -

HITESE -
PRI S A&
‘L E(R=F
REHTE
B T 20 4
TMBLE(R-_ZF—

—NF-_A-++tHEZET)

tFNATNAREE)

BUIMITEF
BEAEKE
RRERE
BHERE

REBARR 2 AANGES - MEFIL L - REEE
ENBERAEER T \FRRBEFA2(=
T \FRRAEFARE]) LRI BFATAE

Pursuant to the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws, Ms. Lam Hay
Yin, Mr. Chen Youchun and Mr. Mai Qijian shall retire at the 2018
annual general meeting (the “2018 AGM”) and, being eligible, will

offer themselves for re-election at the said meeting. MITFEER FllKe 2R BT -
The Company has received annual confirmations of independence AR R BAREE S ES EmRAIT EHRE])

FE3VBHEEEARRAZBUIRTERTZFES
THHRE  MARBRARE BMNEEER

from each of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company and the Company still considers them to be independent as

at the date of this report pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing ¥/ A= °
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
Directors’ Biographies EEER

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on
pages 50 to 52 of the annual report.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of Mr. Chen Xiaodong, Mr. Xu Ke, Mr. Yu Qingrui, Ms. Lam
Hay Yin and Ms. Lee Chau Man Ada has a service contract with the
Company without any fixed term.

Each of Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong, Mr. Chen Youchun and Mr. Mai
Qijian has been appointed for a fixed term of one year.

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment, other than statutory compensation.

Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the
Period.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the Period.

Directors’ Remuneration

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s
board of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities
and performance and the results of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”,
no director nor a connected entity of a director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements
or contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the Period.

Report of the Directors
EREWE

EECREBEEN

ADED RIS - RAEE - REHE
£ AREHT L R PR LTS B
RIEAH -

BEREE BREERENEEZEERBER
—FZBEETHERE -

REARB AR AEESEERERE XA
RERBFAS LERSIE -

frEdiES RERERRBFAS LIREETZ
EEWBEARBFILARA AR —FRLL
MBAEZERE OXERERIN ZREEH -

MEE=S
A BE G (ERREEDTES) B ATRE
RAATEEZERTARERABEAR -

EESYN
KRB T U R G SR REEA AT
SHAAMEABHEB AL

EEHM

EFRSANBEAR EIGRRZ I - b
FMNEAARNEERSEEEIWE  RAM
RAEE 2 $MEMETE -
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Connected Transactions

Loan and Margin Financing Transactions

On 11 May 2017, Top Billion Finance Limited (“Top Billion”) as the
lender, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a loan agreement with Ms. Lee Chau Man Ada (“Ms. Lee”) as the
borrower, pursuant to which Top Billion agreed to provide a loan
facility in the principal amount of HK$49,000,000 to Ms. Lee for a
term of twelve months commencing from the day of drawing
appearing on the first notice of drawing given by Ms. Lee. Ms. Lee
had given a notice of drawing on 12 May 2017 for the said amount.
Ms. Lee, upon appointment as an executive director of the Company,
became a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Therefore the grant of loan facility constitutes a connected transaction
for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. On 28
September 2017, Ms. Lee had repaid the full amount of the loan
together with all accrued interest and other monies outstanding in
connection with the loan facility.

Respectively on 22 September 2015, 11 January 2017 and 4
November 2015, CWSI, as the broker, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
IAL, maintained securities accounts (Margin) with 3 directors of the
Company, Mr. Chen Xiaodong, Mr. Yu Qingrui and Ms. Lam Hay
Yin, as the client (collectively referred to as the “Clients”), pursuant to
which CWSI agreed to provide margin financing facilities, which
bore interest at commercials rate and were secured by respective
underlying securities, to the Clients for securities dealing purpose.
The Group acquired 34% equity interest in IAL on 7 April 2017 and
acquired the remaining 66% equity interest in IAL on 8 September
2017. Upon completion of the acquisition of IAL, IAL became an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Therefore the
grant of margin financing facilities to the Clients constitutes
connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. On the date of completion, the aggregate outstanding
margin financing receivable from the Clients was HK$5,432,000.

Acquisition of the Property located at No. 2 Lincoln Road

On 28 November 2016, Celestial Lodge Limited (“Celestial Lodge”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Gold
Mission Limited (“Gold Mission”) entered into an agreement pursuant
to which Celestial Lodge has agreed to acquire from Gold Mission
the entire issued share capital of Sky Eagle Global Limited (“Sky
Eagle”) and all obligations, liabilities and debts owing or incurred by
Sky Eagle to Gold Mission and its associates at the transaction
consideration of HK$227,000,000. The sole asset of Sky Eagle is its
beneficial interest in the entire issued share capital of a subsidiary
which in turn holds a property located at No. 2, Lincoln Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. On 7 March 2017, Celestial Lodge and Gold
Mission entered into a supplemental agreement pursuant to which
Celestial Lodge and Gold Mission has agreed to change the
settlement method to payment in cash upon completion (the
Acquisition”).
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As Gold Mission is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CMBC Capital
Holdings Limited (“CMBC Capital”) (formerly known as “Skyway
Securities Group Limited”), a then substantial shareholder of the
Company, Gold Mission is an associate of CMBC Capital and hence
a then connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
The Acquisition therefore constitutes a connected transaction for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 28 November
2016, 28 February 2017 and 8 March 2017 and the circular of the
Company dated 31 March 2017. Completion of the Acquisition took
place on 9 May 2017.

Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed
under the paragraph headed “Share Option Schemes” in this
directors’ report and note 33 to the financial statements, no equity-
linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that
will or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into
by the Company during the Period or subsisted at the end of the
Period.

Share Option Schemes

The Company currently operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
(including but not limited to the directors and employees of the
Group) who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Details of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in note 33
to the financial statements.

After the expiry of the old share option scheme on 27 August 2013,
the Company adopted a new share option scheme on 27 September
2013 in order to provide incentives and rewards to the eligible
participants.

At the 2017 annual general meeting of the Company, the scheme
mandate limit was refreshed and approved by the then shareholders
such that the total number of shares which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the share option
scheme and any other share option scheme(s) as may from time to
time be adopted by the Company must not exceed 1,073,516,898
shares. As at the date of this report, the total number of shares
available for issue under the share option scheme of the Company
was 1,073,516,898 shares, representing approximately 8.44% of the
issued share capital of the Company. The Company may refresh the
scheme mandate limit with its shareholders’ approval provided that
each such refreshment may not exceed 10% of the shares in issue as
at the date of the shareholders” approval.

Report of the Directors
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A summary of the movements of the share option schemes of the

Company during the Period is set out as follows:

RAHIEA - AR 2 B SIS RdmT

Number of
Number of share options Number of Exercise price
share options  granted/exercised/ share options of share
outstandingat  cancelled/lapsed outstanding at Date of grant of Exercise period of options
Name or category of participant 1 April 2017 during the Period 31 December 2017 share options share options ™ (HK$ per share)
R=B-t& REHE RZB-t&
mA-R B/ t=R=t-R
WRTEZ KRS/ KM HARTHEZ BRETHE
SRERHREN BREHE BREHE IBREHE RYBRERY IBRETRAE (BR/ %)
Director
2
Chen Xiaodong 89,600,000 - 89,600,000 20/02/2017 20/02/2017-19/02/2019 0.181
RER “E-t5-AZR  ZE-tE-A-fBE
—Z-NEZAtAhR
Yu Qingrui 89,600,000 - 89,600,000 20/02/2017 20/02/2017-19/02/2019 0.181
REH “Zt5ZAZFtR ZEtF-A-tAz
—Z-NEZAtAhR
Other employee
HfbES
In aggregate 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 20/02/2017 20/02/2017-19/02/2019 0.181
At “E-t¥-A-FTR “EtE-ACtHE
—Z-NEZAtAhR
Management personnel of service
providers
BHMAEE EEEAS
In aggregate 713,800,000 - 713,800,000 20/02/2017 20/02/2017-19/02/2019 0.181
At “E-t¥-A-FTR “EtE-ACtHE
—Z-NEZAtAhR
Total 896,000,000 - 896,000,000
ast

Note: The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the

commencement of the exercise period.

MiEE : BB BEHARL APREETHRERAGAIL -
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Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2017, the interests of the directors of the
Company in the shares and underlying shares of the Company (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”)), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) were as follows:

(1) Long position in ordinary shares of the Company

Report of the Directors
EXEWE

EEREARTARDREBERD 2B

RIFB—tEF+T_A=1+—8 ARFAEEFRA
RER AR (EE R E S RS GG (1F
FREE GO EXVER) BB AE LN ARA
ﬁ%%%&%ﬁﬁ%%&ﬁ%%%%ﬁﬁZﬁd
MziEs  HRBELTETAERETESFR
HARZEST Al (1R 2 #E‘JJ)/,\§D@$’&T&H§’§XW(
ZHEmIAT

(1) RAERAFREBRZHER

Number of Percentage* of
ordinary shares the Company’s
Name of director Capacity interested  issued share capital
BEERN RN
EEpgE g4 ZERHE CEBTREEILL*
Chen Xiaodong Beneficial owner 4,180,246 0.03%
BREZIR Enlia A
Yu Qingrui Beneficial owner 5,563,610 0.04%
REH EmEAA
Lee Chau Man Ada Beneficial owner 28,261,150 0.22%
T BEREAA
Mai Qijian Beneficial owner 179,533 0.01%
EHE BEREAA
* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares interested * DLEHA RGN EREREE BRARRRIRZ

divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December
2017.

E—tHE+- A=+ —HEBTROHEAE -
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(2) Long position in underlying shares of the Company —
physically settled unlisted equity derivatives

2 RAXFAEBRHOZERE — BUEE
FLTERATTETAR

Percentage* of
the underlying

Number of shares over

underlying shares the Company’s

in respect of the issued share

Name of director Capacity share options granted capital

A S RERT Y & HERGMEE QT

EEHE 14 HERGHE ERTRAFIE*

Chen Xiaodong Beneficial owner 89,600,000 0.70%
PREEIR EREBA

Yu Qingrui Beneficial owner 89,600,000 0.70%
REH BEEEBEA

Details of the share options granted by the Company are set out
under the section “Share Option Schemes” in this report.

* The percentage represents the number of underlying shares interested
divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December
2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which he/she was
deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which
were required to be entered into the register kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares of the Company” and “Share Option
Schemes” above and in the share option scheme disclosures in note
33 to the financial statements, at no time during the Period were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any of the directors or their
respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

BRARBMEHBERE ZF BN ARE
[FERHERTEl] —&0 -

* BOLIEEARENABRMNEE RARRFR
“E—AF+ A=+ -RABBITRNHEE -

BEXHWESEIN R-E—+tF+-_A=+—
B ARAGBZEEHEZITRAERERAQF
s E A MEEEE (T & R ES MBEKRAEXY
) 2 Bty - RERGM RESFPEREAREES
MHAEGEOIEXVEE7 RE 8D B AEME AR A
RE R P2 #Emsox B (B IR IRIEE H K E KA
LEZERTERANERRECERRAR) XA
FALRRRBREBEEFESFRPEKRHEI2EMFE
ZERMPRRIEEETAREANSADR R
BB 2 B POR B o

ESREROHES ZEF

B Ll [EFERARBIM MR 2| &
[P AR &1 TR T LA R A TS SRR MY 5 33 MM B AR
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2017, the following parties had interests of 5% or
more in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO, or as the Company is aware:

Report of the Directors

s

EBRINFDARGRARRE >
m

RZT—tFF+A=+—8 REARFIRZE
FMREGROIEIBGEREFE 2 ECMATE
FBEARBHE - TR HTRARE 2R =E
BRI R A 5%k A £ 2 HEE

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company RAEQATEBRZER
Number of Percentage* of
Name of substantial ordinary shares the Company’s
shareholder Capacity Note interested issued share capital
‘ BEEREDZ EARRARE BT
FTERRER 54 feE HEERBE BRAEB D *
Wei Zhenyu Beneficial owner 2,150,000,000 16.91%
BT BEEERBA
Huang Chuan Beneficial owner 8,610,000 0.07%
=) BEamEAA
Other (1) 2,000,000,000 15.73%
Hith
2,008,610,000 15.80%
Chen Xiangru Beneficial owner 1,853,992,000 14.58%
PR R 20 EDEAA
Future World Financial Interest held by a controlled (2) 1,170,621,316 9.21%
Holdings Limited corporation
AR R FIFRBER AR FRZESREIFE 2 ER
Golden Horse Hong Kong Beneficial owner (2) 1,170,621,316 9.21%
Investment Limited EmAA
CHBEEREBRAA
Lin Zherui Beneficial owner 4,622 0.01%
N BEmEAA
Interest held by a controlled 3) 756,890,000 5.95%
corporation
BBRIEHRRTA 2R
756,894,622 5.95%
Dragon Huge Development Limited ~ Beneficial owner 3) 756,890,000 5.95%
BEEBRARAT BEHEEEA
Notes: LiEss
(1) These shares were held by Dragon Regal Holding Limited which was controlled (1) #% % & 7 M Dragon Regal Holding Limited #% %5 - i

by Huang Chuan.

(2) These shares were held by Golden Horse Hong Kong Investment Limited which
was controlled by Future World Financial Holdings Limited.

(3) These shares were held by Dragon Huge Development Limited which was

controlled by Lin Zherui.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares interested divided by the
number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2017.

Dragon Regal Holding Limited £3% |12

Q) ZEROHBEEEEREERIFANAE  MeFEER
BARARHARRERSBZERARATZES -

B) EEBRMBEE
B AR SR o

BERRERARFE  MEERRERA

* DHEREHRN T BRBBBRARRRR
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the
section headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company” above, had an interest or a short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this report, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float.

Directors’ Interests in a Competing Business
During the Period and up to the date of this report, no director is
considered to have interests in a business which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

As far as the directors are aware, during the Period and up to the date
of this report, the Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on its
business and operations.

Events after the reporting period
Details of the significant events of the Group after the reporting
period are set out in note 44 to the financial statements.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance practices of the Company are set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this
annual report.

Auditors
Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the 2018 AGM.
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On behalf of the Board REEFE

Chen Xiaodong FE

Chairman BREZR

Hong Kong BB

23 March 2018 e—\F=A=-+=H
28  China Soft Power Technology Holdings Limited FE & H & KB HR A 7



Corporate Governance Report

Corporate Governance Practices
The Board recognizes the importance of good corporate governance
to the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted considerable
efforts to formulating and implementing corporate governance
practices appropriate to the Company’s needs.

Throughout the period under review, the Company has complied
with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, except for the
deviation from the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. Key
corporate governance principles and practices of the Company as
well as the details of the foregoing deviation are summarized below.

The Board

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board

Direction and control of Company business are vested in the Board.
The Board establishes policies, strategies and plans for the
development of Company business, and provides leadership in the
creation of value for shareholders. All directors have carried out their
duties in good faith, in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, taking decisions objectively and acting in the interests of
the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company,
including approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, risk management and internal control systems,
material transactions (particularly those involving conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have timely access to all relevant information as well as
the advice and services of the company secretary and senior
management of the Company, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable laws and regulations are followed. Any
director may request independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expenses, upon reasonable request
made to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are led by the Executive Committee and senior
management of the Company. The Board has delegated a schedule of
responsibilities to these officers for implementing Board decisions.
The Board reviews the delegated functions and work tasks regularly.
The aforesaid officers have to obtain Board approval prior to entering
any significant transactions.
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Board Composition
The composition of the Board and the Board Committees as at the
date of this annual report is as follows:

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Xu Ke (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Yu Qingrui

Ms. Lam Hay Yin

Ms. Lee Chau Man Ada

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Mr. Chen Youchun

Mr. Mai Qijian

Executive Committee

Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman)
Mr. Xu Ke

Mr. Yu Qingrui

Ms. Lam Hay Yin

Ms. Lee Chau Man Ada

Audit Committee

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Youchun

Mr. Mai Qijian

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman)
Ms. Lam Hay Yin

Mr. Chen Youchun

Nomination Committee

Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman)
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Mr. Chen Youchun

The biographical details of the directors and the relationships among
the members of the Board are disclosed in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors” in this annual report.

During the Period, the Board at all times met the requirement of the
Listing Rules of having a minimum of three independent non-
executive directors (representing at least one-third of the Board) with
one of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications and
accounting and related financial management expertise.

EEgdEm
RAFHRAY EFSREEZESZMEKIT ¢

Exg

BITEE
RERAE(EFELE)
RIS (TTIEAREL)
REHILE

AN tip g

FREE

BUFBITEE
FEHEE
BRRERE
BHREE

BITEEE
BREERSE (Z/E)
(ot
REHILE
AN tip g
FREE

FRESE
BERKE(EE)
BRRERE
BHREE

FHESE
BERKE(EE)
AN tip g
BRRERE

REZEE
BREERSE (E/E)
FEHEE
BRRERE

BREZEENEZTC@EKENBERERAFRIE
ZRE] —f&ih TIAKE -

RAHE BFEeENALMRRAEARE
NERBELRB-BBFRTER (EPEE
TN ) LHHEF - BBIUIFRITESA
ABEEBEREARMKEM MIARMBEEERE
fE o

30  China Soft Power Technology Holdings Limited FEIHXE W& EBEER D T



The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience appropriate for the business requirement and
objectives of the Group and for the exercise of independent
judgement.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant to
the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. To achieve clear division of
responsibilities between the management of the Board and day-to-
day management of the business and hence to ensure balance of
power and authority, there is separation of duties for the Chairman
and Chief Executive of the Company. The Group had been recruiting
the appropriate candidate for the post of chief executive after the
resignation of the former chief executive on 20 April 2015.

On 27 February 2018, the Company announced the appointment of
Mr. Xu Ke as an executive director and the chief executive officer of
the Company with effect from 27 February 2018. The Board
considered that such appointment would achieve a separation of
duties for the Chairman and Chief Executive of the Company and
ensure a balance of power and authority, and hence strengthening
the governance function and business development of the Group.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The executive directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Chen
Xiaodong, Mr. Xu Ke, Mr. Yu Qingrui, Ms. Lam Hay Yin and Ms. Lee
Chau Man Ada have not been appointed for a specific term but they
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s
annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.
The Company has also issued a letter of appointment to each of the
independent non-executive directors of the Company for a term of 1
year.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws, Ms. Lam Hay
Yin, Mr. Chen Youchun and Mr. Mai Qijian shall retire at the 2018
AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
2018 AGM. The Board recommended the re-election of the above
retiring directors at the 2018 AGM.
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The Company has adopted “Director’s Nomination Procedures” as
written guidelines in providing formal, considered and transparent
procedures to the Board for evaluating and selecting candidates for
directorships. Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will
carry out the selection process by making reference to the skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

Training and Continuing Development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

All directors of the Company receive a comprehensive induction on
his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Group and full awareness of director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements. Such induction is normally supplemented
with visits to the Group’s key plant sites and/or meetings with the
senior management of the Company.

The existing directors are continually updated with legal and
regulatory developments, business and market changes to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Continuing
briefings and professional development for directors are arranged
whenever necessary. In addition, reading materials on new or
changes to salient laws and regulations applicable to the Group are
provided to directors from time to time for their studying and
reference. All directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the Period, the Company (i) has organized briefings
conducted by the company secretary for all its directors on corporate
governance and updates on the Listing Rules amendments and (ii) has
provided reading materials on regulatory updates to all the directors
for their reference and studying.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors of the Company (the “Own Code”)
on terms no less exacting than the Model Code. Specific enquiry has
been made of all the Company’s directors, and all the directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code and the Own Code throughout the period
from 1 April 2017 to the date of this report, except for the following
non-compliance incident:

The Company was notified by Ms. Lee Chau Man Ada, an executive
director of the Company, that an inadvertent mistake was made in
the disposal of a total of 672,000 shares of the Company on the
market during the black-out period. Upon discovering the mistake,
Ms. Lee had immediately acquired the equivalent amount of the
shares of the Company disposed of from the market and notified the
Company accordingly. Ms. Lee has also taken steps to prevent such
mistakes from happening again. There was no change in the
shareholding of Ms. Lee immediately before and after the aforesaid
dealings in shares of the Company.

Upon being aware of the abovementioned non-compliance, the
Company had immediately taken steps to notify the Stock Exchange.
In ensuring compliance with the Model Code and the Own Code, the
Company has notified each of the directors of the black-out period
prior to its commencement and reminded them not to deal in any
securities of the Company. Each of the directors is required to signify
his/her acknowledgement of the black-out period by signing and
returning to the Company a copy of the said notification. The
Company considers that the abovementioned incident is a one-off
incident and its current corporate governance and internal control
measures are adequate for the purposes of regulating the securities
transactions by directors and ensuring that the directors are well-
informed of their obligations regarding securities transactions.

Written Guidelines for Securities Transactions by Relevant
Employees

The Company has established written guidelines on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”)
for securities transactions by relevant employees of the Group who
are considered to be likely to possess inside information in relation to
the Company or its securities. No incident of non-compliance with
the Employees Written Guidelines was noted by the Company.

In case the Company is aware of any restricted period for dealings in
the Company’s securities, the Company will notify its directors and
relevant employees in advance.
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Directors’ Attendance Records

The attendance records of each director at the regular Board
meetings, Board Committee meetings and the general meetings of the
Company held during the Period is set out below:

EEHFETE
EEENAHEBETZESETHER EFZ
SRR LANAWRAG 2 HFCEHIIIT

8e

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERE/ eRRY
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination Annual Special
Board  Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee General General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
" 30| RE BRR BRR
Name of Director Esps ESg9E ZE993 ZE993 ZE9E€3 BEAS KEKE
Mr. Chen Xiaodong BREREE 33 - - 22 1”n 22
Mr. Xu Ke (note 1) RS (FEE1) - - - - - -
Mr. Yu Qingrui REHAE 33 - - - 1”n 172
Ms. Lam Hay Yin gLt 33 - 22 - 1”n 22
Ms. Lee Chau Man Ada L G
(note 2) (P3E2) 11 - - - - 11
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong PEHEE 33 212 2/2 212 11 212
Mr. Chen Youchun B%?;z%f%ﬁ—; 3/3 22 22 22 01 172
Mr. Mai Qjjian BHRRAE 3/3 22 - - 1 22
Notes: Bt
1. Mr. Xu Ke was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February 1. BRGEER T N\F_AZTELBEZE AR
2018. TES-
2. Ms. Lee Chau Man Ada was appointed as an executive director of the Company 2. FREZITR_ZE—tFNATN\BEZEREDRH

on 18 September 2017. During the period from her appointment date up to 31
December 2017, 1 regular Board meeting and 1 special general meeting were

held.

In addition, Mr. Chen Xiaodong, the chairman of the Board, held a
meeting with the independent non-executive directors without the
presence of executive directors during the period under review.

Board Committees and Corporate Governance
Functions

The Board has established four Board committees, namely, the
Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees have been
established with defined written terms of reference, which are
available on the Stock Exchange’s website (www.hkexnews.hk) and
on the Company’s website (http://www.cspthl.com) (except for the
written terms of reference of the Executive Committee which is
available to shareholders upon request). All the Board committees
should report to the Board on their decisions or recommendations
made.
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Executive Committee

Currently, the Executive Committee comprises all the five executive
directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Chen Xiaodong, Mr. Xu Ke,
Mr. Yu Qingrui, Ms. Lam Hay Yin and Ms. Lee Chau Man Ada. The
Chairman of the Board, Mr. Chen Xiaodong, also acts as the
Chairman of this committee. The Executive Committee operates as a
general management committee under the direct authority of the
Board to increase the efficiency for business decision making. It
monitors the execution of the Company’s strategic plans and
operations of all business units of the Group and discusses and makes
decisions on matters relating to the management and day-to-day
operations of the Group.

Audit Committee

Currently, the Audit Committee comprises of three members, namely,
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman), Mr. Chen Youchun and Mr. Mai
Qijian, all of whom are independent non-executive directors. Mr.
Kwok Chi Kwong possesses the appropriate accounting and financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules. None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former
partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the financial
statements and reports and consider any significant or unusual items
raised by the financial officers of the Group or external auditors
before submission to the Board; (ii) review and monitor the
relationship with the external auditors by referencing to the work
performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of engagement, and
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors; and (iii) review the
Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk management
systems.

During the Period, the Audit Committee performed the following
works:

— Review and discussion of the financial statements, results
announcements and reports for the year ended 31 March 2017
and for the six months ended 30 September 2017, the financial
reporting, the related accounting principles, practices and
compliance procedures;

—  Discussion and recommendation of the re-appointment of
external auditors; and

—  Review of risk management and internal control systems of the
Group.
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The external auditors were invited to attend the Audit Committee
meetings without the presence of executive directors to discuss with
the Audit Committee issues arising from the audit and financial
reporting matters. The Company’s annual results for the Period have
also been reviewed by the Audit Committee. There is no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee regarding
the re-appointment of external auditors.

Remuneration Committee

Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises both executive
directors and independent non-executive directors of the Company,
namely, Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman), Ms. Lam Hay Yin and Mr.
Chen Youchun.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to (i) make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure and the remuneration packages of directors and
senior management (i.e. the model described in the code provision
B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code is adopted); (ii) review and approve
performance-based remuneration by referencing to corporate goals
and objectives; and (iii) establish a formal and transparent procedures
for developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that
no director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding
his/her own remuneration, the remuneration of which will be
determined with reference to the performance of the individual and
the Group as well as market practice and conditions.

During the Period, the Remuneration Committee has (i) generally
reviewed and discussed the remuneration policy and structure and
the current remuneration packages of the directors and senior
management of the Group; and (ii) recommended to the Board the
remuneration package regarding the appointment of Ms. Lee Chau
Man Ada as a director of the Company.

The senior management of the Company are the directors of the
Company. Details of the remuneration of each director of the
Company for the Period are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements contained in this annual report.

Nomination Committee

Currently, the Nomination Committee comprises both executive
directors and independent non-executive directors of the Company,
namely, Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman), Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong and
Mr. Chen Youchun.
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The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i) review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board on a regular basis and recommend any
changes to the Board; (ii) identify qualified and suitable individuals to
become Board members and select and make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
(iii) assess the independence of independent non-executive directors
of the Company, having regard to the requirements under the Listing
Rules; and (iv) make recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of directors
and succession planning for directors in particular, the Chairman and
the Chief Executive of the Company.

In selecting candidates for directorship of the Company, the
Nomination Committee may make reference to certain criteria such
as the Company’s needs, the diversity on the Board, the integrity,
experience, skills, professional knowledge of the candidate and the
amount of time and effort that the candidate will devote to discharge
his/her duties and responsibilities. External recruitment professionals
might be engaged to carry out selection process when necessary.

To comply with the code provision A.5.6 of the CG Code, a Board
diversity policy was adopted by the Company in September 2013,
pursuant to which the Nomination Committee is responsible for
monitoring the implementation of the Board diversity policy and
assessing the Board composition under diversified perspectives
(including but not limited to educational background or professional
experience). The Nomination Committee shall report its findings and
make recommendation to the Board, if any. Such policy and
objectives will be reviewed from time to time to ensure their
appropriateness in determining the optimum composition of the
Board.

During the Period, the Nomination Committee performed the
following works:

—  Considered and recommended the appointment of Ms. Lee
Chau Man Ada as a director of the Company;

—  Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements for the business of the Group
and reviewed the Board diversity policy;

—  Considered and recommended the re-election of the retiring
directors standing for re-election at the 2017 annual general
meeting of the Company; and

— Assessed the independence of independent non-executive
directors of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the Period, the Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
Employees Written Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial
Reporting in Respect of the Financial Statements
The directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the Period.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements. The
management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on an
ongoing basis. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Board is fully responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take to achieve the
Company’s strategic objectives, and for establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Group’s
assets.
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The Audit Committee assists the Board in overseeing the design and
implementation of the risk management and internal control systems.
The Company has developed and adopted different risk management
procedures and guidelines. Self-evaluation would be conducted each
year to confirm that the Company has properly complied with the
risk management and internal control policy. All divisions would
conduct internal control assessment to identify risks factors with
potential impact on the Group’s business. The management would
assess the likelihood of risk occurrence, monitor the progress of risk
management and report to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
findings and effectiveness of the systems.

The Group has developed its disclosure policy to provide a general
guide to the Company’s directors and relevant employees in handling
confidential information, monitoring information disclosure and
responding to enquiries.

The Company’s internal audit staff has performed independent review
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems. Key issues such as accounting practices and
all material controls were examined. The relevant findings and
recommendations are provided to the Board and the Audit
Committee.

The Board, as assisted by the Audit Committee and the management,
has reviewed the report from the management and the internal audit
findings, and reviewed the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, including the financial, operational and
compliance controls for the Period. The annual review also covered
areas on financial reporting, internal audit function, staff qualification,
experiences and relevant resources. The Board considered that such
systems are adequate and effective and ongoing review of the same
nature would be conducted in subsequent years.

External Auditors and Auditors’ Remuneration
The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements for
the Period is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s
Report” in this annual report. During the Period, the remuneration
paid/payable to the Company’s external auditors, Ernst & Young, is
set out below:

Nature of Services

Corporate Governance Report
EXRERRE

ERZEEMDEFSEERREE L AMMEE
HE 2 HIFT R#IT - RAFEHRE MRATRD
R EIRIE R R3S - ARBEFFEITARE -
EARPEHZEETEREE RN FPEIEHR
PRB RRPI A ETT N BR SRR RT 4 - ATER B AL E
EBERBEZENRRRAER - BEESTHH
ERBHFEN  ERREREEEEARAES
ENERZEEMERRERLBIE 2R -

AEBECHIERFRBERER  MARRES RIAH
BERHEERZEN EFRABREMDELD
AR — S -

AR BAEREETH S C B b B IR Ko 1A B B 2
BZrEMEMRBETE BN EHTEEE
et BlMAAEAERETER - HEE
MEBEZEHRERTESERERZES -

EXeCNERZBeREEENHE THRHE
BEEREMAMES SR UARHAEERARE
BERAFEENE  BERAHENTE - 2E
RAEREE FERMAMTREMBERE  NEE
e BTER KRLEHEER - EFaR
R RHERD BB BERFESETHRME
G EERN -

SPES B BB K% 1% B8 A 2 37 B

ARIA D TSNS 2 BT R E R A A TR A
2B SRR R R TR R AR B
STEBEREE ] — 6 c RAME - KATRINE
e 2 A B R AN, R 2 B a5
m -

Remuneration (HK$)

RS HE (BT)
Audit services EiH IR 2,600,000
Non-audit services (Note) JEEEHARTS (B FE) 110,000
TOTAL: et 2,710,000

Note: The non-audit services provided mainly included other assurance services.
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Company Secretary

During the Period, Mr. Szeto Pui Tong, Patrick, the Company
Secretary, has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
trainings to update his skills and knowledge.

Communications with Shareholders and
Investors

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors” understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
will enable shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decisions.

The Company maintains a website at “www.cspthl.com” as a
communication platform with shareholders and investors, where
information and updates on the Group’s business operations,
developments and financial information are available for public
access. Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or
requests to the Company using the below contact details:

Address:  Unit 6706B-08A, Level 67, International Commerce Centre,
1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Department of Investor Relations)
Fax: (852) 2865 4654

Email: info@cspthl.com

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee and, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, will normally
attend the annual general meeting and other shareholders’ meetings
to answer questions.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to
keep them posted of the Company’s developments.
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Shareholder Rights

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder
meetings, including the election of individual directors. The
Company’s shareholders may convene a special general meeting or
put forward proposals at shareholders’” meetings as follows:

(M

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company at the date of deposit of the requisition
may request the Board to convene a special general meeting
pursuant to Clause 71 of the Company’s bye-laws by sending a
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary at
the Company’s head office in Hong Kong. The objects of the
meeting must be stated in the written requisition.

Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights at the date of the requisition or not less than
100 shareholders may put forward a proposal at a shareholders’
meeting, pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda by
sending a written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary at the Company’s head office in Hong Kong. The
proposal should be stated in the written requisition and such
written requisition should be submitted as early as practicable
to enable the Company to make necessary arrangement (in case
of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six
weeks before the meeting; and in case of any other requisition,
not less than one week before the meeting).

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
director for election as a director of the Company at a general
meeting, the shareholder (other than the person to be proposed)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the general meeting shall
send a written notice, duly signed by the shareholder, of his/her
intention to propose such person for election and also a notice
signed by the person to be proposed of his/her willingness to be
elected. These notices should be lodged at the Company’s head
office in Hong Kong, or the office of the Company’s branch
share registrar. The period for lodgement of such notices shall
commence on the day after the dispatch of the notice of such
general meeting and end 7 days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

Corporate Governance Report
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For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

During the period under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its bye-laws. An up-to-date version of the Company’s bye-
laws is also available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.cspthl.com).

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each
shareholders’ meeting.
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Environmental, Social and

Scope and Reporting Period
This is the second Environmental, Social, and Governance (“ESG”)
report by the Company, highlighting ESG performance, with
disclosure reference made to the ESG Reporting Guide as described
in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules and Guidance set out by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The principal activities of the Company during the reporting period
are engagement in the securities and futures dealing business,
financial investment, property investment and money lending
business. This ESG report covers the Company’s overall
environmental and social performances of its major business
operations in its office in International Commerce Centre, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, from 1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017, unless
otherwise stated.

Due to the Company’s change of year end, the Company’s
environmental and social performances from 1 January 2017 to 31
March 2017 had been reported in the ESG report in the last reporting
period.

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality

In order to identify the most significant aspects for the Company to
report on for this ESG report, key stakeholders including investors,
shareholders and employees have been involved in regular
engagement sessions including routine meetings and annual general
to discuss and to review areas of attention which will help the
business meets its potential growth and be prepared for future
challenges.

Stakeholders’ Feedback

The Company welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our
environmental, social and governance approach and performance.
Please give your suggestions or share your views with us via email at
info@cspthl.com.

Governance Report
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The Company’s Sustainability Vision

We are committed to conducting our business responsibly, ensuring
our business does not contribute to significant adverse impact to the
environment and society while bringing sustainable growth and
profit.

A.  Environmental
Types of emission sources the Company involved in the
reporting period were mainly petrol, electricity, water and
paper. The business does not involve in consumption of
packaging materials, production-related air, water discharge,
and land pollutions which are regulated under laws and
regulations of Hong Kong.

Although the Company’s business does not generate significant
adverse environmental impact as compared with businesses in
other sectors, the Company is committed to reducing
greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions and preserving natural
resources. With electricity consumption as its main source of
GHG emission, the Company frequently reminds its staff to
practise energy-saving habits in office.

1. Greenhouse Gas Emissions
The Company’s operation mainly involves in indirect GHG
emission from purchased electricity. During the reporting
period, the purchased electricity contributed to an emission of
38.25 tCO,e, with an emission intensity of 0.004 tCO,e/m?.

Apart from consumption of electricity for the daily use, the
Company also involved in insignificant consumption of petrol
and freshwater, and generation of paper waste and wastewater.
The resources consumption and wastes generation data have
not been recorded, and thus emissions from these activities
were not calculated in this reporting period. Respective
emissions will be disclosed in the next reporting period.

2. Use of Resources
(i)  Petrol

The Company consumed petrol for the Company-owned
private passenger vehicles. It encourages the use of public
transportation whenever possible to reduce overall
consumption of petrol and respective emission. Petrol
consumption data has not been recorded, and thus was
not available during the reporting period. Respective
consumption will be disclosed in the next reporting
period.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Electricity

The Company consumes electricity for maintaining daily
office operations including lighting, office equipment and
other miscellaneous items. A total of 70,839 kWh was
consumed during the reporting period; the energy
intensity was 7.08 kWh/m?. To reduce electricity
consumption, staff frequently reminds each other to turn
off office lights, computers, printers and air conditioners
when leaving office.

Water

The Company’s water consumption is managed by the
Management Office of its office building. Its business
does not involve significant water consumption.

Waste

The Company generates no hazardous waste in its
operation. Non-hazardous waste from the Company is
regularly collected by the Management Office and is
mainly composed of office paper. With the principles of
“reduce, reuse and recycle”, the Company centralized
stationary supply to utilize stationaries and avoid wastage.
It returns used cartridges to suppliers and purchases
remanufactured toner cartridges for its multi-functional
devices. Reusable dishes and tableware instead of
disposable ones are used in office. Other wastes including
unneeded computers and furniture are donated to Caritas
Hong Kong whenever possible.

Waste generation data (including paper waste) has not
been recorded, and thus was not available during the
reporting period. Respective waste generation data will
be disclosed in the next reporting period.

Office Paper

Paper is used for daily office operations such as
documents printing and deliverables packaging. It
practises paper saving initiatives, such as adopting
double-sided printing and printing with single-side used
paper. Paper waste is also collected separately by the
Management Office for recycling.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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Employment and Labour Practices 1. EREREIER

(i) Employment (i) =
The Company had a total number of 63 employees as of Eﬂzi T—+F+— H +—B8" K
31 December 2017, in which all of them were full time HEBHRE  2HEEER
employees from Hong Kong. A total of 5 employees left Erﬂz/!%l cRIMEHAN - AR5 REER
the Company during the reporting period (turnover rate: NN FIBERE (B3R 1 8%) °
8%).
Competitive Compensation and Benefits BT 2 MEREN
The Company abides by all applicable employment and $ AETEE—ERREREST
labour related laws of Hong Kong. Employees are MERREB - 1@5?%%1/\,\[1&%|772
provided with attractive salary with year-end double pay. B YEBEFRER - HFIMEHTIA
Salary is reviewed on a periodic basis with considerations e BEREREENBE-—FZX
given to employees’ performance during the past year, B HBETEDHKF - RAFDEN
market rate of the related industry, profit result and the %Ziﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ]jf he BB -
projected earning ability of the Company. Individual R FAEREFORFEANGHAER
salary adjustment in respect of promotion, confirmation, HEPIE B AT AR ER - sbE
transfer, re-classification etc. are recommended by the TFRAEME - ARAIERITETH K
Department Head in consultation with the Administration ERBRXNME NER - ARFIR
Department. For certain job positions, the Company pays RESERY EREFR KR E
commission and incentives in line with trade practices B FERMEEERGES - Kk
and management policies. Various types of leave are wHEAER (RET)FEN EEH
provided including annual, sick, maternity, paternity and ﬁ*%gﬁﬁ§77ﬁf|J§+iU&§ﬁfﬁéﬁﬁ
jury services leave. Apart from the Mandatory Provident BRR - RETR AT H 8.5/
Fund (“MPF”) scheme, employees are entitled to medical BRXIAE-
benefits scheme and employees’ compensation insurance.
The standard working hours are 8.5 hours per day and 5
days per week.
There were no major changes in policies relating to RBEEA - AEAMENRER - BB
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, NEA - T - RERMRE - TS#e -
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunities, diversity LAt R R 2 BRI B E A E & -
and anti-discrimination during the reporting period.
Promotion, Transfer and Dismissal B - FE MR
The Company aims to provide channels of promotion and RRARBMAORBLEEARSE - WAR
promote employees based on their performance, BEBRI - BE - M5 Rag 1A
qualification, integrity and ability. Promotion will be Bt RARHEEEEE  ES#E
offered with considerations of the Company’s operation, N BHRABRBERTIANEE A
competence, potential and interpersonal skills of the PR B R R M TE T
employee and recommendations given by the employee’s cMABFE AR _H% 15 {7 2
Department Manager. The Company reserves the right to SHEEEE M SETRUMET
transfer any employee to other locations or opportunities YEZ HER| o
to perform jobs of similar nature if necessary.
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Employees who completed the probation period and wish
to resign must notify in writing to the Department
Manager with at least one month’s notice. Specific
notification periods for different positions are stipulated in
the appointment letters. While employees who fall under
circumstances including redundancy, termination without
prejudice and termination with prejudice shall have their
employment terminated and provided with one month’s
notice or one month’s salary in lieu of notice.

Equal Opportunity

The Company provides equal opportunities for employees
in respect of recruitment, training and development, job
advancement, and compensation and benefits. Employees
are not discriminated against or deprived of such
opportunities on the basis of gender, ethnic, background,
religion, skin colour, age, marital status, family status,
retirement, disability, pregnancy or any other
discrimination prohibited by applicable laws of Hong
Kong.

Employee Communication

To enhance employees’ sense of belonging, the Company
regularly organizes gatherings with staff. In the reporting
period, the Company organized an annual dinner and a
Christmas party.

Employee Health and Safety

As office staff spends most of the time on computer work,
the Company installed protective screens on monitors to
reduce eye damage that may be caused by computer
screens. Staff also constantly reminds each other to
maintain appropriate viewing distance between eyes and
computer screens, maintain good posture when working
and do stretching exercises during rest breaks. There were
no major changes in policies in relation to occupational
health and safety during the reporting period.

The Company is in compliance with the Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance, Chapter 509 of the Laws of
Hong Kong, and no material non-compliance with related
laws and regulations was noted.

(ii)
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(iii)

(iv)

(i)

(ii)

48

Development and Training

The Company encourages employees to participate in
work-related and personal development trainings. It
provides necessary on-job trainings and ample
opportunities for external trainings to employees. In the
reporting period, employees participated in duties-related
courses or seminars provided by external service
providers. The trainings covered topics including
accounting standards, laws and regulations.

Labour Standard

Pursuant to the Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57 of
the Laws of Hong Kong, there was no child nor forced
labour in the Company’s operation. All resumes, original
identification cards and relevant certificates of job
candidates are first checked by the Company during
interviews. Candidates’ preceded employers may be
contacted for provision of references.

Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

Procurement involved in the business was mainly
purchase of office daily necessities. Despite the relatively
low environmental and social risks involved in the
Company’s supply chain, the Company encourages best
practices in supply chain management.

There were no major changes in practices in relation to
supply chain management during the reporting period.

Product Responsibility

Confidential and Customer Information

As stated in the employment contract, employees shall
not at any time during the course of the employment and
after the termination of the employment:

J use any confidential information for his/her own
purpose or for any purpose other than that of the
Company;

e divulge or communicate to any person any
confidential information except to those of the
employees or officials of the Company whose
province it is to know the same; or

e through any failure to exercise all due care and
diligence cause any unauthorized disclosure of any
confidential information (including without
limitation), relating to the dealings, organization,
business, finance, transactions or any other affairs
to the Company or its clients or customers.

(iii)

(iv)
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All notes, memoranda, records and writings made by the
employees in relation to the business or concerning any
of its dealings or affairs or the dealings or affairs of any
clients or customers of the Company shall be handed
over by him/her to the Company from time to time on
demand and in any event upon his leaving the service of
the Company and the employees shall not retain any
copy thereof. A breach of the above provisions can be
subject to dismissal without notice and legal claim for
damages.

The Company is in compliance with all applicable laws
regarding confidential information and data protection of
the laws of Hong Kong. No substantiated complaints
concerning breaches of client privacy, identified leaks,
thefts, or losses of customer information was received
during the reporting period.

(iii)  Anti-corruption
The Company abides by the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance, Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong. In
relation to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. There was no concluded legal case regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Company or its
employees during the reporting period.

3. Community Investment
The Company understands that engaging the community in
which it operates is an essential corporate responsibility. The
Company will consider contributing to activities and
organizations that benefits the community in the next reporting
year.

Future Directions from the Company

In alignment with our vision on sustainability, we will continue to
operate our business with high ethical standards and provide
sustainable returns to our stakeholders.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEEE

Executive Directors

Chen Xiaodong, aged 36, is an executive director, the chairman of
the Board of the Company, and the chairman of both the Executive
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company since 2
December 2016. He holds a bachelor degree of management from
Royal Holloway, University of London. He also holds a master of
science degree in process technology and business management from
University of Warwick. He has more than 10 years of experience in
bank and securities marketing and is familiar with the local market
and has strong capabilities in market exploration, customer appraisal
and risk management. He also has extensive experience of
regulations and rules of financial market in Hong Kong and Mainland
China, as well as certain corporate financial analysis skill. In 2017,
Mr. Chen has been appointed as an executive director and chief
executive officer of Future World Financial Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, stock code: 572). Mr. Chen is the nephew of Ms. Lee
Chau Man Ada, an executive director of the Company.

Xu Ke, aged 39, has been appointed as an executive director, the
chief executive office and a member of the Executive Committee of
the Company on 27 February 2018. He holds a bachelor degree in
Economics from Shandong University of Finance and Economics, a
master degree in Economics from Carleton University and a doctor
degree in business administration from Business School Netherlands.
He has extensive experience in the financial and securities sector.
Mr. Xu has served as the deputy managing director of Industrial
Securities Co., Ltd since 2012 and is responsible for the development
and audit of bond financing projects as well as the promotion and
marketing of certain bond projects. Mr. Xu served as a director of
Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd from 2007 to 2012 and was
responsible for the sales and marketing and project coordination of
debt financing projects in Three Northeastern Provinces, Guizhou
Province and Shandong Province in China. He was also responsible
for the implementation and design of the lead underwriting projects
and has executed lead underwriting projects involving urban
infrastructure, transportation, electricity and energy, coal production
and other industries. From 2001 to 2003, Mr. Xu was appointed as
the program executive of the China Chamber of International
Commerce (Shandong Province) and was responsible for liaison with
foreign business partners during their business trips in China and
negotiations on business cooperation with foreign educational
institutions.
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Yu Qingrui, aged 46, is an executive director and a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company since 22 June 2016. Mr. Yu
specializes in property investment and trading business in the
People’s Republic of China. After graduating from high-school in
1989, Mr. Yu joined the shipping and trading business in the PRC.
He was the general manager of a shipping company before he
became a private investor in 2003. In 2011, Mr. Yu joined a
marketing and management firm in Shanghai and served as their
property investment manager. On 21 July 2014, Mr. Yu was engaged
to provide advisory and consultancy services relating to property
investments and trading to Future World Financial Holdings Limited
(a company listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, stock code: 572). Currently, Mr. Yu is an executive
director of Future World Financial Holdings Limited.

Lam Hay Yin, aged 37, is an executive director and a member of both
the Executive Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company since 20 July 2016. Ms. Lam holds a bachelor degree in
accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She has
extensive experience in property investment, brokerage and trading
fields.

Lee Chau Man Ada, aged 40, has been appointed as an executive
director and a member of the Executive Committee of the Company
on 18 September 2017. She holds a bachelor degree of system
engineering and engineering management from Chinese University of
Hong Kong. She also holds a master degree of practicing accounting
from Monash University, Australia and is a member of CPA (Certified
Practising Accountants) Australia. She has more than eight years of
experience in financial and accounting areas. Ms. Lee is the aunt of
Mr. Chen Xiaodong, an executive director of the Company.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Kwok Chi Kwong, aged 54, is an independent non-executive director
and the chairman of both the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee, and a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Kwok holds a master degree in business administration
from the University of Leicester. He is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practicing) registered with the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), an associate member of the HKICPA and a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Kwok has been a partner of JYC & Co since 2005. He has gained
more than 21 years of experience in auditing, accounting and finance
area.

Biographical Details of Directors
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Biographical Details of Directors
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Chen Youchun, aged 41, is an independent non-executive director
and a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Chen holds degree
of Bachelor of Laws from Southwest University of Political Science
and Law in 2000 and the University of Northumbria in 2011 and a
Master degree in Laws from Wuhan University in 2007. Mr. Chen is a
foreign lawyer registered with The Law Society of Hong Kong. Mr.
Chen has extensive experience in corporate financing, private equity,
venture capitals, IPO and listing, and mergers and acquisitions. Mr.
Chen has been a partner of the Shenzhen office of JunZeJun Law
Offices since 2006. Mr Chen was an independent director of
Shenzhen Century Plaza Hotel Co. Ltd. (a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 000033) from November
2010 to December 2015, and an independent director of Shenzhen
Qixin Construction Group Co. Ltd. (a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 002781) since December
2015 to September 2017.

Mr. Chen is an independent director of Hainan Honz Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock
code: 300086). He is also an independent non-executive director of
China Tangshang Holdings Limited (a company listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, stock code: 674)
(formerly known as “Culture Landmark Investment Limited”). On 16
October 2017, Mr. Chen was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited
(a company listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, stock code: 907).

Mai Qijian, aged 45, is an independent non-executive director and a
member of the Audit Committee of the Company since 22 June 2016.
Mr. Mai was graduated from Sun Yat-Seng University with a
bachelor’s degree. He is an associate actuary of the PRC and an
associate member of the China Association of Actuaries. Mr. Mai has
extensive experience in management.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of China Soft Power Technology Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Soft
Power Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 62 to 172, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the period ended from 1 April 2017 to 31 December
2017, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBEMHRE S

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
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accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

BREETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNETNNEERRETSE

Impairment assessment of available-for-sale equity investments

AR ERARE 2 BB L

The Group invested in certain equity securities listed in Hong
Kong and classified as available-for-sale equity investments. As at
31 December 2017, the balance amounted to
HK$1,710,695,000, after an impairment of HK$800,000
recognised in profit or loss during the period from 1 April 2017 to
31 December 2017. The impairment assessment involved
significant management judgement and estimation, taking into
account a number of factors, including the market conditions and
volatility of the stock market in Hong Kong.

Related disclosures about the available-for-sale equity investments
are included in notes 3 and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Our audit procedures included evaluating the
management’s assessment methodology and the inputs
and assumptions applied by management in performing
the impairment assessment at the end of each reporting
period, comparing the acquisition cost of equity
securities with fair value of the equity securities as at
the year end and subsequent to the year end. We also
reviewed the change in fair value of the equity
securities during the year.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

BREEEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AZBEMHRE S

BARETEE (H)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNETTONEERRETSEE

Impairment assessment of loan receivables and trade receivables from margin clients

EREFREURESEF 2 E SR REE

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying value of the Group’s loan
receivables and trade receivables from margin clients amounted
to HK$476,765,000 and HK$331,670,000 respectively. The
impairment assessment requires significant management
judgement and estimation. Management considers various factors,
including the ageing of the loan receivables, credit reports of
customers, existence of any disputes, pattern of settlement with
customers, value of collaterals held and other available
information concerning the creditworthiness of customers.

Related disclosures about loan receivables and trade receivables
from margin clients are included in notes 3, 18 and 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Our audit procedures included reviewing impairment
assessment on the loan receivables and trade
receivables from margin clients by checking the ageing
of the loan receivables balance, settlement pattern
during the year, post year-end receipts from customers,
the credit reports of customers, and the market value of
collaterals and obtaining other available information
concerning the creditworthiness of customers.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

BREEEE

FAEETEE ()

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMWETNMEERRETSE

Valuation of investment properties

REYFILE

As at 31 December 2017, the aggregate fair value of the Group’s
investment properties, including the investment property that are
part of the disposal group held for sale, was HK$830,000,000,
which represented 19.6% of the Group’s total assets. The
estimation of fair value of investment properties requires
management’s significant judgement.

Management commissions professional valuers to appraise the
fair value of the Group’s investment properties, and determines
the fair value of these properties with reference to the valuation
carried by the professional valuers. Related disclosure about
investment properties are included in notes 3 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Our audit procedures included reviewing the
objectivity, independence and expertise of the valuers
commissioned by the Group. We involved our
valuation specialists to assist us in reviewing the
valuation methodologies and assumptions adopted by
the valuers, assessing their related data as inputs for the
valuation and comparing them with market date of
comparable properties. We also assess the disclosures
relating to the assumptions used in determining the fair
values in the consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

BREEEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AZBEMHRE S

BARETEE (H)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNETTONEERRETSEE

Purchase price allocation for a business combination

EBEHZIBREDE

As at 31 December 2017, the Group acquired 66% equity interest
of Instant Achieve Limited (“Instant Achieve”) and as a result, the
Group’s interest in Instant Achieve increased from 34% to 100%
and Instant Achieve, together with its wholly owned subsidiaries
became the subsidiaries of the Company (the “Step Acquisition”).

Management of the Company accounted for the Step Acquisition
as a business combination and a gain on bargain purchase of
HK$5,370,000 was recognised. The key judgement exercised by
the management relates to the allocation of the purchase price to
the assets and liabilities acquired with reference to the valuation
carried by the professional valuer.

Related disclosure about the business combination and gain on
bargain purchase are included in notes 3 and 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Our audit procedures included reviewing the
objectivity, independence and expertise of the valuer
commissioned by the Group. We involved our
valuation specialists to assist us in evaluating the
valuation methodologies and assumptions adopted by
the valuer, assessing their related data as inputs for the
valuation.
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B ZBEMHRE S

Other information included in the Annual
Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AZBEMHRE S
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)
From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lee, Shun Yi Jasmine.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

23 March 2018

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AZBEMHRE S

BB B R e M B RRAREZ
E1E ()
HEBZEERBR FER  AAREPLE
BEUFREEMBRR 2B RAEE - AME
PR BRTR FH o FFIE AR AT R 45 o i
FE - BIPERERTAFARREEL TR -
SEMHTERZERT - MRAREBER IR
LR BBEBRER Y AARRBBELZ AR
Rk - ROGRETBARE RBBZEE -

HEARB I ZBENRE 2 BT HBABARTI
5%0

RXEEEH A
EAES e

EBPIR
INEE TR
RiEARE2E

—E-N\E=A=+=H
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017 —E—+FMA—AZE =T —+tF+-_F=+—HHH

For the period
from 1 April 2017
to 31 December

2017

Notes
(Eal  HK$'000 F & T

REVENUE ' ON

Electronic and accessory products BEFREEEm =

Financial investments and services MR E KRS 185,490

Brokerage and commission income SRS T AN 38,965

Property investments MERE 3,600

5 228,055

Cost of electronic and accessory EEBTREEEMER

products sold -
Brokerage and commission expenses rrERRAERx (3,930)

(3,930)

Gross profit/(loss) EF(E18) 224,125
Other income and gains E AU A W a 5 601
Administrative expenses TR 2 (36,470)
Other operating expenses Hh &8 < (5,420)
Finance costs MsER 6 (53,385)
Unrealised fair value gains on FREREATETIRZ

equity investments at fair value RAIRE 2 KRBT

through profit or loss, net N EWEEFEE 121,623
Gain/(loss) on disposal of available- HEHEERTIEE 2

for-sale equity investments Wz (E51E) 14 20,620
Gain on revaluation of investment REMEE LW

properties 16 91,033
Impairment loss of available-for-sale A ERAIRE 2 REEE

equity investments (800)
Share of profit of associates Pok(=E: i —Y/NC | 35 6,459
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWMB AR 2 W 34 -
Loss on step acquisition DR EER 34 (381)
Gain on bargain purchase AEBE WS 5,370
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRBLADRR] (B5E) 7 373,375
Income tax expense PSR 10 (4,520)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR A HiR,FE R Fl/(&E8) 368,855
Attributable to: &1

Owners of the parent (SYNCIEZZ DN 368,855

Non-controlling interests FEFRRSHE 5 —

368,855

PROFIT/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE £ 2\ 7] & @Rz 355 A FE(G

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS BREF(BR)

OF THE PARENT
Basic N 12 HK$0.03 & 7T
Diluted B8 HK$0.03 78 7T

62  China Soft Power Technology Holdings Limited FEIHE AR EE@AER A 7

For the

year ended

31 March

2017

HE
—T—tF
=A=+—H
WFE
HK$'000 77T

2,525
(54,653)

(156,397)

(156,397)

(156,397)

(156,397)

HK$(0.02) 7% 7T

HK$(0.02) 7 7T




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meEEEREE

For the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017 —E—+F A —HE T —+F+=-F=+— A

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR  ZHARS SR #EF,(FE)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hitt2ERa
Other comprehensive income to REERBBEFHEEER
be reclassified to profit or loss Z EAfth 2 EWES
in subsequent periods:
Available-for-sale investments: AMHERE :
Equity investments: RAKE -

Changes in fair value, net of tax
Reclassification adjustments for gains/

R EED - BRHIR
HERESRABERRAZ

(losses) included in the consolidated Wzt /(18 ) #1T

statement of profit and loss: BN OBRE

— (Gain)/loss on disposal —HE (%), /B8

— Impairment losses —REEE
Exchange differences: PEN R

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

Release of exchange fluctuation reserve
upon disposal of subsidiaries

Release of exchange fluctuation reserve
upon deregistration of a subsidiary

BEBINER 2R EH

FA 5 P B 1 R B R [
PE SR B
REUH R — R 8 2~ 7R
PE SR B

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR  ZAHIR "EEH M2 mks
THE PERIOD/YEAR, NET OF TAX BRBi%Z

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR  ZHIR, “FE2EWEALE
THE PERIOD/YEAR

Attributable to: FEAS -
Owners of the parent BREIERA
Non-controlling interests FEFER R i

For the period

from 1 April 2017 For the
to 31 December year ended
2017 31 March
—E—tF 2017
MA—R=Z S
—E—tF —T—tF
+T=A=t+—H EF=—E
e LLFE
GECOIE oAl HK$/000 TH7T
368,855 (156,397)
601,106 392,611
(20,620) 48,186
800 3,947
581,286 444,744
(1,199)
881
890
581,286 445,316
950,141 288,919
950,141 288,919
950,141 288,919
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BFBAMRR R

As at 31 December 2017 R =T —+F+=-F=+—H

31 December

2017

—E—tF

Notes +=A=+—H
(iEsd  HK$'000 T3 7T

31 March

2017
—E—tfF
=RA=+—H
HK$'000 T 7T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y -~ BB MR 13 5,006 3,631
Investment property REMH* 14 430,000 -
Intangible assets BIVEE 15 500 -
Available-for-sale equity investments AIHEHEERARE 16 1,710,695 1,121,372
Deposits biogcia 21 9,915 27,947
Total non-current assets FEREBEERE 2,156,116 1,152,950
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Loan receivables fElNE = 18 476,765 180,656
Trade receivables FEUWE 5 IR 5K 19 391,219 -
Loans to directors BEEY-EN 20 = 31,900
Prepayments, deposits and BNFIE - 'ER

other receivables H b fE IR BR FR 21 30,060 5,400
Equity investments at fair value FEBBRERAFEIIR

through profit or loss ZBRARE 17 560,368 49,500
Cash and bank balances RE NIRITET 22 123,387 4,045
Bank balances held on behalf of clients RKEZEFIFHIRITEF 23 90,624 =

1,672,423 271,501

Assets of a disposal group classified DERFIELEEZ

as held for sale HEARIEE 11 400,109 -
Total current assets MENEEHRE 2,072,532 271,501
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade payables B E SR 24 208,078 502
Other payables and accruals HAtb eI R e & 25 22,378 21,796
Shareholder loan [REI=EN 27 122,000 =
Other borrowings HibfEE 26 525,930 -
Bank borrowings RITEE 26 167,763 =
Bank overdrafts SR1TE Y 26 59,494 =
Tax payable IR 9,023 -

1,114,666 22,298

Liabilities directly associated with the DB AIFIEHE 2 BE

assets classified as held for sale BEEE@AE 11 139,314 -
Total current liabilities mENB BB 1,253,980 22,298
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFRE 818,552 249,203
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERBERRBAEE

LIABILITIES 2,974,668 1,402,153
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Notes payable B EE 28 86,574 86,574
Bank borrowings RITEE 26 164,056 -
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIARE 29 134 -
Total non-current liabilities MBI B EERE 250,764 86,574
Net assets REE 2,723,904 1,315,579
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A MR R

As at 31 December 2017 A=-Z—+&F+=-HA=+—H

31 December 31 March
2017 2017
—E—tF —T—tF
N = H=+1"H EF=—E
EERN HK$000 T/870 PRl EHUIR Ry
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of ISENGIE Eo PN
the parent
Share capital f&Zs 30 127,167 89,651
Reserves = 31 2,596,737 1,225,928
Total equity HERERR 2,723,904 1,315,579
Chen Xiaodong Yu Qingrui
PR EE 3R REH
Director Director
EE EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017 —ZZ—+FHA—HBE =T —tF 1
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERETREBR

For the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017 —E—+FMA—AZE =T —+tF+-_F=+—HHH

Notes
g3
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETBH2
ACTIVITIES RERE
Profit/(loss) before tax BRELATREF](E58)
Adjustments for: S THNEB AR
Bank interest income RITHBA 5
Finance costs MIEER 6
Depreciation e 13
Impairment loss of available-for-sale AMEHERRKRE 2
equity investments B EE 16
Impairment of trade receivables FEUE B IR FURE 19
Write off of items of property, HsEZE
plant and equipment s K & s TE B 7
Write off of deposits and WiERE &
other receivables H fth FE U TRIR 7
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BE X
plant and equipment ®RiBER 2 W 7
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME ARz s 35
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary ~ EUH M — M B A Al
Z Wz 7
(Gain)/loss on disposal of available- & AT S AR AR
for-sale equity investments K&z (W), BE
Fair value gains on equity investments BB EmIZAFESRZ
at fair value through profit or loss, BARE 2 R FE
net Was - R
Equity-settled share option EEEE 2
arrangements, net BT FE
Gain on bargain purchase HEBENKE Bl
Loss on step acquisition D& ERUE 2 518 Bl
Share of profit of associates pakl=) NGV vl
Gain on revaluation of investment BEREMEZ WA
properties 14
Dividend income from investment FARABFREZ
in listed equity securities EsLION 5

68  China Soft Power Technology Holdings Limited FEIHE AR EE@AER A 7

For the period

from 1 April 2017 For the
to 31 December year ended
2017 31 March

—E—tF 2017
mA—B=Z® HZE
—E—+tF —T—+tF
+=A=+—H =A=+—H”
B LLFE

HK$’000 T& T EEELEHIEDz: e

373,375 (156,397)
(1) 9)
53,385 969
1,505 50
3,947

1,175

3,015

436

(95)

(15,566)

(4,208)

(20,620) 48,186
(121,623) (20,250)
= 60,600
(5,370) -
381 -
(6,459) -
(91,033) -
(157,687) -
26,972 (78,147)



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

NG = =1
%nﬁiﬁiﬂmEEE

For the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017 —ZE—+FMA -—BEZ-"FE—+F+ - A=+—HHH

Notes
Bt =
Increase in loan receivables JFE U B SR N
(Increase)/decrease in equity investments & BB ZEIEAFEYIERZ
at fair value through profit or loss REAIEE (3 n), R
Increase in trade receivables U E SRR FIE 0
Decrease/(increase) in loans to directors [Al—HZEEEZOR D,/ (3 h0)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and ~ FEfIFIE - 1#&& R H b EIL
other receivables IR AN
Decrease in bank balances held on REEFPFAZIRITER
behalf of clients Ve
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables FERHE SRR OB ),/
(Decrease)/increase in other payables EM eI R ERTE R
and accruals CRLd), /1
Exchange realignment bEE 3, SR B
Cash used in operations REXBABRE
Interest paid ENFE
Tax paid [EENETAE]
Net cash flows used in operating KEEBFTRAZ
activities Rene R
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REED
ACTIVITIES RERE
Purchases of items of property, BEWE BER
plant and equipment B
Net proceeds from disposal HEHRBRARZ
of subsidiaries PSR F 5
Deregistration of a subsidiary BUE T — B A7)
Deposit paid for acquisition of WiE— M E A RZ
a subsidiary EANHEA
Acquisition of available-for-sale Ui AT i &
equity investments RAIRE
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE - BFERKHER
property, plant and equipment Z PSR
Proceeds from disposal of available- HEAHEERRKE
for-sale equity investments Z PSR
Interest received [=A &) 5
Acquisition of assets through acquisition & 3BUWIEHI B A FUKIBE E
of subsidiaries
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — Rl P A A 34

Dividend received

AR R

Net cash flows (used in)/from
investing activities

REES(FA)/FiiE2

Beme#e

For the period

from 1 April 2017 For the
to 31 December year ended
2017 31 March
—E—tF 2017
MA—R=Z S
—E—tF —T—tF
+T=A=t+—H =A=+—~”
e LLFE
QUG- Pl HK$'000 T8 7T

(296,109) (180,656)
(344,476) 143,927

(150,788) (1,175)

31,900 (31,900)

(41,492) (57,696)
178,202 -
(85,870) 499
(17,554) 8,457

- (1,199)

(699,215) (197,890)

(43,764) (31)

- (179)

(742,979) (198,100)

(18)

168,504

(12)

(22,000)

(197,653)

95

124,013

9

(253,000) =
(31,917) —
100,370 —
(109,505) 72,938
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

S ATH AN =
%méﬁ%iﬁﬁiﬁ

For the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017 —Z—+FMA-—AZ-ZE—+F+ - A=+—HHH

For the period

from 1 April 2017

to 31 December

2017

=E—tF

mA—BZE

=E—tF
+=A=+—H

Notes HA R
(S HK$'000 T8 7T

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Net proceeds from placing of new shares

Net proceeds from the exercise of
bonus warrants
Net proceeds from issue of notes
Loan advance from/(repaid) to
a shareholder
Proceeds from bank borrowings
Repayment of bank borrowings
Proceeds from other borrowings

BMEED

RERg

FC & # LD FT 1S SR F 88
TTEAT M R
PSSR
BITRRPRSFRFHE
xa,/ (EE8)
—BBRRZERK
RITEEMSHR
BRRITEE
HiEEMERA

198,484

122,000
162,000

(96,056)
525,930

Net cash flows from financing activities

MERPELEZREREFH

912,358

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) INCASH RE&NBRESZSEEBZ

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #h,/ (Rd) B 59,874
Cash and bank balances at beginning B/ FNzEE R

of period/year RITEETF 4,045
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B ERZBEER

AT END OF PERIOD/YEAR RE%ERAE 63,919
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH REeRBAEEEER

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HEEzom
Cash and bank balances BE RBTER 22 123,387
Cash and cash equivalents included in st AR EABIEHEHE

the disposal group classified as held AplzHe Kk

for sale ReEEIEBER 11 26
Bank overdraft RITEX 26 (59,494)

63,919
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For the

year ended

31 March

2017

HZE
—T—+F
=A=+—H”
IEFE
HK$'000 F 7T

(82,471)

86,516

4,045

4,045




Notes to Financial Statements

Corporate and Group Information

China Soft Power Technology Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company was
located at Rooms 1603-5, 16/F., Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The principal place of business of
the Company subsequently changed to Unit 6706B—-08A, Level
67, International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West,
Kowloon, Hong Kong in April 2017.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in the securities and futures
dealing business, financial investment, property investments
and money lending business.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2017 are as follows:

BA A5 RaR MY AL

31 December 2017 = ZE—+&+=A=+—H

ARIREERER

FRESENRIREBRER AR ([ARAR]) A
RBREFIMEZZBERAR - KRFEE
EEMBIEN ARBETELITEIIRE
BARE1611603-5% - KAAAIFEELZEH
BEHER-_ZT—+FWAEE ABENEN
TRER1SIRIE 5 E% 672 6706B-08A

=
=
£z °

ARREBEBRIEER - AEEEEHR
FRSMMEEERY WHRE - WER
BRMEHE -

B A B 2 B
N—F—tE+-A=+—R ARALE
HBARZFENT -

Percentage of equity
attributable to
the Company
FRAEEREZ
A

Place of Issued ordinary/

incorporation registered
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities

HRRLE BRALER
DEAEB ERCEHY EfRA BE B  FEXRED
Hoshing Limited* British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding

RERARES 1% REZR
Sino Electronics Limited* British Virgin Islands Us$2 - 100 Investment holding

RERARES 25X REZR
Chonggqing Electronics Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of electronic and

accessory products
A FBRAAE BE 28T EEEfRREER
139 Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Us$2 - 100 Provision of administrative
services

1BILRAERAR B 2ETT RETHRE
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Notes to Financial Statements
SR R BT

31 December 2017 —Z—+&F+=-HA=+—H

1. Corporate and Group Information 1. RAREEES (&)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) MEARZEFR (M)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 RZE—+tF+-_A=+—H8 ' ARFEE
December 2017 are as follows: (continued) MEARZHBENT : (8&)

Percentage of equity

attributable to
the Company
FRFEEREZ
Bal
Place of Issued ordinary/
incorporation registered
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
MR BRITEER/
kL RSy A MRA B ME IEERED
Chaifa Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Provision of finance services
BEMBAERARF B 2T R AT AR
Main Purpose Investments British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100 Investment in and trading
Limited Hong Kong of securities
RERARRE/BE 17T RERBEERS
Desert Gold Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100 Investment in and trading
(formerly known Hong Kong of securities
as “NWS Holdings Limited”)
(A58 [NWS Holdings Limited ) HEB#BREES,/ &% 17T REREEES
Celestial Lodge Limited* British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
REAARES 17T BEER
Top Billion Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Money Lending
BERBEARAR B 28T HE
Winsey Enterprises Ltd British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
REAARES 17T BEER
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1.

Corporate and Group Information

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2017 are as follows: (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 ER R M R

31 December 2017 —Z—+&F+=-HA=+—H

REAREEER ()

MEBAR &R (&)
R-ZZE—+F+-HA=1+—8 ' KRFFE
MEBARZFENT « (8)

Percentage of equity

attributable to
the Company
ARFEMGREZ
Bl
Place of Issued ordinary/
incorporation registered
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
FMRILER BRTLER
AREH ERCEHE T RA =8 BE IEEKED
Central Wealth Securities Hong Kong HK$200,000,000 - 100 Brokerage and related
Investment Limited services
hEEFREFRAA BE 200,000,000 7T Gy
Central Wealth Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,100 = 100 Brokerage and related
services
hEHERERAF BE 10,000,100/ 7T Gy
Goodview Assets Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Property investment
EBHERMRES (Ev MERE
Sky Eagle Global Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
EBHERMRES Ev REER
Instant Achieve Limited* British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
EEBR AR EBHERMRES Ev REER

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the

Ernst & Young global network
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Notes to Financial Statements
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2.1.

74

Corporate and Group Information
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

During the period, the Group acquired Instant Achieve Limited
(“Instant Achieve”) and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Central
Wealth Securities Investment Limited (“CWSI”) and Central
Wealth Futures Limited (“CWF”) from Future World Financial
Holdings Limited (“FWF”). Further details of this acquisition are
included in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

On 29 December 2017, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with FWF, pursuant to which the Group
agreed to dispose of its entire equity interest in Goodview
Assets Limited. The disposal of Goodview Assets Limited is
expected to be completed within 12 months subsequent to the
year end date. Further details of the proposed disposal are
included in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for listed equity investments and investment property
which have been measured at fair value. The disposal group
held for sale is stated at the lower of its carrying amount and
fair value less cost to sell as further explained in note 2.4. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

2.1.

REAIREEEFR (&)

MEQRzER (&)

iR - AEERARER S BIERAR D F]
(TFWF] WEEBNZEBR AR ([BE D RE2
BEMBARTERFREGRAR ([HES
) EPEREARAR((HEHRED - #
RWIE 2 — P BERN A M B HRRM T
34 -

R-E—+FE+-_A-+hB AEHHE
FWFET BEE Wi @ Bt - AEEREHE
H A Goodview Assets Limited 2 % SBHHE o
& Goodview Assets Limited T8 2 75 7 4F 4%
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2.1. Basis of Preparation (continued)

Change of financial year end date

During the period, the board of directors of the Company
resolved to change the financial year end date of the Company
from 31 March to 31 December effective from 31 December
2017 in order to align the financial year end date of the
subsidiaries, Instant Achieve and its wholly owned subsidiaries,
CWSI and CWF (collectively referred to as the “Instant Achieve
Group”). The consolidated financial statements presented for
the current period therefore covered a nine-month period from
1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017. The corresponding
comparative amounts presented for the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the
consolidated statement of cash flows and related notes, which
are prepared for the year from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017,
may not be comparable with amounts shown for the current
period.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the period from 1 April 2017 to
31 December 2017. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing

whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

2.1.

Notes to Financial Statements
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Notes to Financial Statements
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2.1. Basis of Preparation (continued)

76

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2. Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures
The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to Disclosure of Interests in Other
HKFRS 12 included in Entities: Clarification of the Scope
Annual Improvements of HKFRS 12
to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

The nature and the impact of the amendments are described
below:

e Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash flows
and non-cash changes. The Group has provided the
information for the current period in note 32(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

J Amendments to HKAS 12 clarify that an entity, when
assessing whether taxable profits will be available against
which it can utilise a deductible temporary difference,
needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of
taxable profits against which it may make deductions on
the reversal of that deductible temporary difference.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how
an entity should determine future taxable profits and
explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may
include the recovery of some assets for more than their
carrying amount. The amendments have had no
significant impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group as the Group has no deductible
temporary differences or assets that are in the scope of the
amendments.

e Amendments to HKFRS 12 clarify that the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12, other than those disclosure
requirements in paragraphs B10 to B16 of HKFRS 12,
apply to an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture
or an associate, or a portion of its interest in a joint
venture or an associate that is classified as held for sale or
included in a disposal group classified as held for sale.
The amendments have had no impact on the consolidated
financial position or performance of the Group as the
Group's subsidiary classified as disposal group held for
sale as at 31 December 2017 is a wholly-owned
subsidiary and so no additional information is required to
be disclosed.

Notes to Financial Statements
TG ERER M

31 December 2017 —Z—+&F+=-HA=+—H

22. BT RSB REKE

AEBERAFEPHEREF ERRAUT
#a] RERI BB BRELER -

EalEB G ER  KETE

F75% i
EHEY Rt AR RZ
F125% BRI IR B E

BT —F—MFE HKEXAEMERZ
—FNFHEz Bz BEEEANE

FRUERZH HEERE 12 5%
BEMBRE Z B

RERFE 1255

BRI 2B R E&nT

s BREBASEMNE7TRATEER
HEA BRI EREAFERE LD
FMELAEES(BREAS MRS
B) 2 WEEF - REBRERS 5
RIFE32(0) IREAHE 2 BRAEHR -

e EFEAEERFLREFERN
FHE DA ERBUE M 7] B EEM A
REREZHEE  FEERREREE
B AU E B Z R D A BER
2 R M 2 SRA PR §l © 1t
S B RIS R] B B 78 FE 40 (7] B TE R 2R
FER B MR L1 5| - W ARE FE SR
A A B EEBREE N E
EZIER - AR ASEE I E A A0
MERZEABETRENCEE -
BRABTHAREZMHRREKE
WERIMEATE -

o BRI BAMBREENZ12RESSE
B BREERE 122 BBERT(F
B ERE R E 125 EB10EB16
BZHERTHIN BRANEERIE
NAE AR ESBE N A 2R
KERDEAFIEHESRFADES
BIEHEZREHF 242k
BRAlzEZ ARAERER_F
—+tE+ - A=+—HBoEAZER
EZHEAFIZHBRARA—BEE
B G - BERKREBEINER - Bt
BRABFTHAEER ZGE MSAR Rk
RIRWHES L o

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F %R 77



Notes to Financial Statements

I SRR MR

31 December 2017 —Z—+&F+=-HA=+—H

2.3. Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong

78

Financial Reporting Standards
The Group has not applied the following new and revised

2.3. B {18 14 K 3 2 B B S
& %R

AEE W BN I FH B RERRAIATERM

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'
Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Financial Instruments'

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation*

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers'

Leases®

Insurance Contracts®

Long-term Interest in Associates and
Joint Ventures®

Transfer of Investment Property’

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration'

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28’

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS11,
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2.3. Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (continued)
The nature and impact of new and revised HKFRS expected to
be relevant to the Group are described below:

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August 2016
that address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions
on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction; the classification of a share-based payment
transaction with net settlement features for withholding a
certain amount in order to meet an employee’s tax obligation
associated with the share-based payment; and accounting
where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-
based payment transaction changes its classification from cash-
settled to equity-settled. The amendments clarify that the
approach used to account for vesting conditions when
measuring equity-settled share-based payments also applies to
cash-settled share-based payments. The amendments introduce
an exception so that a share-based payment transaction with
net share settlement features for withholding a certain amount
in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation is classified in its
entirety as an equity-settled share-based payment transaction
when certain conditions are met. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction are modified, with the result that it
becomes an equity-settled share-based payment transaction,
the transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled transaction
from the date of the modification. On adoption, entities are
required to apply the amendments without restating prior
periods, but retrospective application is permitted if they elect
to adopt for all three amendments and other criteria are met.
The Group will adopt the amendments from 1 January 2018.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

2.3.
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2.3. Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of
HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group will adopt HKFRS 9 from 1
January 2018. The Group will not restate comparative
information and will recognise any transition adjustments
against the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018. The
expected impacts relate to the classification and measurement
and the impairment requirements are summarised as follows:

80

(@

(b)

Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption of HKFRS 9
will have a significant impact on the classification and
measurement of its financial assets. It expects to continue
measuring at fair value all financial assets currently held
at fair value.

Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
recorded at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts that are
not accounted for at fair value through profit or loss under
HKFRS 9, to be recorded based on an expected credit loss
model either on a twelve-month basis or a lifetime basis.
The Group will apply the simplified approach and record
lifetime expected losses that are estimated based on the
present values of all cash shortfalls over the remaining life
of all of its trade receivables. Furthermore, the Group will
apply the general approach and record twelve-month
expected credit losses that are estimated based on the
possible default events on its other receivables within the
next twelve months. The Group does not expect that the
adoption of HKFRS 9 will have a significant impact on
the Company’s overall financial performance and
financial position upon initial application. Moreover, the
Group will perform a more detailed analysis which
considers all reasonable and supportable information,
including forward-looking elements, for estimation of
expected credit losses on its trade and other receivables
upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.
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2.3. Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (continued)
HKFRS 15 was issued in July 2014 and establishes a new five-
step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements, including disaggregation
of total revenue, information about performance obligations,
changes in contract asset and liability account balances
between periods and key judgements and estimates. The
standard will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under HKFRSs. In June 2016, the HKICPA issued
amendments to HKFRS 15 to address the implementation issues
on identifying performance obligations, application guidance
on principal versus agent and licences of intellectual property,
and transition. The amendments are also intended to help
ensure a more consistent application when entities adopt
HKFRS 15 and reduce the cost and complexity of applying the
standard. The Company will adopt the new standard from 1
January 2018 and plans to adopt the full retrospective
approach.

The Company expects that the adoption of HKFRS 15 will have
no impact on the timing of the revenue recognition and the
accounting for warranties but additional disclosures on the
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows arising from contracts with customers will be required.

2.3.
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2.3. Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong

82

Financial Reporting Standards (continued)
HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016, replaces HKAS 17 Leases,
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and
HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two elective
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets
and short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a
lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the
lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use
asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the revaluation model is applied. The lease
liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the
lease liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will
be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the
lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use
asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease
liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change
in the lease term and change in future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the
right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 17.
Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees
and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under
HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard using either
a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. As
disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements, at 31
December 2017, the Group had future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate
of approximately HK$37,491,000. Upon adoption of HKFRS
16, certain amounts included therein may need to be
recognised as new right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.
Further analysis, however, will be needed to determine the
amount of new rights of use assets and lease liabilities to be
recognised, including, but not limited to, any amounts relating
to leases of low-value assets and short term leases, other
practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and new leases entered
into before the date of adoption. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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2.3. Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 40, issued in April 2017, clarify when an
entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development, into or out of investment
property. The amendments state that a change in use occurs
when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is evidence of the change in use.
A mere change in management’s intentions for the use of a
property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The
amendments should be applied prospectively to the changes in
use that occur on or after the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies the amendments. An
entity should reassess the classification of property held at the
date that it first applies the amendments and, if applicable,
reclassify property to reflect the conditions that exist at that
date. Retrospective application is only permitted if it is possible
without the use of hindsight. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 January 2018. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22, issued in June 2017, provides guidance on
how to determine the date of the transaction when applying
HKAS 21 to the situation where an entity receives or pays
advance consideration in a foreign currency and recognises a
non-monetary asset or liability. The interpretation clarifies that
the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) is the date on which an entity
initially recognises the non-monetary asset (such as a
prepayment) or non-monetary liability (such as deferred
income) arising from the payment or receipt of the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance of recognising the related item, the entity must
determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration. Entities may apply the interpretation
on a full retrospective basis or on a prospective basis, either
from the beginning of the reporting period in which the entity
first applies the interpretation or the beginning of the prior
reporting period presented as comparative information in the
financial statements of the reporting period in which the entity
first applies the interpretation. The Group expects to adopt the
interpretation prospectively from 1 January 2018. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

2.3.

Notes to Financial Statements
TG ERER M

31 December 2017 —E—+F+=-A=+—H

E BB RER 2 E B TR
=28 (&)
A E SRR E 40BN =T —LFm

Hﬁ%’ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%%(a%ﬁ@ﬁ%?
Ry EAREHREMENER - 25
BRIIEREMER S U TBRARENED
& BEZFBRATHARERR - W%E%
BEH o WEEFEE REMERR
KRR NER &%fﬁﬁﬂﬁé
E%Wgﬁﬂmﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁmirﬁiﬂ
Mk BHEENAEEE - BEREEFTH
BRERAZEE J”‘EF)’T%%%%% D
I@Mﬁ@éﬁ“@%¥u&%*ﬁﬁﬁm
ﬂ L%ﬁ%@k%ﬁﬁ EF| A% R 2 8
MiER - AEEBEHE =T \F—A—H
ﬁ_%EHI%K%NEifif RITEHR - ZEBII TS
REBHISHREBRERMBEATE -

BE (AR BRERBEZES)REE22
BN —E—LFNARM - BEEBER

F21RERAE  ZRERERBAETE AN
BUBSEXNRNRENRZ2BH - A&
ﬁEE SFEREESGFERABRMES - %

R BEVAREREBEE  Mx
1451 S(HEBY)AERAEXRNRZEMAE

BURER N RUMBNREELENIFE
%éﬁ?(%ﬁﬂiﬁﬁ, H)HGEEERE(HIN

LLH&Z/\)ZEIHJ% MR BIE B R
RIS AR RTIRER - BRRVABE B8R

ﬂ‘J‘jZHKHX@THch’iE’J XZEH - BREABTY
RERZRENRERMEXE AT —EHRS
H(2AERNAERZZREZREHN
MBEBRPEINZLBER) ML 2HE
PR ARERZRE ASERHE -
T N\F—A—HEREARAZZE - FHH

ZEER T EHAKRENBHRREXENE
N2

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F %R 83



Notes to Financial Statements
SR R BT

31 December 2017 —Z—+&F+=-HA=+—H

2.3.

24.
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Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)
HK(FRIC)-Int 23, issued in July 2017, addresses the accounting
for income taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments
involve uncertainty that affects the application of HKAS 12
(often referred to as “uncertain tax positions”). The
interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside the
scope of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements
relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax
treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether
an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii) the
assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax
treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity
considers changes in facts and circumstances. The
interpretation is to be applied retrospectively, either fully
retrospectively without the use of hindsight or retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of application as an adjustment to
the opening equity at the date of initial application, without the
restatement of comparative information. The Group expects to
adopt the interpretation from 1 January 2019. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its listed equity investments at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
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2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

86

(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)
The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of
the Group’s investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted
for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control over the
joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit
or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-Current Asset Held For Sale and Discounted
Operation.
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2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measures the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within

equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group'’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.
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2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

88

(continued)

Business combination and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as
at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstance is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than financial
assets and a disposal group classified as held for sale), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

90

(continued)
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s (a)
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or 19

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following (b)
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(ii)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is

a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over the following estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:
Leasehold improvements ~ Over the remaining lease terms or
3 years, whichever is shorter
Motor vehicles, furniture, 3 to 5 years

fixtures and equipment

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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(continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a
property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end
of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sales transaction rather than through continuing use.
For this to be the case, the asset or disposal group must be
available for immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for the sale of such
assets or disposal groups and its sale must be highly probable.
All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary classified as a disposal
group are reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether the
Group retains a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary
after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than investment
properties and financial assets) classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values
less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or
amortised.
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2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as
operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases are charged to the statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial investments, as appropriate.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable
to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:
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(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading. Financial assets are classified
as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by HKAS
39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. These net
fair value changes do not include any dividends earned on
these financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with
the policy set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows
that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a
financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in other income and gains in the statement of profit
or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in other
operating expenses for receivables.
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2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair
value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-
sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or
loss.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable
to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the
Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in
equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to
be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified
to the statement of profit or loss.
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(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

(@) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

(b)  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (i) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (ii) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral
has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.
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(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance amount. If a write off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to other operating expenses in the
statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair
value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss — is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through the
statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which
the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, shareholder loan and notes payable.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and bank balances

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and
cash at banks, which are not restricted as to use.

Bank balances held on behalf of clients

The Group has classified the clients” monies as bank balances
held on behalf of customers under the current assets section of
the consolidated financial position and recognised a
corresponding trade payable to respective clients on grounds
that is liable for any loss or misappropriation of clients’” monies.
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2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of the
reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in
the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

102

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

China Soft Power Technology Holdings Limited FEIZE AR EBER A 7
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2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  2.4. T B2 BURHIE (&)

(continued)

Revenue recognition WA TR

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic WAL BN REE A semNAEEBRA
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be RS A] et B R ARIE T A EERER

measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@ from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and (a)
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) commission and brokerage income from securities and (b)
futures trading, on a trade date basis;

(c) service fee income, when the relevant service has been (c)
rendered,;
(d)  the profit or loss on trading of equity investments at fair (d)

value through profit or loss, on the transaction dates
when the relevant contract notes are exchanged;

(e) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease (e)
terms;
(f)  interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective ()

interest rate method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(g) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive (@
payment has been established.

104  China Soft Power Technology Holdings Limited FEISX B &l EEH R F

REEEHR HRERBEAEZER
R hEMERTE  MAREY
ZECDEEMBR T2 ERERARA
BEBZERE T IABREAEMEG
*EHTTEEWL‘\’

ErRHEEE2ME RELKA
ﬁz 25 B ESERER

RIEBWA - RIRH A RARIS R RERR

REBEBEBRRAFEIIKRIBA
BEZGNKERORNEHEAORIE
R7 R ZEER

HeWA - REFELHIEEREHR

27 .
[

FIEWA - RIBEEREMN X IRETE
YE AT % & Bh T B 75 HA BA PR ok 52 45 AP
(A0 A ) BV 5 AR 2R IR & [0 SR e 1
ﬁiﬁﬁiﬁﬂéﬁﬁgﬁ/ﬁ*fﬁmtb—v—u 7-v-;
K

PR B LY EE B N R 2 B
RN HER



2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair
value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is
determined by an external valuer using the binomial model,
further details of which are set out in note 33 to the financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of
an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.
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2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Other employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
all of its employees. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when
the employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
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2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the end of the reporting
period. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, estimates
and assumptions, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Impairment assessment of available-for-sale equity
investments

The Group classifies certain assets as available for sale and
recognises movements of their fair values in equity. When the
fair value declines, management makes assumptions about the
decline in value to determine whether there is an impairment
should be recognised in profit or loss. During the period from 1
April 2017 to 31 December 2017, an impairment loss of
HK$800,000 has been recognised (31 March 2017:
HK$3,947,000). The carrying amount of the Group’s available-
for-sale financial assets as at 31 December 2017 was
HK$1,710,695,000 (31 March 2017: HK$1,121,372,000) in
aggregate, details of which are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

Impairment assessment of loan receivables and trade
receivables from margin clients

The Group assesses at the end of the reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a loan receivable and
receivables from margin clients are impaired. To determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment, the Group
considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or
significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default or
significant delay in payments. Where there is objective
evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future cash
flows are estimated based on aging of its receivable balances,
debtors’ creditworthiness, past repayment history, historical
write off experience and value of collateral held. Details are set
out in notes 18 and 19.

Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at their fair values. The fair
value at the end of each reporting period was based on a
valuation on these properties estimated by the Directors or
conducted by an independent firm of professionally qualified
valuers using direct comparison method which involve making
assumptions, including prices realised on actual sales of
comparable properties, on certain market conditions.
Favourable or unfavourable changes to these assumptions
would result in changes in the fair values of the Group’s
investment properties and the corresponding adjustments to the
gain or loss recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and 3. A E R &5 ()
Estimates (continued)
Purchase price allocation for a business combination %i%AQ{CZEEEEﬁEE
The calculation of the gain on bargain purchase required ATERERENET EHFTRER #AEE
significant judgements on the fair values of the identifiable METEEAERRERSHZATFEEREKR
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date. FIET - BIRE TR E E M EM A PTIEE AT
Management commissions professional valuers to appraise the BRIBENFTAEABZATE  WRER
fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities EEMTETHEEEZEBEE WS -
assumed, and determines the gain on bargain purchase with
reference to the valuation carried by the professional valuers.
Related discourse about the gain on bargain purchase and the ZEEBWSNERSHF 2 BERES NS
business combination are included in note 34 to the éﬂﬁﬁ%e&i%%ﬁ% °
consolidated financial statements.
Valuation of share options B IR ML E
As described in note 33 to the financial statements, the AN SRR M 33 ATl - R AR RS
Company engaged an independent firm of professionally VEESERGEMTHHEBE_T—+
qualified valuer to assist in the valuation of the share options FH-A=T—HILEFERE ZEREETT
granted during the year ended 31 December 2017. The fair {51E - BIREEIE NI HERE L AT
values of options granted under the share option schemes were ENRAZBAAREEEAETE - 5 AZ
determined using the binomial option pricing model. The Bz EASESERBARONEHBEZ
significant inputs into the model included share price at the IRE - ERERFE  THEERBHERE -2
grant date, risk-free interest rate, exercise price and expected BASEERERERINERE MR -
volatility of the underlying shares. When the actual results of BRERNRRERERS RIEEERER
the inputs differ from management’s estimate, this will have an - BHE—_TE—+tF+_A=+—HIH
impact on share option expenses and the related share option M AR WERDEAERE BEZT
reserve of the Company. No share options was granted by the —tEF=A=1T—HILEFE KAAMKELY
Company during the period ended 31 December 2017. The fair FERR#E 2 A 1B 5 60,600,0008 7T °c HEZ
value of the share options granted by the Company during the Z—+tFE=A=1+—RHILFE  EERER
year ended 31 March 2017 was HK$60,600,000. The share R 32 60,600,000 78 TT °
option expense of HK$60,600,000 was recognised during the
year ended 31 March 2017.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses carried
forward to the extent that it is probable (i.e., more likely than
not) that future taxable profits will be available against which
the unused tax losses can be utilised, based on all available
evidence. Recognition primarily involves judgement regarding
the future performance of the particular legal entity or tax group
in which the deferred tax asset has been recognised. A variety
of other factors are also evaluated in considering whether there
is convincing evidence that it is probable that some portion or
all of the deferred tax assets will ultimately be realised, such as
the existence of taxable temporary differences, tax planning
strategies and the periods in which estimated tax losses can be
utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets and related
financial models and budgets are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and to the extent that there is insufficient
convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be
available within the utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the
tax losses carried forward, and the asset balance will be
reduced and charged to the statement of profit or loss.

Notes to Financial Statements
TG ERER M

31 December 2017 —Z—+&F+=-HA=+—H

FESTHH B RAAES (&)

Fri&H

EEHBADRBEES  HRRERREE
KRB BEZFHELERZEFHB SRR
S ZREE — SR ERELRE -

EREHRAEEREE 2 RSHABRBERM T
IARERR - MELARRIBFA A AT B BB RN A
ReE (BIRA A RE) R IR R DL A A AR B
RABRBERTAEESR - BREES R
HE A ERABEENREE R EERE
BIRBERBIARKE - REBEEAA
ek 2 BFE AR/ ] B BB 0 S 2 BE AT B R
BERKEEREER Bt BEEBE
= BREFEERHERZEZR  HEREE
BN AT BB AEHBERZBR - ARER
EHREPRBIEEHBAEE ZREENE
M SEAEEE - MiLBERDAERZ
BREBETNNEREIAE A T RRTE M IA
SHORCEERBER  MEELHES
B WK BRI -
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112

Operating Segment Information

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately according to the nature of their operations and the
products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s
operating segments represents a strategic business unit that
offers products and services which are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of the other business
segments. Summary of details of the operating segments are as
follows:

(@) the electronic and accessory products segment trades
electronic and accessory products;

(b)  the financial investments and services segment comprises
financial investments and trading, debt and equity
investments and money lending business;

(c) the brokerage and commission segment comprises
provision of trading in securities and futures contracts
services;

(d)  the property investments segment comprises leasing of
investment properties; and

(e) the corporate and others segment comprises corporate
income and expense items.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is measured consistently with the Group’s profit/
loss before tax except that bank interest income, loss on step
acquisition, finance costs and head office and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and bank balances and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude notes payable and other unallocated
head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

REFBEFR

AR L2 R R TR A RAR
2 B R R RIS B TR REIE - A%
S —EHHBIRE KRB B - 5
B SR IR 44 2 BRI PR 2 IR B 15
R M EH DR - GED AL BB
BT -

@ EBFREEEMNE
EEMm

BEEETRE

b) WBERERRBHE  SEMFERE
REE  EBRERAEEARKE
7%

(e kBeniR BREEESFNME

&
mnLT
BEEKMRT

d) MERENHE
&

BRKEMEME

© EREMHE BREXKRARR
IR -

EEERERDEORRMKRB N EORE
BEAEEREN R EE - D RRRIIILA
WEN BB BEETHE - BRREED

IR RITHSHWA -~ DEBRWERE - B
ER AR QREMRN AIHRESEE

M/ (B8R Wt B EAREERTADER, 8
BetET A%

DHEEETRER S MRITETUAREMK
DEEMEABEE  ARZRFEEIRE
HERERE -

DHRABRTERENEREREMARDERS
RABAE ARZSERENREAERE
ﬁ o
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Segment revenue: 2EMA
External HNR
Intersegment sales DREEE
Elimination b
Total T
Segment results PERE
Reconciliation: bl 3
Bank interest income RITH BUA
Gain on disposal of HEMBARIZ
subsidiaries Wizx
Unallocated expenses ARERE
Finance costs HBER
Profit before tax PR A
Income tax expense PEREX
Profit for the period AERER
Assets and liabilities BERERE
Segment assets PREE
Reconciliation: HE
Unallocated assets AOBREE
Total assets EERA
Segment liabilities NEAR
Reconciliation: HEE -
Unallocated liabilities AOEEE
Total liabilities BfERE

Electronic
and
accessory
products
ETR
REEM
HK$/000
TER

4. Operating Segment Information (continued)
For the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017

Financial
investments
and services

R R

HK$'000

THET

185,490

185,490

185,490
319,914

2,769,117

206,937

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 R B

31 December 2017 —E—+F+=fA=+—H

4. BETFEHE)

—E—t+tHEFMNA—-RHE=E—+tE+=A
=+—HBH#HH

Brokerage
and Property  Corporate
commission investments  and others Consolidated
& ¥
ki€ UERE REAM &8
HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$/000
THET  THER  TER  T#R

38,965 3,600 228,055
804 = 804

39,769 3,600 228,859
(804) - = (804)

38,965 3,600 - 228,055
23,125 92,505 (7,638) 427,890

(1,131)
(53,385)

373,375
(4,520)

368,855

402,976 830,184 12,307 4,014,584

214,064
4,228,648
341,580 1,349,398

312,799 487,327

155,346
1,504,744
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4.

Operating Segment Information (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2017

4.

rEasBER (&)
BE_Z—tF=A=+—HILFE

Electronic
and Financial ~ Brokerage
accessory — investments and Property ~ Corporate
products and services commission investments  and others Consolidated
BFhk HMBRE ) %
REEm KB ke  WERE KA fra
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET T TR TAT TAT
Segment revenue: 2EBA
External AN 2,525 (54,653) - - - (52,128)
Intersegment sales AERHEE = = = - - -
2,525 (54,653) - - - (52,129
Elimination H 3 - - - - - -
Total ) 2,525 (54,653) - - - (52,128)
Segment results TEES 3,011 (87,755) - - (86,170)  (170,914)
Reconciliation: ik :
Bank interest income RITHISHA 9
Gain on disposal of HERBARLZ
subsidiaries W Es 15,566
Unallocated expenses APEERX (89)
Finance costs HEER (969)
Loss before tax BRI AIEE (156,397)
Income tax expense st X -
Loss for the year REEEE (156,397)
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Segment assets PREE - 1,387,002 - - 32,553 1,419,555
Reconciliation: HEE -
Unallocated assets AOBEE 4,896
Total assets BERE 1,424,451
Segment liabilities PEEE 756 2,478 = = 18,085 21,319
Reconciliation: B -
Unallocated liabilities AHEARE 87,553
Total liabilities BE®EE 108,872
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4. Operating Segment Information (continued) 4.

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 R B

31 December 2017 —E—+F+=fA=+—H

e BER ()

Other segment information Hith o &R
For the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017 —_E—t+tHFNWHA—HBE=-ZE—+tE+=A
=t—-AH8™
Electronic
and  Financial  Brokerage
accessory investments and Property  Corporate
products and services commission investments and others Consolidated
BEYR UBRE gL ¥
REER RER% kg NERE Rt )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET
Depreciation nE - - 154 233 1,118 1,505
Impairment losses recognised in ~ RERKHERZ
the statement of profit or loss REES
Write off of deposits and MR kA
other receivables FEYTIE
Share of profit of associates DIEEE R AR
Loss on step acquisition PREKEER
Gain on bargain purchase FEREKE
Gain on revaluation of RENFEM K
investment properties
Fair value gains on equity FERBREATE
investments at fair value B8Rz RARKRE 2
through profit or loss, net AT ENERFE (121,623) (121,623)
Gain on disposal of & A E R
available-for-sale REZ W&
equity investments
Capital expenditure* BEARX*
& Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment. & BARX BIERBEYE BB REE -
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Operating Segment Information (continued) 4.
Other segment information (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2017

rEsEER (&)
Hftbn BREH (F)

BE-T LF=A=+-ALEE

Electronic
and Financial ~ Brokerage
accessory  investments and Property ~ Corporate
products and services commission investments  and others Consolidated
BTh HBRE &4 R
REEmR KRR ke  DERE REAM &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET
Depreciation e - - - - 50 50
Impairment losses recognised in ~ REZERHERZ
the statement of profit or loss BEEE 1,175 3,947 = = = 5,122
Write off of items of property, Wi BER
plant and equipment HEEE - - - - 3,015 3,015
Write off of deposits and mERE R
other receivables Hip eI TR = = = = 436 436
Gain on disposal of items of HENE  BER
property, plant and equipment RFBEE 2 e - - = = (95) (95)
Fair value gains on equity BRBEGEEATE
investments fair value 5‘] BeBRARE
through profit or loss, net NEEREFE = (20,250) - - - (20,250)
Loss on disposal of available- HE AT ERA
for-sale equity investments BEZER - 48,186 - - - 48,186
Equity-settled share option WiEE 2 E R
arrangements, net THEEEE = = = = 60,600 60,600
Capital expenditure* BARRY* - - - - 3,480 3,480
9 Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment. 9 BEARZBIERBEYE  BFERE
Geographical information tEER
The Group’s revenue and non-current assets are predominantly AEBUBWARERHEEETEREE— @R
attributable to a single geographical region, Hong Kong, which (FB) MBBNTR/AERERZRBREE
is the Group’s principal place of business and operations. FriEs - Eitt - WEZHMER D EDHN -

Therefore, no analysis by geographical region is presented.

ABBREEERA A



Operating Segment Information (continued)
Information about a major customer

During the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017,
operating income or revenue from transactions with each
external customer amounts to less than 10% of the Group’s
total operating income or revenue. For the year ended 31
March 2017, revenue of approximately HK$2,525,000 was
derived from sales by the electronic and accessory products
segment to a single customer.

Revenue, Other Income and Gains

Revenue represents the aggregate of the net invoiced value of
goods sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts,
losses on disposal of equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss, dividend income from investment in listed equity
securities, interest income from money lending business,
interest income from securities margin, commission income
from securities and futures dealing, commission from placing
and property rental income during the period from 1 April 2017
to 31 December 2017 and year ended 31 March 2017.

An analysis of revenue and other income and gains is as
follows:

4.

5.

Notes to Financial Statements
ISR R M5

31 December 2017 —E—+F+=fA=+—H

RESFER (F)
EBEXEEFZEH
R-ZE— ‘ti@ﬂ HE-Z
=t+—BHM -

—t&F+—A
HEINARFEITI NG
LRI A SRS D 7 [ A AR U A B U
#Hw2Z10% HE-_FT—+F=A=1+—HIt
FE - YEH2,525,0008 KB EF KA
EEGHBRE—XPERZHEE -

WA - R AR W

R-_EBE—+FWA—HBHE-_ZT—+F+=H
= t—HHRERHEE_T—tF=A=1—
BLIEFE WATEMEEREHBRRE &
BNz aEFE LEBRBREAT
BIRZRAEE 2 BB - EmRAE %&

BEZBRBWA  HEXBZFBWA -
REE M BB - EH R ff‘i?"’;z{ﬂ%%
WA BEEZRERMERS WA ZHERE -

WA R EAL WA R W zs 2 AT

For the period

from 1 April 2017 For the
to 31 December year ended
2017 31 March
2017
BH=E
—ZT—+tfF
ER=ET—E
IEFE
GICHINES:- S HK$'000 T/E7T
Revenue WA
Sale of goods HE S m = 2,525
Losses on disposal of equity investments &% BEz5IR A FEITF 2
at fair value through profit or loss AR E 2 BB (5,181) (59,378)
Dividend income from investment FIRABHFREZ
in listed equity securities & B WA 157,687 -
Interest income from money WME B2 A BWA
lending business 32,984 4,725
Interest income from securities margin -~ FEHRFE L 25 BWA 7,576 -
Commission income from securities EFRMEES
and futures dealing Uik ON 12,641 -
Commission from placing REZRe 18,748 -
Property rental income MEBRTHA 3,600 =
228,055 (52,128)
Other income and gains HiW AR K
Gain on disposal of items of property, ~ HEYE  HELREER 2
plant and equipment W as 95
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary ~ BUHEM —REIHEB Q& 2 W 4,208
Bank interest income RITAEBHA 9
Others Hith 7
4312
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6. Finance Costs

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

6. HIKEH
PRBRAOTIOT :

For the period
from 1 April 2017
to 31 December
2017

—E—+tF
A—BZ&
—E—+tF
+=A=+-8
A

HK$’000 T & T

Interest on bank borrowings
Interest on other borrowings
Interest on bank overdrafts
Interest on notes payable
Others

RITEEFE
HibEERME
RITBEHE
e RIBFE
Hit

4,736
45,001
338
3,302
8

53,385
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year ended

31 March

2017

HZE
—E—+F
=A=+—H”
IEFE
HK$'000 F & 7T

31
938

969




74

Profit/(Loss) before Tax 7.
The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2017 —E—+F+=fA=+—H

BREBLADEF],(E51R)
AL BB AER, (BR) ik (hA)
PR

For the period

from 1 April 2017 For the
to 31 December year ended
2017 31 March
—F-tF 2017
mMA—HZE S
—B—tF —E—+tF
+=A=+—A8 =A=+—H
A IEFE
GUCHIE S-S HKS$'000 T 7T
Cost of inventories sold EEFERA = 2,496
Depreciation (note 13) e (fFat13) 1,505 50
Employee benefit expense (including EEmAFHT
directors’ remuneration (note 8)): (BREEME (H:ES)) :
Wages and salaries TERF® 12,629 7,245
Equity-settled share option PrigiE B 2 BRERE -
arrangements, net FEA 16,500
Retirement benefit scheme RRERF B
contributions 312
24,057
Equity-settled share option arrangements  [EH & EIR 2 EE R iR AE
to other eligible participants HEEBRER 44,100
Minimum lease payments under REMBET 2 HIEBENK
operating leases 5,466
Auditor’s remuneration BN B & 1,500
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE 2 RFRE 1,175
Write off of items of property, WEEYE - BE RREEE
plant and equipment 3,015
Write off of deposits and other receivables #ifi $51% & & E fth & Uk 2B 436
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME  BELREER
plant and equipment ZWas (95)
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary HUB R — M8 A R 2 Was (4,208)
Gain on revaluation of investment BEREMEZ W=
properties (91,033) =
Gain on bargain purchase AEBE KRGS (5,370) -
Foreign exchange differences, net ERER - FE 116 -

At 31 December 2017, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
retirement benefit schemes in future years (Year ended 31
March 2017: Nil).

R-Z—+F+-_A=+—H8 AEETE
ERUAE AT B YER D AR SR FE R R IRAR FIET
BER(EBEE=_T—tF=ZA=1+—HILF
E|E) e
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Directors’ Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as
follows:

EEMS

B EPRA - FBARIEHIE383(1)) -
b) - O RO FEARD R (BBEEFHER)
ROIB2MEB 2 ERNEFHSMT :

For the period

from 1 April 2017 For the
to 31 December year ended
2017 31 March
—B—tF 2017
MA—BZ HE
—E—+tF —E—+F
+=HA=+—8 —A=+—H”
B IEFE
GUCHINIES:SA  HK$'000 T4 T
Fees we 383 600
Other emoluments of executive directors: #7T%& = 7 Ml & :
Salaries, allowances and benefits e EAREYET
in kind 999
Equity-settled share option PRrEiEE 2 BB HE
arrangements, net HER 16,300
Pension scheme contributions RIRETEIEE TR 31
17,330
17,930

During the year ended 31 March 2017, certain directors were
granted share options, in respect of their services to the Group,
under the share option schemes of the Company, further details
of which are set out in note 33 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such options, which has been recognised in the
statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amounts recognised
in the statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 March
2017 were included in the above directors’ remuneration
disclosures. No share options have been granted to directors
during the period ended 31 December 2017.

BE_Z—+F=RA=+—HILFE RE
AARIBEERTE ETEFRETHAE
0 AR A5 T A X BB AR - S — PR IR RS
BMARMEE33 - ZFBRER R BHANE
BRER  EAFEIRRELBEHEE - M
REBE_T—tF=A=+—HIFEEHE
RANER BB A LAEEHEWEE
R -#BE—_T—tF+-_A=1+—HILH
A EEFERERE -
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8.

Directors’ Remuneration (continued) 8.

(@)

(b)

Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the period/year were as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2017 —E—+F+=fA=+—H

EEMWE (E)

(@ BIUFHMTEE
RE/ FASTNFBLIERITESZ
wEn

For the period

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong WERELE

Mr. Chen Youchun BRRFERE

Mr. Frank H. Miu BEAE(RZZE—RF
(resigned on 1 July 2016) +tA—RHEHE)

Mr. Tsang Wing Ki BEEE(R-T—RF
(resigned on 1 July 2016) +tA—HEHE)

Mr. Mai Qijian BHREE(RZT—RF
(appointed on 22 June 2016) NAZ+TZRERE)

from 1 April 2017 For the
to 31 December year ended
2017 31 March
=E—tF 2017
mA—BZE HE
—E—tF —T—tF
+=BA=+—H —A=+—H
AR IEFE
HK$000 T7& 7t EEELCHNVIED:- 5
113 150

180 240

60

60

90

600

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the period
(Year ended 31 March 2017: Nil).

Executive directors

R EL RN B LIFATES
ZMeBE—FT—tF=A=1t—H
ILEE &) -

(b) BTEE

Equity-
Salaries, settled share

allowances option Pension
and benefits arrangements, scheme Total

in kind net contributions remuneration

REGE 2

B2l BREZH B
we RENEAN B OHEBR  HefE

HK$'000
TET
Period ended 31 December 2017 ~ HZE-E—t&
TZA=T-ALEA
Mr. Yu Qingrui REHILA
Ms. Lam Hay Yin ML+
Mr. Chen Xiaodong BREREE
Ms. Lee Chau Man Ada FigRt
(appointed on 18 September 2017)  (R=T—+F
NATNBEZE)

HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000
TERL TRET TRL TERL

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 3 121



Notes to Financial Statements
SR R BT

31 December 2017 —Z—+&F+=-HA=+—H

8. Directors’ Remuneration (continued) 8. EEME (&)
(b) Executive directors (continued) (b) HITES(E)
Equity-
Salaries,  settled share
allowances option Pension
and benefits  arrangements, scheme Total
Fees in kind net contributions  remuneration
RiEEE
Fo R BRERH RIK
e  REWEN ek SRR B 2

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TR TAL TATL

Year ended 31 March 2017 HE_Z—+F
ZR=t-HIL%E
Mr. Wang Haixiong TEEE(R-2—RF
(resigned on 20 July 2016) tA=tBEH) - 290 - - 290
Mr. Wei Zhenyu (“Mr. Wei") ERTRE(ERED
(resigned on 2 December 2016)  (R=F—"E+-F—H
BHE) - - - - -
Mr. Li Yunfeng FRBREE(R-T—REF
(resigned on 19 April 2016) MATNEBEHE) - - - - -
Mr. Yu Qingrui REHEE(RZZ—RF
(appointed on 22 June 2016) ANAZT-REZRfE) - 90 8,150 - 8,240
Ms. Lam Hay Yin HEHL L (R-F—RE
(appointed on 20 July 2016) tAZTHEZA) - 419 - 21 440
Mr. Chen Xiaodong REREE(RZT—REF
(appointed on 2 December 2016)  += A= FEZ(E) - 200 8,150 10 8,360
- 999 16,300 31 17,330
There was no arrangement under which a director waived REBAREEENENE B RETW
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the period e (BEZ2=2F—tF= A
(Year ended 31 March 2017: Nil). =t—BLEFE:®) -
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Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees during the period included
two (Year ended 31 March 2017: two) directors, details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration for the period of the remaining three (Year ended
31 March 2017: three) highest paid employees who are not a
director of the Company are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
RS ER R MY 5

31 December 2017 —E—+F+=fA=+—H

hfumEHMES
BRABEFHEERERE (BE-F
— LAt —HILFE: BB)ES
WE2MEHERAN LTS - MABT
CHME-FTLF=A=+—BLFE:
SR HARAEFZBEFHEE 2B
BT -

For the period

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 3% ~ =285 & B W& A
IRiest 8 v AR 2 HE - V3R

Equity-settled share option
arrangements, net

Pension scheme contributions RORFTEI TR

from 1 April 2017 For the
to 31 December year ended
2017 31 March
—E—t5F 2017
mA—BZE H=
—E—+tfF S
+=HA=+—H =—A=+—H
R IEFE

HK$’000 T7570 EEEIEH IR v
1,504 3,198

200

160

3,558

During the year ended 31 March 2017, share options were
granted to one non-director highest paid employee in respect of
his service to the Group under the share option schemes of the
Company, further details of which are set out in note 33 to the
financial statements. The fair value of such options, which has
been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the
vesting period, was determined at the date of grant and the
amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss for the
year ended 31 March 2017 were included in the above non-
director highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures. No
share options have been granted to employees during the
period ended 31 December 2017.

BE_Z—t+F=A=+—HIFE  RE
AARBERETE —RIFEEZ R HH
1 8 L H $ AN 5% B 10 i 755 1 X R sk - o
— A BENMBERKRM L3S - ZFBAE
REBHANBRERER - EAFEINE
HEHREE MREBEE-_FT—tH=A
=t HLEFEEaRAER CBEDFTA
tHFEERESHFMES ZMEREER
N BE_T—tHF+t_-_A=1+—HLH
A - R S ERBAE -
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9. Five Highest Paid Employees (continued) 9.
The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

ABIF -

For the period

Nil to HK$500,000

HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

Z 2 500,000 57T

500,001 /& 7T = 1,000,000 7% 7T
1,000,001 78 7C= 1,500,000 78 7T
1,500,001 78 7L = 2,000,000 7 7T
2,000,001 % L= 2,500,000 78 7T

10. Income Tax Expense

hfumSHMES (&)
MeN FRIIBEFEE BEHHES

Number of employees /& & A &

from 1 April 2017 For the
to 31 December year ended
2017 31 March
—2—tF 2017
MA—HBHZ BE
—E—tHF —E—+4F
+=A=+—H =A=+—H
e LEE
2
1
3
10. FTEBiRAx

For the period
from 1 April 2017 For the
to 31 December year ended
2017 31 March
—2—tF 2017
MA—HBHZ BE
—E—tF —TtF
t=A=+-—~H =A=+—H
e LEE

HK$’000 T 7T

HK$’000 T & T

Current — Hong Kong BNHR — &8
Charge for the period/year HF Rk
Deferred (note 29) RFE (Pf5E29)

4,533 -
(13) =

AERE FERAERERE

Total tax charge for the period/year

4,520 =

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(Year ended 31 March 2017: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the period. Taxes
on profits assessable in Mainland China in the prior year had
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in Mainland China
in which the Group operated, based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

B ERB 2R REN  BAKEEE
PRER BN 2 RITHEAE -
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31 December 2017 —E—+F+=fA=+—H

10. Income Tax Expense (continued) 10. FriSHiBA% (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to profit/ R AAR A R H K EB1D BT B8 A R PTAE AR
(loss) before tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in E2ETEMERHE 2R ANEF (E18)E
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are RAzRERYS(E%)  SBREEREAE
domiciled to the tax position at the effective tax rates is as ZRBIER SR ¢
follows:

For the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017 —E—t+tHEFNMA—-RHE=-E—+tE+=A

=+—HHE
Mainland China
Hong Kong & & HhE R it Total &5t
HK$’000 F#&Jt  HK$’000 F#&T  HK$000F#ET
Profit before tax R ER AR A 373,375 = 373,375
Tax at the applicable tax rates  #%3E AT = (16.5%)
(16.5%) STE A 61,607 61,607
Income not subject to tax AT A (45,315) (45,148)

Expenses not deductible for tax A~ A 1 FI L

2,653

2,298

Tax losses not recognised REERTIAEE 2,141 2,157
Tax losses utilised EBABIBEEE (16,487) (16,479)
Temporary difference not AERERER

recognised (79) 85
Tax at the effective rate REBRBE(12.1%)

(12.1%) tEZ IR 4,520

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE_T—+tF=A=1+—HILEFE
Mainland China
Hong Kong &% A Total # 5+
HK$'000 T/87C  HK$'000 T/87C  HK$'000 T/&TT
Loss before tax MR E 1R (137,865) (18,532) (156,397)
Tax at the applicable tax rates 3% EBH R HE
B (22,748) (4,633) (27,381)
Income not subject to tax RETUA (75,882) 2) (75,884)
Expenses not deductible for tax N A]F1FLFE L 91,753 4,635 96,388
Tax losses not recognised RERTIAEE 6,877 = 6,877
Tax HiIE - - -
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11. Disposal Group Classified as Held for Sale 1. PERFELEZHEAR
On 29 December 2017, the Group entered into a sale and R-ZZEBE—+tFE+-_A=-+hHhH x"EFHHE
purchase agreement with Wise Victory Group Limited, a Wise Victory Group Limited (7 2% & Bz % #¥
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited EEMEZERAR - BFWFZ 2 EKB
liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of FWF, pursuant to RENEIZEEWRE Bt - AEBERED
which the Group agreed to dispose of its entire equity interest & E 7 Goodview Assets Limited 2 2 #F i
in Goodview Assets Limited and a shareholder loan due by the 2 Goodview Assets Limited % K AN 5= [ 7 fi%
Goodview Assets Limited to the Group of approximately R B 3 443,700,000 ot 2R E A
HK$43.7 million for a total consideration of HK$260 million 260,000,000 7T 15 & @ B2 2 & ¥ 17
which shall be settled by the allotment and issue of 1,793,103,448 R FWF & (5 B » HEZBF A
1,793,103,448 FWF shares, subject to the completion of certain TIEHTER BT SIEE - REHTAE MREE
conditions. Mr. Yu Qingrui and Mr. Chen Xiaodong are RAEEAAEBHEWFZ R E F-
common directors of the Group and FWF. The principal activity Goodview Assets Limited 2 = & 27 535 15
of Goodview Assets Limited is property investment through BEUREBEENENSEB IR ZYEETD
owning a property located at No. 1 Lincoln Road, Kowloon, %18 & o T HI & Goodview Assets Limited
Hong Kong. The disposal of Goodview Assets Limited is RREEBRI2EARNTK - F15F2H
expected to be completed within 12 months subsequent to the NEBHH#HSRA-_S—F+E+—_A=-1T1
year end date. Details refer to the Group’s announcement and A2 \EF=RA-+—HBZAEKREX °
circular dated 29 December 2017 and 21 March 2018
respectively.
The major classes of assets and liabilities of Goodview Assets RZZFE—+tF+=H=+—H ' Goodview
Limited which classified as held for sale as at 31 December Assets Limited D38 AFEHE 2 EEREE
2017 are as follows: ZF2ERINT
HK$'000 & 7T

Assets BE
Investment property* BREWE* 400,000
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR -« ke R EMEUGRIE 83
Cash and bank balances W& RIRTTHETRF 26
Assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale D AFHEHE 2 HEHFIZEE 400,109
Liabilities afE
Other payables and accruals HAth &N FIE R BT E A 201
Bank borrowings — current RITIEE — BIHA 5,351
Bank borrowings — non-current RITIEE — FERNE] 133,762
Liabilities directly associated with the SEARELEZEEERAHEE

assets classified as held for sale 139,314
Net assets directly associated with disposal group HEMEREERRFEE 260,795

* Bank loans amounting to HK$139,113,000 being part of the disposal
group held for sales are not included in the above table. Such bank loans
are secured by mortgages over the Group’s investment property situated in
Hong Kong, which had a carrying value at the end of reporting period of
HK$400,000,000, being classified as held for sale. The bank loans carry
interest at lower of 1-month HIBOR plus 2% or HKD Prime Rate —2.5%

and will be matured in 2037.

o EABELEZLEHER —HH 2 RITER
139,113,000/ LI ARt A LXK - BEAEITER
NAEESEARHELEZNR BB ZIRENE
23218 (P % &5 HA 7R AR T {8 /A& 400,000,000 7 7T )
ER - BRARITERIZ—EA BB RITREN
BN2%3 S TR BB FER2.5% 2 BAREET S
BN =HFBIH -
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12. Earnings/(Loss) Per Share Attributable to

Ordinary Equity Holders of the Parent

The calculation of the basic earnings per share (Year ended 31
March 2017: loss per share) amount is based on the profit for
the period (Year ended 31 March 2017: loss for the year)
attributable to owners of the parent of HK$368,855,000 (Year
ended 31 March 2017: HK$156,397,000), and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue of 11,143,413,958
(Year ended 31 March 2017: 8,958,428,816). Adjustment for
the bonus warrants issue during the year ended 31 March 2017
was made to the calculation of weighted average numbers of
ordinary shares in issue for year ended 31 March 2017. There
are no bonus warrants issued during the period ended 31
December 2017.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings/(loss) per
share amounts presented for the period ended 31 December
2017 and year ended 31 March 2017 in respect of a dilution as
the impact of the share options outstanding had an anti-dilutive
effect on the basic earnings/(loss) per share amounts presented.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share are based on:

12.

Notes to Financial Statements
RS ER R MY 5

31 December 2017 —E—+F+=fA=+—H

BAREEEREEARLER
B (&#E)
EREAEN(HE_T—+tF=ZA=1+—
HIEFE : SREB) SBDRES D RE
EANEBEAPHER (BE=F—tF=A
=+—HIEFE : NFEEE) 368,855,000
BT(BE_Z—+tE=A=+—HILtFE:
156,397,000 78 T) & B 8817 & A% 2 hnkE
H8011,143,413,958 R (HE—FT—tF =
B=+—HILEE :8958428,8160%) 5t
E-BHE-_T—+F=A=1+—HILFE%
THMRAREE AR ABE_Z—+
F=ZA=t+—HIEFEZEBTLRRINE
TR -HE=—T—tF+=-_A=+—H
1+ HARS P B AT AT AL K R PRAE RS o

MR HARITEBRESSRERRR, (&
BIZ2JSRAREBIZE QWA EHE
E-TtF+-A=T—HULHEEEE
“EEF-A=t - BUEFEZERER
a7,/ (BHR) 2 25 S BIELERHE

SRR REERF], (B5R) FER TFIE
KiEHE

For the period
from 1 April 2017 For the
to 31 December year ended
2017 31 March
—F—+tF 2017
MA—HZE S
—F—+tF —F—tF
+=R=+—H =A=+—~”
HE LLFE

SLCHNNESETE  HK$'000 /87T

Earnings/(loss) 27, (F8)
Profit for the period/(loss) for the year
attributable to owners of the parent,

used in the basic and diluted earnings/

AEHSRERREERT]
(BR)FARRRHEE A
FEEERRMN,FR (ER)

(loss) per share calculations 368,855 (156,397)
Number of shares %3 2 B
plpa=t Bkt 2016 —F— <4
000 T A% 000 T A%
Shares e
Weighted average number of ordinary s ESREARREERF],
shares in issue during the period/year (BB FTAEFRE BT
used in the basic and diluted earnings/ 3@ A% hntE F 15 8k
(loss) per share calculation 11,143,414 8,958,429
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment

31 December 2017 —E—+t5F
+=-A=+-—H
At 1 April 2017: RZZE—+FmMA—H:
Cost DN
Accumulated depreciation RFtE
Net carrying amount REHE
At 1 April 2017, net of R-T—tFWMA—H -

accumulated depreciation MR 2T ER
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB P B 1 7]

Additions NE
Depreciation provided HRTERE
during the period

At 31 December 2017, netof AR-ZT—+tF
accumulated depreciation +=—A=+—81"

Hkr 2EHITER
At 31 December 2017: RZZE—+tF
+=A=+—8:
Cost D
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZEFHTE
Net carrying amount R HE

13. Y% - BERSE

Motor vehicles,

Leasehold furniture, fixtures
improvements and equipment
HEWSE RE R
#1& HERZE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET

1,854
(1,685)

169

169
1,496
77 913

(1,090) (415)

2,163

6,448 4,959
(3,605) (2,796)

2,843 2,163
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Total

Mt
HK$'000
TERT

5,928
(2,297)

3,631

3,631
1,890
990

(1,505)

11,407
(6,401)

5,006
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)  13. ¥ ¥ - BERRE (&)

Motor vehicles,
Leasehold  furniture, fixtures

improvements and equipment Total
HEYME T R
K& KENM®E et
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET TET TET
31 March 2017 —E—+tF
=Z=A=t+—H
At 1 April 2016: R-FE—XRFMOA—H:
Cost [B%N 3,627 2,243 5,870
Accumulated depreciation RitinE (612) (2,042) (2,654)
Net carrying amount BREFE 3,015 201 3,216
At 1 April 2016, net of R-ZZE—RFOA—QH
accumulated depreciation MR 2T ER 3,015 201 3,216
Additions NE 3,462 18 3,480
Write off 3 (3,015) - (3,015)
Depreciation provided FRFTERE
during the year = (50) (50)
At 31 March 2017, net of R-F—tF
accumulated depreciation EREF=0HE -
MR REHTER 3,462 169 3,631
At 31 March 2017: R-F—tF
=A=t—8:
Cost DN 4,074 1,854 5,928
Accumulated depreciation EFtine (612) (1,685) (2,297)
Net carrying amount BREFE 3,462 169 3,631

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 3 129



Notes to Financial Statements
SR R BT

31 December 2017 —Z—+&F+=-HA=+—H

14. Investment Property

14. BEYE

HK$'000 & 7T
Carrying amount at 1 April 2017 R-ZE—+ENA—BZERE _
Additions (from acquisition) NE (KB YEE) 738,967
Net gain from a fair value adjustment N ERR 2 W 91,033
Transfer to disposal group held for sales BREREHE 2 HEAR (400,000)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2017 N-E—+F+-_A=+—HZEEE 430,000

The Group held two investment properties as at 31 December
2017 which are located at No. 1 Lincoln Road and No. 2
Lincoln Road in Kowloon respectively. Property located at No.
1 Lincoln Road was held by Goodview Assets Limited which
was classified as disposal group held for sale on 29 December
2017.

The Group’s investment properties, including the Property
located at No. 1 Lincoln Road as part of the disposal group
held for sale as at 31 December 2017, were revalued on 31
December 2017 based on valuation performed by Royal Assets
Appraisal Limited and Ascent Partners Valuation Service
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers. Each
year, the Group’s management and the chief financial officer
decide, after approval from the audit committee, to appoint
which external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuations of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group'’s financial
controller have discussions with the valuers on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results twice a year when the
valuation is performed for interim and annual financial
reporting.

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s investment properties,
including the property classified as asset held for sale at 31
December 2017, were pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group.

R-Z—+tF+-_A=+—H8 AEEEES
BIMI A NLEEME B 1 5% MBS 8 2 5% 2 I {RE%
BE o AIAMEE 158 2 ¥ % i Goodview
Assets Limited#5 + Goodview Assets Limited
R-B—+E+-_A-t+hBoBEASELE
ZHEHER

BEBYEXSBERGHEMELFETGE
RAB RN ATEZDNERDAFTETHE
B AEBZREMERFEEA=T—tF
+Z A=+ —BZEHELE LSRR — 5
ZMEEIRDE  ER=Z—+tF+=A
=t+—HEFH -AEEEEEREFEYEE
BFRBERZEGHIZE  ATERETEER
SEYEINAEEZINFEERD o PR 2R
BREMBA® 58 B A RBEER
EARBEERE NP R FEY IS RRE
THER  AEEZUFRESFREER
R A EARAGERFRANX o

RZB—tF+RA=+—80 " xEEZRK
EWEBEENR_ZE—tF+_A=+—H
DERBELEEEZYE)EERERA
SEBER —RIRITRE 2 HEIF
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14. Investment Property (continued) 14. REWZE (&)
Fair value hierarchy DNFERER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRIFRAEEREMEZ ATEFE
hierarchy of the Group’s investment property: F
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2017 using: R-E—+F+-_A=F+—HZAFET=2
£ :
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

RER EBEAXTEBERE EXTTEE
mIEHRE BARE BARE

(B—EB&R) (F=BR) (F=BR) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THETT THETT THETT
Recurring fair value RPN IR 2 K H M
measurement for: NERTE
Property at No 2 LM E 2 57 2 W3
Lincoln Road - - 430,000 430,000
Property at No 1 Lincoln IAMEE 1952 %
Road included in disposal ~ (FF AFF{EHEZ
group held for sale HELERD - - 400,000 400,000
During the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017, R-BE—+tFOA-—BRE_ZT—tF+_A
there were no transfers of fair value measurements between =+—BHE F-EREEF_EREIL
Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3. BAVEASER  F=BAMEEAEA
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within RRAFEBRZE=BRAD R A FE:
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: EYUEK:
Property at Property at
No. 2 No. 1
Lincoln Road Lincoln Road
LRMEE RS E
252 W% 152
HK$'000 HK$’000
THETT THETT
Additions NE 409,130 329,837
Net gain from a fair value adjustment MIEZ R E A A R G TR 2
recognised in other income and gains AT {EFHE 2 WK F5E
in profit or loss 20,870 70,163
430,000 400,000
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14.

15.

16.

132

Investment Property (continued) 14. REWE (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) DNEEEBR (E)
The fair value of the investment properties is determined using WEYHE 2 N ETIRRAI & LR Y0 #
direct comparison method by reference to recent sale price of EBTAEELBEIRE L REBREEES
comparable properties on a price per square foot basis. Below TE o NXHishie B EETHERAER
is a summary of the significant inputs to the valuation of 8 ABUE
investment properties:
Range Weighted Average
#BE hnEEF 1
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Price per square foot HFEHRERS 40,000 - 55,000 46,000
A significant increase/decrease in the price per square foot EME L EEHRER AR EF TS
would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value BYHHNFEKAE AT -
of the investment properties.
Intangible Assets 15. BEEE
The intangible asset is of indefinite useful life as it has no expiry EmILEEWES|EAH WA ERAFEHE
date and represents the Futures Exchanges Trading Right in B WAFEAL G NEERMAR AT ZHRZ
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited. PR % -
Available-For-Sale Equity Investments 16. AIHHERIRE
31 December 2017 31 March 2017
—E—tF —T—tF
+=—A=+—H =—A=+—~H
HK$'000 T8t EEIEHE oo
Listed equity investments, at fair value ~ EHIRAKRE - IRAFE 1,710,695 1,121,372

During the period ended 31 December 2017, there was a
further decline in the market value of a listed equity. The
directors consider that such a decline indicates that the listed
equity investment is impaired and an impairment loss of
HK$800,000 (Year ended 31 March 2017: HK$3,947,000) has
been recognised in the statement of profit or loss for the period.

HE_T—tFt+_-_A=+—HItHH  —
HEMRAZTEE-— TS TH® - EERAE™
ETHRERETRAREERE  MEEES
15800,0008 T(HE_-_ZT — & = A
=+—HIEFE : 3,947,000 7T ) E R A H
AR E R AR °
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17.

18.

Equity Investments at Fair Value Through
Profit or Loss

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2017 —E—+F+=fA=+—H

17. gi@?ﬁﬁ#ﬁﬁ%ﬂéﬁu,ﬂﬁz&zﬁi

31 March 2017
—E—tF
=A=t+—~8
HK$’000 T 7T

31 December 2017
—E—tF
t=A=+—8H

HK$’000 T3& 7t

Listed equity investments in Hong Kong, &%& ETRAKE @ A FE

at fair value

560,368 49,500

The above equity investments at 31 December 2017 and 31
March 2017 were classified as held for trading. The fair values
of listed equity investments are based on quoted market prices.

Loan Receivables

ERARER —_FT—+F+_A=+—H
M—E—+F=A=+—HoBARKEEER
R o EBRAIRE 2 R FETIRET S H

31 December 2017 31 March 2017

Loan receivables FERE K

—E—+tF —E—+F
+=A=+—H =RA=+—H
CICHNNESEPAY  HK$/000 F7&7T

476,765 180,656

As at 31 December 2017, loan receivables represented loans of
HK$476,765,000 (31 March 2017: HK$180,656,000) granted
by the Group to a number of independent third parties. The
loans bore interest at rates ranging from 5% to 12% per annum
(31 March 2017: ranging from 5% to 10% per annum) and
were repayable within one year. The grants of these loans were
approved and monitored by the Group’s management. The
loan balances were neither past due nor impaired for which
there was no recent history of default.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancement over its loan receivables balance. The carrying
amount of the loan receivables approximates their fair values.

MN-ZT—+F+-A=+—H EWERE
AREBRTFZEZBIEF=ZHZERX
476,765,000 (=T —+tF=A=1+—
H : 180,656,000/8 7T ) © B FIZF F| £ 5%
EN%(ZEBE—+E=A=1+—8 : REF
K5%ZE10%) T ERAR—FREE - K
HZEERHAEEEEBHENER &
e I HA s BB - T ERIT B ARCER

AR (B 3 4 L EL R B R A R R (AR
mE M ERRIEG - BRERZREE
EENERS
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19. Trade Receivables

19. EWE Z R

31 December 2017 31 March 2017

—E—+tF —T—+F
+=—BA=+—H
HK$’000 T & T

=HA=+—H
HK$’000 T 7T

Trade receivables arising from the

business of trading and distribution of ~ E4 7 JEUE
electronic and accessory products
Impairment BAE

BEERNHE %&ﬁiﬁ%uu

1,175 1,175
1,175) (1,175)

Trade receivables arising from the

securities and futures dealing business ~ JEILE 5 R
Clearing houses M
Cash clients Re®P
Margin clients RELEF
Brokers ®a

11,803 -
39,622 -
331,670 -
8,124 -

391,219 -

Trade receivables from cash clients, clearing houses and
brokers arising from the securities and futures dealing business
are repayable on demand subsequent to the settlement date.
The normal settlement terms of the said trade receivables are,
in general, within 2 days after the trade date. The Group allows
a credit period mutually agreed with the contracting parties for
receivables from margin clients.

Except for receivables from margin clients, the Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances. The Group is allowed to dispose of the securities or
futures deposited by the customers with the Group to settle any
overdue amount.

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision of HK$1,175,000 (31 March 2017:
HK$1,175,000) for individually impaired trade receivables,
arising from the business of trading and distribution of
electronic and accessory products, with a carrying amount
before provision of HK$1,175,000 (31 March 2017:
HK$1,175,000). The individually impaired trade receivables
relate to customers that were in dispute or were in default in
interest and/or principal payments and only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered.

EFMERERBELCRIREER -
BEMRER2BESERFNGEEARZEX
B8 - LHARWEBZERCEEREBELSR
%Elﬁﬂ?éﬂﬂﬁ ERAREEEFHA - A
BIAFEITNT ERBE—REEH -

BRIEU IR & B P ARIRSN - AR B g %
ERESPBAENERRIEMEERAE
B ° $El7u”j’§§)55$7(_73’\$%25§”
S HE A EHERIB IR

FiEKE SRR REREREEERD
$HE %&HE%E‘%DD%i%ﬁﬁfxi{l%lm%ﬁ%u&
BEERRZBE1,1750008 T (ZE—+F
=HA=+—H:1,175000/87T) - ZEKE
SR 2 BERIREME A 1,175,000 7T (=
T—+HF=A=+—H :1,175,00087T) °
ERREREYKE ZEREFEFHZ T K
RASHH) 5&/&$$Z§ﬁﬁﬁl§ - FEERE T
U 21 2B (7 FE U SR IE
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19. Trade Receivables (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are not
past due. Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a large number of diversified customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables are unsecured, interest free and repayable on
the settlement date of the relevant trades, except for the
receivables from margin clients of HK$331,670,000 (31 March
2017: Nil) which bears interest at a range of 9.25% to 12.25%
per annum and are secured by investments held by margin
clients of approximately HK$2,782,100,000 (31 March 2017:
Nil) as at 31 December 2017. The carrying amount of the trade
receivables approximates their fair values.

Included in the trade receivables are amounts due from Mr. Yu
Qingrui, Mr. Chen Xiaodong and Ms. Lam Hay Yin, being the
directors of the Company, of HK$10,190,000, HK$3,208,000
and HK$8,920,000 respectively arising from securities dealing
transactions, which bore interest at commercials rate and are
secured by respective underlying investments.

The Company maintains accounts with the clearing houses
through which it conducts securities and futures trading
transactions and settlement on a net basis.

19.

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2017 —E—+F+=-A=+—H

FEW & 5 BR =X (&)
R-F—t&F+-A=+—8  LEAERIH

HRARRREREZEKE SRR RE
HH RIBHA K R (B 2 FE MR IR B % 42 3 4
MR ZDBEF AR

FEW B BN AR - TR RANER

ZHREHEE HRERESREFPZHE
331,670,000 7T (= = — ti A= +—

B: #® BRI RZF—-—ttF+-A
=t+—8- *ﬁf‘ﬁ,ﬂghziﬂ‘ < F9.25%F
12.25%+ 8 WAREFESEPAFHIRELD

2,782,100,0008 L (= E—+tF=ZHA=+—

B : ﬁ)fﬁﬁﬁf’l@“%f’f%ﬁﬁ X 2 FRE B 8
HEAFERE
BUEZIERBEABFEERIMELEL

JEWARNRESEREMRILE  RERLER
B G 22 = 2 FRIB 5 510,190,000 7% T
3,208,000 75 7T & 8,920,000 78 7T * & 78 % A

KB WHE B 2 HEERE BT -
ARBRGEERERE WEETESR
%ﬁﬁt X5 Wi FRARELE o
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31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+=-A=+—H

20. Loans to Directors 20. IEEER
Loans to directors, disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of BIEES A B EF 5 383(1)d) & R A 7] (3]
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Egi%ﬂ éﬂ)ﬁfﬁ”éﬁ3*ﬁ?§i&%2ﬁi$
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BRI

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Maximum At Maximum
amount 31 March amount
At outstanding 2017 and outstanding At
31 December during the 1 April during the 1 April
2017 period 2017 year 2016
R-B—tf
S =ZA=t+-H R»
— Hrgks Kk-EF-tF FRES ZE-RE
t=ZA=+-H REERE MA—H REERE mMA—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK’000
TET TAET TET TET TET
Name of directors: ~ ZEZ#H ¢
Chen Xiaodong PR E = 31,900 31,900 31,900 =
Lee Chau Man Ada  ZfEL = 49,000 = = =
- 31,900 -
The loans to directors for the period ended 31 December 2017 BE_T—tHFt+_-_A=t—BLLHHERE
is unsecured, bears interest at 5% and 12% per annum were =5 mﬁ'rﬁ?ﬁﬁ R5% R 12%FFEL B -
repayable on demand. The loans were fully settled in May 2017 BERERER - EFDHIR_Z—tFH
and September 2017 respectively. BR=F—+ENBEE -
21. Prepayments, Deposits and Other 21. ENRE - ZERHEBERRE
Receivables
31 December 2017 EECAWYET(e 0NV
—2—+tF —F—+tF
+=-—A=+—H ER=ET—E
GUCHVEeh-> Al HK$'000 T8 7T
Prepayments and other receivables FBAS 3018 K E b e LR 29,227 4,521
Deposits paid RS 10,748 28,826
39,975 33,347
Less: Non-current portion W SEmENE D (9,915) (27,947)
Current portion BB 30,060 5,400
None of the prepayments and deposits is either past due or BEBAMNFIERZS @A ERE -
impaired.
The remaining balance of other receivables was neither past HAbFEWGRIE 2 842 T A aR I m B kR A
due nor impaired and relates to a number of independent BEREZZRHREENTSE B ER -

parties for whom there was no recent history of default.

The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables e R EMEWSIE  BEmEEE AT (EHE
approximate their fair values. =)
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22,

23.

Cash and Bank Balances

As at 31 December 2017, cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$5,187,000
(31 March 2017: HK$91,000). The RMB are not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. The
carrying amounts of the bank balances held on behalf of clients
and cash and bank balances approximate their fair values.

Bank Balances Held on Behalf of Clients

As at 31 December 2017, the Group maintained client trust
monies via CWSI and CWF which were not held for settlement
of HK$90,624,000 (31 March 2017: Nil) in segregated bank
accounts in accordance with the provision of Hong Kong
Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules.

The Group has classified the client trust monies as cash held on
behalf of clients in current assets section of the consolidated
statement of financial position and recognised the
corresponding trade payables to the respective clients in current
liabilities section of the statement of financial position. The
Group is allowed to retain some or all of the interest derived
from the clients’” monies. The Group is not allowed to use the
clients” monies to settle its own obligations.

22,

23.

Notes to Financial Statements
B Al R 5

31 December 2017 —Z—+&F+=-HA=+—H

RERBITERF
NRZE—+tF+-_A=+—H TEBEHNUA
RETAREBDFAEZRESRBTETA
5,187,000 (= —+tF = A =+—H
% :91,00087L) - ARBTAIERLRA
Ha & - R BIEFBEANZINEEE
IEHIARAEE - EERMNETERTE A%
BT BEREETTINE RS 2 RTT
BARESBAHMER -

FRIRTT RS RES BRITERNRZF
BHRREIAE - |RITHEFFRALELEIR
MRS AEEZRIT - KREPHAZR
THRENERSRBTEFZEEERER
FEREE -

REEFBEZRITER
RZE—+F+-A=+—0 KE£EFEB
REESNTERERBEESESFRBE(R
FRR) AN XA B RITIREFE Y IF
FERE 2 B P {E7E5K3890,624,00078 (=
E—+F=ZA=F+—H:F)-

AEEKEFERFADEREE BB
RARBEERND 2RREFPFHEZHRE
W A& P Z RN E 5 8RN M 75
FRKR AR B BB HER - AEEEER
BEROAEMRETLHAZNE - A&ME
TRERBEFPRBEGNEAS 2B
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31 December 2017 —Z—+&F+=A=+—H

24. Trade Payables

24.

P+ & 5 B X

31 March 2017
—E—tF
=A=t—~8
HK$’000 T 7T

31 December 2017
—E—+tF
+=B=+—H
HK$’000 T & 7T

Trade payables arising from the business
of trading and distribution of electronic
and accessory products

BEERDHEFREEER
EBEL ZERNE SRR

Trade payables arising from the securities

and futures dealing business e B SR
Clearing houses mER
Cash clients ReRP
Margin clients RELEP

EFRPEREERBELL

502

55,235 -
152,341 -
208,078 502

Trade payables arising from securities dealing business bear
interest at 0.01% per annum and repayable on the settlement
day of the relevant trades. The carrying amount of trade
payables approximates their fair values.

Trade payables arising from futures dealing business are non-
interest bearing and repayable on the settlement day of the
relevant trades. The carrying amount of trade payables
approximates their fair values.

Included in the trade payables are amounts due to Ms. Lam
Hay Yin, Mr. Mai Qijian and Mr. Chen Xiaodong, being the
directors of the Company, of HK$39, HK$90,033 and HK$942
respectively arising from securities dealing transactions, which
are unsecured, bears interest at 0.01% per annum and
repayable on the settlement day of the relevant trades.

25. Other Payables and Accruals

The Group’s payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing

and are normally settled within three months. The carrying

amount of financial liabilities included in other payables and

accruals approximates their fair values.

25.

ELEEXBELECRNEZRIIRFR
0.01%TERANERESEEAEE - &
NEZERREEREAFERE -

HERSXRBELZRNESRRTFTER
EREHESHEREE BNESIERRZ
FREERE AT ERES -

ENESEREEAEFEERIMELEZ
ENARRESHEBIILL  BEELER
PREESR ST 2 RIE D BI39 It ~ 90,0338
TR ETL - BEER  EFEFZE0.01%
B WEREBRSEERERN -

Htt RN KBRS B A

AEE B REREBAATHER—
BBN =B ARER o HAbRE R R Bt
sRER eHA R RAEREATER

Dif ol
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 R B

31 December 2017 —E—+F+=fA=+—H

Ellt

BERITRAEMEER

26. Interest-Bearing Bank and other Borrowings  26.

31 December 2017 31 March 2017
“E-tE+tZA=t-A “E-t%=fA=1-H
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
ER ER
F% (%) TR 7% (%) gl T
Current Il
Bank overdrafts — secured BiTET — BEE 5t53  ondemand 59,494 - - -
5253 RER
Bank loans — secured BIER —BEE 3.2t03.6 2018 160,000 - - -
32836 ZB-N\%
Current portion of long term RARTERNHT D 271035 2018 7,763 - - -
bank loans — secured —HER 27%35 ZB-NE
167,763 -
Other loans — unsecured HitE % — &R 80  ondemand 117,000 = = =
REX
Other loans — secured HtEZ — FHE 7.3t011.0 2018 408,930 = = =
732110 ZE-)\f
525,930 -
753,187 _
Non-current FHH
Bank loans — secured BIER —BEE 27t03.5 2019-2037 164,056 - - -

27235 “E-NEZ
ZE-tE

917,243 _
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1 75 2R 2R B %‘E

31 December 2017 =%

= =

. . it
26. Interest-Bearing Bank and other Borrowings  26. 3t B R{TREMEE (&)
(continued)
Notes: BtsE
(a) The Group’s overdraft facilities amounting to HK$175,000,000 (31 March (a) AREEZFEXRVE A175,000,0008 T (ZF—+
2017: Nil), of which HK$59,494,000 (31 March 2017: Nil) had been FZA=+—B: ) RREHREFHEH
utilised as at the end of the reporting period. 59,494,000 T(ZF—+F=RA=+—H : &) °
(b) The Group’s bank overdraft and certain of the Group’s bank borrowings (b) EROBEAKRBRITES RAEEE TIRITE
included above are secured by: BT TP & BIEER
i. mortgages over the Group’s investment property situated in Hong i. REBNRESZIREYEZIZE KR
Kong, which had an aggregate carrying value at the end of the 5 BiR 2 BR T 4818 /4 430,000,000 7 7T (=
reporting period of HK$430,000,000 (31 March 2017: Nil). T—+tH=A=+—H8:&)-

ii. listed securities pledged to the Group by certain margin clients ii. ETRECEFEHFALERZ EHE
with an aggregate amount of approximately HK$218,088,000 (31 % BREAEREL) /218,088,000 7T (= F
March 2017: Nil). —tF=ZA=t—H:®) -

(c) Certain of the Group’s other loans are secured by listed securities held by (© BAOREEBE M E R AREEFTIFHEIERTE
the Group classified as available-for-sale investments and equity ERBEREBBRRAFEINEREZIRAKZE (R
investments at fair value through profit or loss which had an aggregate MEHRZREBES B A1,377,966,000 7% 7T
carrying value at the end of the reporting period of HK$1,377,966,000 (31 —+tF=A=+—H: &) k547,778,000
March 2017: Nil) and HK$547,778,000 (31 March 2017: Nil) BLT(CE—tF=A=+—8 : 8)){FER -
respectively.

(d) Other loans — unsecured are repayable to Globally Finance Limited, a (d) HEMER — EIKHAEE T FWFH B A RHR
subsidiary of FWF. MBEERAR

(e) Current portion of bank loans and other borrowings are maturing within (e) WITEFRREMEENHESN—FERE|E - A
one year. The carrying amounts of these loans approximate to their fair RZEEREEHARE - tEEmEENTE
values due to the short term maturities. HE o

) Mortgaged bank loans bear floating rates with reference to HIBOR and ) };ﬁ%ﬂiﬁ% A2BEBRITRERERSEET
Prime Rate. The carrying amounts of these loans approximate their fair RAEZE - ZSERRAEEEAFERS -
values.

+
27. Shareholder Loan 27. RRER

The shareholder loan is unsecured, non-interest-bearing and R E R AEEHR %,u ,,j;zETféfi

repayable on demand. The carrying amount of the shareholder REERZ REEEEAFERE

loan approximates its fair value.
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28.

29.

Notes to Financial Statements
B Al R 5

31 December 2017 —E—+F+=-A=+—H

Notes Payable 28. EHEE

31 March 2017

T—+4F

=A=+—~H

HK$'000 T/& 7T

Notes payable ANE 86,574
During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group issued notes HEZZ—tHF=-A=1+—HILFE &%
(the “2016 Notes”) with an aggregate principal amount of ER—EZBIALTBTEZER((ZE—AFE
HK$92,100,000, before related expenses of HK$5,526,000, to #® 1)+ Mk 5,526,000 7% 7T 48 B8 2 AT 2 2N

an independent individual. The 2016 Notes bear interest at a
rate of 4% per annum and will mature in January 2024. The
interest will be repayable by the Group annually on the
anniversary of the issue date of the respective notes and up to
the maturity date.

Deferred Tax
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the period/year
are as follows:

29.

& #%/592,100,00087C - — T — NFEIE
BENK4%TE > WAZZT—WFE—AF
H o "REEBAIHANSFNEERES
THEZBFBEERNES -

ESET R
EIEBIERERS, FRZEBHNT

HK$'000 T 7T
At 31 March 2016, 31 March 2017 and R-F—A"F=ZA=+—H"
1 April 2017 —+tF=A=1+—HK
s *ti@ﬂ*ﬂ =
Acquisition of subsidiary Yo B o 147
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated FFAERE ?Eﬁnﬁz L ERIE (MiEE10)
statement of profit or loss (note 10) (13)
At 31 December 2017 RZFT—+F+-A=+—H 134
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of AREBBEREBEELE 2 M IEEIB
HK$1,272,591,000 (31 March 2017: HK$1,359,535,000) that 1,272,591,0008 7% (ZE—+&E=A=+—
are available for offsetting against future taxable profits of the B :1,359,535,000787T) @ A] 43K 44 IR &
companies in which the losses arose. As these losses have B2 AT ZREFEBFHEF o AAKIB AT

arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised, deferred
tax assets have been recognised to the extent of the deferred tax
liabilities arising from taxable temporary differences from
unrealised investment gains of HK$702,909,000 (31 March
2017: HK$464,994,000) recognised by the Group as at 31
December 2017. For presentation purpose, such deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

T—irit—ﬁxﬁﬁﬂﬁ@ttﬂéﬂam&u B KTA]
BEE FERR T s A AT IR SH AR TR ES 18 - A&
@EA:T tF+ A=+ —BWERKE
RERREW S ARG EREREE VR
3T 718 A {&702,909,0008 T ( —Z — ti
=H=4+—H : 464,994,000 7T ) tER
HIEEE - B2 E - ﬁ%ﬁ%@ﬁﬂélﬁéé
M EBEEREE P RRTE -
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30. Share Capital 30. R
Shares Bz
31 December 2017
—E—tF
+=HB=+—H
HK$’000 T3& 7T
Authorised: JEE

80,000,000,000 (31 March 2017:
80,000,000,000) ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each

80,000,000,000 &
(ZB—+FE=A=+—8":
80,000,000,000 %) A%

31 March 2017
—E—tF
=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 T 7T

EE0.01 T2 EiliR 800,000 800,000
Issued and fully paid: BETMER
12,716,650,461 (31 March 2017: 12,716,650,461 i
8,965,128,980) ordinary (Z2—+F=HA=+—8":
shares of HK$0.01 each 8,965,128,980 %) &%
E{E0.01 T2 Tk 127,167 89,651
A summary of movements of the Company’s issued shares BN T BT K IR 5 5 B AR & 5) i
capital and share premium account is as follows: E= N
Issued Share
Number of share premium
shares in issue capital account Total
BRT
BRHEBE BRIRE ROREE @t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
it aE THT THT THT
At 1 April 2016 RZZE—"FNA—H 8,500,360,724 85,004 4,043,864 4,128,868
Bonus warrants exercised EATERALFI R AR R (i) 464,768,256 4,647 26,957 31,604
At 31 March 2017 and RZE—+5F
1 April 2017 =A=t+—-Bk
—T—+FMA—H 8,965,128,980 89,651 4,070,821 4,160,472
Issue of new shares, net of expenses B3 1% (BRHSE) (i) 3,751,521,481 37,516 420,668 458,184
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F
+=A=+-H 12,716,650,461 127,167 4,491,489 4,618,656
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30. Share Capital (continued)
Shares (continued)

Notes:

(0]

(ii)

During the year ended 31 March 2017, 464,768,256 shares were issued
as a result of the exercise of 464,768,256 units of warrants by warrant
holders. The net proceeds from the exercise of warrants were
approximately HK$31,604,000. The remaining 4,298,676 warrants
expired on 7 April 2016.

During the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017, the Group
issued shares in respect to the following transactions:

a. On 8 May 2017, the Company placed a total of 1,300,040,000
shares at HK$0.155 per share representing 14.50% of its total
issued capital at that time. The net proceeds from the placing of
approximately HK$198,484,000 was used as 50% for financial
investments and trading, 30% for money lending business and
20% for working capital.

b. On 27 July 2017, the Company and FWF entered into a share
swap agreement, under which the Company subscribed for
470,000,000 FWF shares at HK$0.11 per share for a total
consideration of HK$51,700,000 and FWF subscribed for
470,000,000 shares of the Company at HK$0.11 per share for a
total consideration of HK$51,700,000. 470,000,000 shares of the
Company were allotted and issued to FWF on 4 August 2017.

[ On 8 September 2017, the Group completed the acquisition of
66% equity interest of Instant Achieve for a total consideration of
HK$16,000,000, settled by the allotment and issue of 148,148,148
shares of the Company at approximately HK$0.108 per share.
Details of the transaction are included in note 34.

d. On 8 September 2017, the Group repaid the amount due to
Globally Finance Limited of HK$90,000,000, settled by the
allotment and issue of 833,333,333 shares of the Company at
HK$0.108 per share.

e. On 13 September 2017, the Group acquired the equity interest of
Goodview Assets Limited for a consideration of HK$150,000,000,
settled by cash amounting to HK$48,000,000 and by the allotment
and issue of 1,000,000,000 shares of the Company at the issue
price of HK$0.102 for a total consideration of HK$102,000,000.

Notes to Financial Statements
B Al R 5

31 December 2017 —Z—+&F+=-HA=+—H

30. fix# (])

B 4n (%)
Gk

(i) HE-ZT—+tF=A=1+—HBLFE  ARABK
HEER A A1T1E464,768,256 DR RIERE - B
%%17464,768,256 R AR {5 © 1T RIRBEE 2 FT 15
FRIBFE A 531,604,0008 7T © H #44,298,676
DRBEZFR-_T—"ENALAER -

(ii) —E—+tFOMA-—RAE-TE—+tFt+t_A=1+—
HHER - AEBEF TR SEITRG -

a. R=ZZFE—tFRANA AAREER
0.155 7% 7t Bd & & #£1,300,040,000 A% A%
B HERERZEZFERTHRAR
1450%° BR & 2 T B R B F B H
198,484,000 7 7T H H1 50% A {EIT 1518 &
REE - 30%ARREER KX 20% B ES
BEES -

b. R-B—+HFE+A-++H AQFAHE
FWFET M2 5% - Bt - ANARIZER
0.11 7 7T 2 #8 470,000,000 f% FWF j& {7 -
(B 451,700,000787T : M FWFIZER
0.117 7 58E5470,000,000 8 AN A B S
K {Z A 51,700,000 7 T ° 470,000,000
BARBBROGER=_E—tFENAEBE
B REEIT T FWEF °

c. RZZ—EFNANB » NERE TR
B2 66% %1 - #A(E 416,000,000 %
TC - JhiE RIE G AR A 0.108 5 T AL B e %
17148,148,148 RA R BIRMDER - BE
RS2 EEH NI TE34S o

d. R=ZT—tFNANB AEEEEEMS
B %5 A PR A 7 538 90,000,000 7 7T
Ty 38 B % = §%0.10878 JT BE 3% & B 1T
833,333,333 WA AR M E -

e. R=ZT—+tFNLA+=8 A"EEKE
Goodview Assets Limited i # - 1 & A&
150,000,000 7T * T3 JA 2] £ 48,000,000
BT RIZ 7B 0.102 B T B 88 R 31T
1,000,000,000 8% & A & Ik (& K &
102,000,000 78 7T.) fE 1 °
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31. Reserves

The contributed surplus of the Group arose as a result of the
Group reorganisation upon listing of the Company’s shares in
1994, and represented the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the former holding company of the Group
prior to the Group reorganisation and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

In addition, pursuant to special and ordinary resolutions passed
at the special general meeting held on 22 September 2000, the
issued and fully paid share capital of the Company was reduced
by HK$448,992,000 through a reduction in the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company. The credit so arising was
transferred to the contributed surplus.

On 28 July 2005, a capital reorganisation scheme was
approved by the shareholders under a special resolution,
pursuant to which, every 10 shares of HK$0.01 each in the
issued share capital of the Company were consolidated into
one consolidated share of HK$0.10 and every issued
consolidated share was reduced in nominal amount by
cancelling HK$0.09 of the capital paid up for each issued
consolidated share so as to form (after the share consolidation)
one reorganised share of HK$0.01. The credit so arising was
transferred to the contributed surplus.

On 26 March 2013, a capital reorganisation scheme was
approved by the shareholders under a special resolution,
pursuant to which, every 5 shares of HK$0.01 each in the
issued share capital of the Company were consolidated into
one consolidated share of HK$0.05 and every issued
consolidated share was reduced in nominal amount by
cancelling HK$0.04 of the capital paid up for each issued
consolidated share so as to form (after the share consolidation)
one reorganised share of HK$0.01. The credit so arising was
transferred to the contributed surplus.

On 27 February 2015, a capital reorganisation was approved
by the shareholders under a special resolution, pursuant to
which, every 10 shares of HK$0.01 each in the issued share
capital of the Company were consolidated into one
consolidated share of HK$0.10 and every issued consolidated
share was reduced in nominal amount by cancelling HK$0.09
of the capital paid up for each issued consolidated share so as
to form (after the share consolidation) one reorganised share of
HK$0.01. The credit so arising was transferred to the
contributed surplus.

The equity component of convertible bonds arose from the
convertible bonds with the maturity date of 15 November 2010
issued by the Company in 2007, which had been fully
redeemed by the Company upon maturity.

31. f#E&

AEBZEGEKBRE AR A KRMH RV
—hAMFE EmAIET < SBEAR A%
B EARAEE 2 AT A B RO EERA
RAR/RBZER D MBETRN ZEEMZ
HZ 858

AN - RBER —_TEZFAA -+ BB
ZREEFRIARS EATEB 2 BRI R EIRE
R ARRIZBEEITRERBEAEBERA
R R AN 2 EE i Hl 5 448,992,000 7% 7T ©
FtEA 7 EREREEHAG

R-ZEZRF+A -+ N\B  BAREHATE
R — AR BRSO - R - A
RNAIBBITRATFI0OREFREEO.018
TR EMAE—REEO.10E T2 A i
D IBREBEITAHRG ZEES BTN
ZEEITAHIRG 0.098 T 2 BRI ATF LA
B UL EE(RBEDAEFE) —RmEE
0.01 B L2 EEMMMD - At EE 2 RS

RZTE—=F=AZ+RB  BRAEHETE
RIB—IERRIRBRERRAE - R - K
NEDBITRASTE5 REME(E.01ET
ZBRipEHA—REEC.SEITZ A H K
0 MEREBETEHRN ZEESBTHE
BEBTAHIRN 0.04 BT 2 BRIRAE T LA
HUR - IRt E 4 (R & 618 ) —BE(E
0.01 BT Z EEHER - RILES 2 ERE
BEBGAR -

R-ZBE—RF-_A-++H BAZHFZ
R — AR BRI R R AL © R - A
NAIBBITRARFI0OREFREEO.018
TR EMAE—REEO.10E T2 A Hik
7 MEBREZETAFRN ZEEEBEHE
ZEEITAHIRG 0.098 T 2 BRI A T LA
B UL EE(RBERMDAEFE) —RmEE
0.01 BTz EEMMMD - At EE 2R

BRI E 25 1 B2 A 2 AR BB 55 2 i e
MR -_FZTLFHARFRET  HIHA
AK-E—TF+—H+HRA ARFAZRE
HIRF RSB R B R R R fE 5 o
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32. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows
(@ Major non-cash transactions

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

On 9 May 2017, stock dividends were received
from the investments in CMBC Capital with total
market value of HK$57.3 million. This item has no
cash flow impact during the period from 1 April
2017 to 31 December 2017.

The Company and FWF entered into a share swap
agreement, under which the Company subscribed
for 470,000,000 FWF shares at HK$0.11 per share
for a total consideration of HK$51,700,000 and
FWF subscribed for 470,000,000 shares of the
Company at HK$0.11 per share for a total
consideration of HK$51,700,000. 470,000,000
shares of the Company were allotted and issued to
FWF on 4 August 2017. This transaction has no
cash flow impact during the period from 1 April
2017 to 31 December 2017. The Company and
FWF entered into a share swap agreement, under
which the Company swapped 470,000,000 shares
of the Company with 470,000,000 shares of FWF.
These transactions have been completed on 7
August 2017 and have no net cash flow impact
during the period from 1 April 2017 to 31
December 2017.

On 8 September 2017, the Group completed the
acquisition of 66% equity interest of Instant Achieve
for a total consideration of HK$16,000,000, settled
by the allotment and issue of 148,148,148 shares of
the Company. This transaction has no cash flow
impact during the period from 1 April 2017 to 31
December 2017.

On 8 September 2017, the Group repaid the
amount due to Globally Finance Limited of
HK$90,000,000, settled by the allotment and issue
of 833,333,333 shares of the Company. This
transaction has no cash flow impact during the
period from 1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017.

Notes to Financial Statements
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32. MEBRERERMT

(@ EBEXFREXRS
i) M-ZE—tFRANA  KEE
#RE AR S4BT {E 57,300,000 74
Lo R_E—ttFMHA—HEZ
T—+F+-_A=+—HBHMH
HWEBTEHEESREELY

2,
Z

(i) ANRAEEFWFI S B - B
It AARHRERRG 0.1157T
2 8% 470,000,000 % FWF % 17
4 X {8 A&51,700,00078 7T * M
FWFIZ & AR 50118 T R E
470,000,000 i A~ A Al f& 10 42
R{EA51,700,00087C c R-=
—+F/\ AWM A 470,000,000
NN v o S S e
FWFe RZZE—+tFMA—HZE
—E—tF+-_A=+—HIH
M REXZWEHRSREE
HERE o RN T B FWF RS %
W E OB WA QA B
470,000,000 % 74~ A &) f% 19 R #2
470,000,000 Jx FWF R 19 © 2
BERGNZE—tFN\ALHRE
K R-_E—+tFNONA—HEZ
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WEEHB SRS FHREETE -

il R=ZZE—tFNANE ~&E
TR U BB BN E 66% A E - KR (E
/16,000,000 7T + LABD 3 [ 8
77148,148,148 f& A 2 &) B 17
HREM e R=ZT—+FmWA—
BE=Z—+tF+=-A=+—8
IHEAM - RIBR HWEHIB R
EEETE-

ivy RZZE—tFNANE ~&E
BEEMH R B ER A RHIA
90,000,000 7T + LABD 2% & 54T
833,333,333 AR A D 2 FH
NEN R —+tFWMA—H
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32. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows (continued)
Major non-cash transactions (continued)

(@

(b)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

On 13 September 2017, the Group acquired the
equity interest of Goodview Assets Limited for a
consideration of HK$150,000,000, settled by cash
amounting to HK$48,000,000 and by the allotment
and issue of 1,000,000,000 shares of the Company.
The allotment and issue of 1,000,000,000 shares of
the Company has no cash flow impact during the
period from 1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017.

The Group recorded other payables in relation to
additions of property, plant and equipment of
HK$3,462,000. The additions have had no cash
flow impact during the year ended 31 March 2017.

Commission of HK$5,526,000 in relation to the
placing of notes remained unpaid, and the balance
was included in other payables and accruals as at
31 March 2017. This item has no cash flow impact
during the year ended 31 March 2017.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash
flow statement as cash flows from financing activities.

32. RERETRERME (B)
EXFREXRG (H)

(@

(b)
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(v)

(vi)

(vii)

RZZE—tFNA+=0 K&
] I % Goodview Assets Limited
f& # - K & &150,000,000%
7T » LAIR £ 48,000,000 % JT LA &
fid 2% % % 77 1,000,000,000 & 2
DA 2 A REF - RZE
—t+EMA—HE-_ZT—+fF
+-—A=+—H -8 B%X
£ 17 1,000,000,000 f% A8 2 &) f%
DIWEHBCREEETE -

AEEHRBSEBAEDE  BE

4k 2 B Ath 1 5RIA 3,462,000
BT REE-_ZT—+F=A
=t+—HIEFE E@ARAETE

HRERBELTE -

EERE ZE 2 [%5,526,000
BILINAREN RERZE—+
FZA=Z+—Hit AEMENR
He REZE-_ZT—tF=A8
=+—HIEFE - HIBEEWEE

ReneELTE -

MEETHEEREZHIR

TRFANAEEREZSAELAR

288 AERLRENLE

°

BERYFELAGBENASREC KA
BrREREFENAEEGARTR
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32. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows (continued)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

(b)

activities (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
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. REREREBRM T (HF)

(b)

MEETHEEREZHR(E)

Total
liabilities
from
Shareholder Other Bank Notes financing
loan  borrowings borrowings payables activities
METH
BRRER HtffE RITEE BIRE ASE4EH
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FAET FET FAT FET
As at 1 April 2017 R=ZE-—tHFWNA—-H = - - 86,574 86,574
Changes from financing ~ BERSRELS) :
cash flows:
Proceeds from new EEERRITER
unsecured bank loans SR 122,000 525,930 162,000 - 809,930
Repayment of unsecured  {EE EHIFIRITER
bank loans - - (96,056) - (96,056)
Total changes from RMERERNEL LR
financing cash flows 122,000 525,930 65,944 = 713,874
Other changes Hith &5 -
Addition from acquisition  EYEERNTE 2D 7]
of subsidiaries NE - - 404,988 = 404,988
Transfer to disposal group BB EE{EHE 2
held for sales HEH7 = = (139,113) = (139,113)
Total other changes Hih@shaz - - 265,875 - 265,875
As at 31 December 2017 ®R+=A=+—H 122,000 525,930 331,819 86,574 1,066,323
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33. Share Option Schemes

The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the share option schemes include the Company’s
directors, including independent non-executive directors, other
employees of the Group or any invested entity, suppliers of
goods or services to the Group or any invested entity, customers
of the Group or any invested entity, shareholders of the Group
or any invested entity, holders of securities of the Group or any
invested entity and persons or entities that provide research,
development or other technological support to the Group or
any invested entity. A share option scheme became effective on
27 August 2003 and expired on 26 August 2013 (the “2003
Scheme”). A new share option scheme was adopted and
became effective on 27 September 2013 (the “2013 Scheme”).
Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the 2013 Scheme will
remain in force for 10 years from the effective date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted under the
2003 Scheme and the 2013 Scheme (collectively, the “Share
Option Schemes”) is an amount equivalent to 10% of the shares
of the Company in issue as at the dates of approval of the Share
Option Schemes unless approval for refreshing the 10% limit
from the Company’s shareholders has been obtained. The
maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted to each eligible participant
in the Share Option Schemes (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) within any 12-month period is limited
to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Under the Share Option Schemes, share options granted to a
director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates are subject to approval
in advance by the independent non-executive directors. In
addition, any grant of share options to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or
to any of their associates, which would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue and with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000 is subject
to shareholders” approval in advance in a general meeting.

33.

BRESTE

ARRIRILBEETE EESBREREY
AEBERLEBEEEMAER A ER2 A
- BRETEAEREZEERREAR
AEF(BRBILFRTES) AEERE
AMRERRZHEWEE - AEE I
RERRZEMSRGHER  AREHIE
AMRERRZEF » AEESEMIRE
RAZBER - AEBHEMFFRERRZE
HREEARBAEBHEMARE QAR
MEREMBRMIEZEMALRAT - —
EEREAEN T =F \A-_t+tR4E
BAR—FE—=F\A-_FTRAFH(=F
T=FF8 )  —EHFBREFER_-F
—ZFAA-+LRERMALER(=F
—=F5t8)) - BRIERTTBUHRIERT SN - =
T =FF BN AR B BRE T FRERK -

BE—SZ=FFE KT —=F:T8(H
Bh[ZEERETE )  RIOEMEER
R AR 2 AR ¢ AT T 2 = IR D
H B EER I EZSEREE A AT
BEITIRM 2 10% - BIEEAR QB RRE I E
BHE10% 2 ER - IWEA+=—@EAHRK - &
ZEBRIET S A ERBHETERRT
ZREREmM T MR IT 2 &R RHEE (&
FEEITE - B R ARITHEZBRE) T
BEBBAARRBEEITRMNZ 1% E—FK
TR IRE BRERERRERREAS
R o

ZEBBAEERE  ASES  ARFAT
BEHITERRAMFE 2 EMHEA LR
TRREASEIISBIIIFNTESIE -
AN - ER T ARR T BRIRIBILIFH
TEFHRES B2 EABMBEA L 2 BRE
HBHARE D ETRMZ0.1% REEGRE
BREBREE B AR RO BT EE)E
#815,000,0008 7T * WA EHNITEMBE
BEhEERbZERE(BERETE B
B R R ARTTE 2 BB AR ) B B9+ — L A HAR
(BRZELER)RAZALETREEITR
N AZEERERRAE EBUSIRILE -
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33. Share Option Schemes (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share Option
Schemes may be accepted within 28 days from the date of
offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in
total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determined by the directors, save that such period
shall not be more than 10 years from the dates of adoption of
the Share Option Schemes subject to the provisions for early
termination set out in the Share Option Schemes. Unless
otherwise determined by the directors at their sole discretion,
there is no requirement of a minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options granted under the Share
Option Schemes is determined by the directors, but shall not be
less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of
the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share options;
(ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company
on the date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, 896,000,000 share
options were granted under the 2013 Scheme to eligible
participants and remained outstanding as at 31 December 2017
to subscribe for a total of approximately 896,000,000 shares.
The outstanding options granted under the 2013 Scheme shall
continue to be valid and are subject to the provisions of the
2003 Scheme and Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

33.

Notes to Financial Statements
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33. Share Option Schemes (continued) 33. BARRESTEI ()
The following share options were outstanding during the period LWTERENR-_ZT—tFOMA—BE_Z
from 1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017 and year ended 31 —tF+_A=+—HBILHARBE_-Z
March 2017: —tF=A=+T—BILFERRITE :
For the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 December 2017 R-ZZ-—+tHSWNA-BEZ-F—LtHF

tT-A=1t—H1LHHE

2013 Scheme =% — = F 5 & 2003 Scheme — 2% =F 3t &
Weighted Weighted
average exercise Number average exercise Number
price per share of options  price per share of options
ZRmME ZRINE
FHTEE ERERE FHTEE IBRERE

HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BT T4 BT T4
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+FMA—H 0.181 896,000 - -
Granted during the period ~ EiF#% = = =
At 31 December 2017 N-T—+4F

t=A=t+—H 896,000
For the year ended 31 March 2017 BE—_E—+E=-A=+—BILEE
2013 Scheme ZE—=%5& 2003 Scheme Z T T =45l
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price Number  exercise price Number
per share of options per share of options
BRI BRI
FHITEE BREHA FHITEE BREHA
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BTT T BTT T
At 1 April 2016 RZT—REF
MA—H = = = =
Granted during the year A H 0.181 896,000 - -
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—tF
= e = 896,000 -
The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment BREZTEERSEMR - BITAREAR
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in NEIIRAF 2 BRIV H R EE -
the Company’s share capital.
The exercise period of the share options that were outstanding RZBE—tF+-A=+—8  HR{TEE
as at 31 December 2017 is from 20 February 2017 to 19 BiEzTEPR - TE—ttF-_A-+HEC
February 2019. Z—NFE_H+NAHE-

150 China Soft Power Technology Holdings Limited FEIEE h A R EEHER A A



33. Share Option Schemes (continued)

The fair values of the equity-settled share options granted
during the year ended 31 March 2017 were estimated by
Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited, an independent firm
of professionally qualified valuer, using the binomial option
pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. The fair value of the
equity-settled share options granted during the year ended 31
March 2017 was HK$60,600,000. The Group recognised a
share option expense of HK$60,600,000 during the year ended
31 March 2017. The following table lists the inputs to the
model used:

Share options granted 20 February 2017

Dividend yield (%) N/A
Expected volatility (%) 119.42
Historical volatility (%) 119.42
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.047

Expected life of options (year) 2
Share price at grant date (HK$ per share) 0.181

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may
also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
896,000,000 (31 March 2017: 896,000,000) share options
outstanding under the Share Option Schemes, which
represented approximately 7% (31 March 2017: 10%) of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The exercise in full of
the share options would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 896,000,000 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of
HK$8,960,000 and share premium of HK$153,216,000 (before
issue expenses).

33.

Notes to Financial Statements
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B RERHEI (&)

HE_Z—tF-A=Z1+—HILFEREH
BIEEE 2 EBREZ ATEHBYIEELE
BARERTT X ATERAER AU ZER
HEEEER - BB ERE 2GR RIE
HrETHE - BEZZT—tF=A=1+—
HIEFERHRELE ZEBREZAFES
60,600,00087TC - AEEREBEZ—T—tF
A+ HLFEANERBERERX

60,600,000 7T ° N35! H # AZ A BT
2B
BI% R —E—+tF-A=1+H
% B U 25 R (%) i
TERTIXERIE (%) 119.42
FE&F&@%> 119.42
8 T 2K (%) 1.047
%E +%%Hxﬁ§fﬁﬁﬁ(fﬁ> 2
P B EARR(E
(BT =) 0.181

ﬁﬁhf&%&%ri&%%*X@ &
CEZARRBB I —ERERER -

Bz BRRr EE MR AR
B

FEZA

RRELR AR RRZEERETETE
896,000,000 17 AT TEIERIE (=T —LF
_ﬁ F=E ¢ 896000000@) HERAR

AR BEETRGH 7% (ZTE—+F=A
=+—H:10%) - IRBARQ Taw2§$
i %%%&?iﬁf%%ﬂiﬁéﬂ%%§?i896xxxxooo
RREAINA DR EBAG - WS REHDEE
Hﬂh?ﬁtﬁimn 5 513 108,960,000 7 T
. 153,216,000/8 7T °
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34.

152

Business Combination

On 7 April 2017, the Group acquired a 34% equity interest in
Instant Achieve for a cash consideration of HK$7,000,000 and
which was accounted for as an associate of the Group prior to
its acquisition of a further 66% equity interest therein on 8
September 2017 (the “Acquisition Date”). The purchase
consideration of the 66% equity interest in Instant Achieve was
in the form of share issue of 148,148,148 ordinary shares of the
Company approximately at HK$0.108 per share. The
acquisition was made as part of the Group's strategy to expand
on the business opportunities created by the Shanghai-HK Stock
Connect, the Shenzhen-HK Stock Connect and the HK-China
Bond Connect. As a result, the Group’s equity interest in Instant
Achieve increased to 100% and Instant Achieve and its wholly
owned subsidiaries, CWSI and CWF, became the wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Group after the acquisition.

Loss on step acquisition amounting to HK$381,000, being the
difference between the fair value of the Group’s 34% equity
interests in Instant Achieve immediately at the Acquisition Date
of HK$13,077,000 and the carrying value of the Group’s
interest in an associate immediately before the Acquisition Date
of HK$13,458,000 was recognised in the Group’s consolidated
statement of profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations.

34. ¥E6F

MR-ZT—tFMA+LH  RNEBURERE
7,000,000 7 T W i BN 2E 2 34% ARAE - WA
—E—tFNAANB(UWERH]E—PK
BERNE Z 66% RIERTBE ARSI AAEE
—MEE AT - BliEe6% REZEERE
LA IR 49 & BX A% 19 0.108 78 7T 2% 17 KA 2 &
148,148,148 IR E MR 2 R D 3177 A X
o WEBEE T BILEANEBIERESHE
FRBEERRBEFBE R EEMmETT - B
It RUREE S IEE - AL ERBNE 2 R
INZ=100% A K Bz R H KB A R R EE 5
kA EHEENARNEEZ2ENBAR -

o P EX Uk B8 =B T8 2 B3 18 381,000 78 7T (B Uk
BEHE B AEEREEZ34% BEZA
& 13,077,000 7T B2 52 Uk B A BRI A&
Bz — B & N E) 2 BREME 13,458,000 4 7T
ZEBEREBEBBEMBRELERFIGE
BaMRAEBGRESBRRTPER -
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34. XS0 (&)
EE A EEREENKE RS2 ATE

34. Business Combination (continued)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Instant

Achieve Group as at the Acquisition Date were as follows: N
HK$'000 T/& 7T
Property, plant and equipment ES B 1,616
Intangible assets BIVEE 500
Deposits By 2,023
Trade receivables JEWE 5 B8R K 240,431
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR - ke R EMEUGRIE 2,250
Bank balances held on behalf of clients* REPREE ZIRITREF* 268,826
Cash and bank balances e MIRITEHETF 10,836
Deferred tax liabilities RIEMIEAE (147)
Trade payables JERIE 5 BR K (293,446)
Other payables and accruals H T 5RIE R T B (3,198)
Due to Globally Finance Limited** eIt RIS B BR A Rl 2 FRIA (90,000)
Due to Top Billion Finance Limited FERHMEIEB B R A T2 5/I8 (17,000
Bank borrowings RITEE (48,000)
Bank overdrafts RITHEX (35,753)
Tax payables ANEAE] (4,491)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRAFEEZ ISR EEFEER 34,447
Gain on bargain purchase HEBE R (5,370)
Total consideration BRE 29,077
Satisfied by: AT AN
Issuance of consideration shares BITRERND
(148,148,148 @HK$0.108) (148,148,148 % + H%0.108%7T) 16,000
Acquisition date fair value of 34% of equity BliE R 34% A 2 WiE B AT {E
interest in Instant Achieve Group 13,077
29,077
Analysis of net cash outflow in respect of FBEHZRERAFEDN
business combination:
Consideration paid by cash R & X ARE (7,000)
Less: cash and bank balances acquired B BB S RIRTTETE 10,836
Add: bank overdrafts e RITEX (35,753)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalent Re kR BE/EE Znb #58E (31,917)

& Balances represent client trust monies in relation to the securities and
futures dealing business which was not considered as cash and cash

equivalent of the Group upon the acquisition.

o The amount due to Globally Finance Limited was subsequently settled by
the allotment and issue of shares of the Company. Details of the

transactions are included in the note 30(ii)(d).

BIAR -

(-

& BEEAHESFRY
B REERTERGASAEEZREIRESE

EBZBEPETER

= FEfHtE REFTE B R AR 2 FORE IR AR 3 R 31T
KRB 2 RER » RBFHIEHMNHIEE 30i0)
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34.

35.

Business Combination (continued) 34. B ESOE(E)
The gain on bargain purchase is attributable to the Group’s ZEBBERENREAEERREE FHER
bargaining power and ability in negotiating the agreed terms of S BEBRRRRZEERED
the transaction with the vendor.
Since the acquisition, Instant Achieve Group contributed BIWELUR RBEE2-_ZFE—+F+=HA
HK$38,965,000 to the Group’s consolidated revenue and a =+—HILHRE - EERRAEEEZA K
profit of HK$18,639,000 to the Group’s consolidated profit for = B8 38,965,000/ 7T © WRIAEBLRE H
the period ended 31 December 2017. A EENEF 18,639,000 87T °
Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the HEFRETETT REBEE-E—tF+=
period, Instant Achieve Group could contribute A=+—BILHM  BESERAEELRE
HK$64,276,000 to the Group’s consolidated revenue and a W BB 64,276,000/8 7T » WAAEELRE
profit of HK$26,698,000 to the Group’s consolidated profit for i A B B a A 26,698,000 7% TT °
the period ended 31 December 2017.
Disposal of Subsidiaries 35. HEKERT
During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group disposed of HE-_Z—tF=A=1T—HILFE  £&
(i) its entire interest in PLD Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned BORELEERXRBEZEEAZBEATHE
subsidiary of the Group, to a related company wholly owned 75 & B 2 & [ )8 72 &) PLD Holdings Limited
by the father of Mr. Wei for a cash consideration of US$11.3 I - IR RE A 11,300,000 7T (49
million (approximately HK$87.7 million); and (ii) its entire 87,700,000 7C) : R(REXEEETEE
interest in CSPT Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary HEZHEARHEAEBEZENE R A
of the Group, to a related company wholly-owned by the step- CSPT Holdings Limited & &g - I]REMRE
mother of Mr. Wei for a cash consideration of US$10.5 million #10,500,000 37T (47 81,900,000 8 7T) °
(approximately HK$81.9 million).

HK$’000 T 7T
Net assets disposed of: BHEFEE:
Cash and bank balances W& RIRTTHETRF 1,141
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEIFRIE ~ e R EH AL EKGIE 153,220
Other payables and accruals Hth e 5RIB R e E R (1,163)
Net assets disposed of EHEFEE 153,198
Release of exchange fluctuation reserve ElER e 881
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB ARz Wz 15,566

169,645

Satisfied by: AT AN
Cash He 169,645
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35.

36.

Disposal of Subsidiaries (continued)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
RS ER R MY 5

31 December 2017 —E—+F+=fA=+—H

5. HEMBLQR (F)

ERLENBAR RS MNREFEHEAR
NEFRZ DM

HK$’000 T 7T

Cash consideration ReRE 169,645
Cash and bank balances disposed of BEHERE RRITERT (1,141)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents FHAHEWNBEARcRe RIR®

in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries FEBEAMRAFE 168,504

Operating Lease Arrangements

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (notes 11 and 14 to
the consolidated financial statements) under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms of 1 year. The
terms of the leases generally also require the tenants to pay
security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with
its tenants falling due as follows:

36. KEHELH

EHEBEA

AEERBEEHELTHHEEREYME(R
FEPBBRMT1TR14)  BEEHRY
—F - MEGRRIT—REBRBEP A RER
T WRBERRITIREHEHESRHE -

R-ZZE—+F+-A=1+—H  KEERE
THREEEHER T HE 2 BRAR 2
RESKEHEEHEEZENT ¢

31 December 2017 31 March 2017
—E—tF —E—+F
+=A=+-H ZA=+—A
HK$’000 T/57t BEsLCH VR w:Pv

Within one year —FR

In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_HFEZERF(BREEEWSE)

After five years HE1&

5,400 -
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31 December 2017 —E—t&F+=-A=+—H

36. Operating Lease Arrangements (continued)

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its properties under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms
ranging from one to three years (31 March 2017: one to three

years).

At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling

due as follows:

36. REHELH(E)
EREHEA

EHEENZ@BENT

31 December 2017
—E—tHF
+=—A=+—AH
HK$’000 T3& 7T

ARBBREEEERFEELETIE -
BEMRBORM—FE=F(ZB—LF=
A=+—A8:—%=%).

RZZE—+F+_A=+—8 FAEERE
AL S ER T 5 MRE R 2 R

31 March 2017
—E—tF
=A=+—H
HK$’000 T 7T

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive
After five years

—FR 15,898
F_EEERF(BIEERMT) 21,593
hF®% -

12,125
19,003

37,491

31,128

37. Commitments

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note
36 above, the Group had the following capital commitments at

the end of the reporting period:

37. E&iE

31 December 2017
—E—tF
+=B=+-8

HK$’000 T8 T

B b SCH E 36 it AR & RS ARSI
R AEBBATEAASE :

31 March 2017
—T—+F
=A=+—H
HK$’000 T 7T

Contracted, but not provided for:
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

ERIAVMEAREES -
BM - KERER

853
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with certain related parties during the period:

Notes to Financial Statements
RS ER R MY 5

31 December 2017 —E—+F+=fA=+—H

38. BEALRS
(@ BARBISMEEMIBHHAERT RS
o REBRAABEEU FTEETEH

BALTZRS

For the
period from For the
1 April 2017 to year ended
31 December 2017 31 March 2017

Notes R=B—+&
MA—HB=E Bz
—E—tF —T—tF
+=B=+—H ER=T—E
LR EFE

HK$’000 F3& T

HK$’000 T 7T

Interest income from REMEZERZ
loans to directors SN PN
Interest income on margin REEFHTESLER

RHZRETHELZ
LS A

financing from directors arising
from securities dealing
transactions

Commission income received
from directors arising from
securities dealing transactions

WREZETESRES
RHZMEWRA

2,452 961

(ii)

Note:

(i) Interest income was charged on a loans to directors at a rate
ranged from 5% to 12% per annum on the principal amount.

(i) Commission income and interest income on margin financing
received from directors which arose from securities dealing
transactions were charged based on mutually agreed terms with
reference to the prices and conditions similar to those offered to
other customers of the Group.

The related party transactions above also constituted
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

The Group considers the directors of the Company to be
the key management personnel, whose compensation has
been disclosed in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Outstanding balances with related parties:

Details of the balances with the Company’s directors as at
31 December 2017 and 31 March 2017 are included in
note 19, 20, 24 and 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(i) FEBWATREEERERE  BASEN
EFNENTF 5% = 12% ULER ©

(i) WHEBETEFEEIHZHSBAR
RBELBEF B AR E 5 K 3R K
- WiESERASEEMESREZH
1B KRG -

EFRBBEALRZTER ETWRRNE
UABMAEZHERS -

by AEEIEZEBEABZHME

AEBERBARANESTHATEERE
AB BRATZEERGEMER
RUFE8HE -

(© HEEEALZREESR

AR -_ZE—tF+_A=+—HEK
TE—tHF-A=+—HEAQRAE
BB FBRNRERE WIS REN
5519202426 ¢
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31 December 2017 —Z—+&F+=A=+—H

39. Financial Instruments by Category 39. 7 EERTI A
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial FRSRMIANBERARZERENT :
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
31 December 2017 —E2—+tH&+=-A=+—H
Financial assets EREE
Available-
for-sale
Held for Loans and financial
trading receivables assets Total
EXK AftHE
KEEE FEW R THEE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THERT
Available-for-sale equity A ERARE
investments 1,710,695 1,710,695
Equity investments at fair FRBRENTE
value through profit or loss 518k 2 R A E 560,368 - 560,368
Loan receivables EWER = 476,765 476,765
Trade receivables B E 5 F0E - 391,219 391,219

Financial assets included in &t ATERFIE - BE R
prepayments, deposits and Hip IRz

other receivables CREE 27,798 27,798
Cash and bank balances e RBITET 123,387 123,387
Bank balances held on REFHEZRITET

behalf of clients - 90,624 - 90,624

560,368 1,109,793 1,710,695 3,380,856
Financial liabilities cEas
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
TR 4 57 B A 51 B
ZE@mas
HK$’000
TET
Trade payables B BRI 208,078
Financial liabilities included in other StAHMEMNZEREFER SRAE

payables and accruals 22,378
Notes payable ARESE 86,574
Shareholder loan RERE K 122,000
Other borrowings HpfEE 525,930
Bank borrowings RITEE 331,819
Bank overdrafts RITEX 59,494

1,365,273
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31 December 2017 —Z—+&F+=-HA=+—H

39. Financial Instruments by Category 39. 7EERMIA (&)
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ERCRTARBRERRZEREENT : (8)

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
(continued)

31 March 2017 —2—+F=H=+—H
Financial assets TREE
Financial
assets at fair Available-
value through for-sale
profit or loss — Loans and financial
held for trading receivables assets Total
BRBEE
NFHENRZ
BIEEE BERK AEHE
TREE JEARIR TREE e
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAET TAET TET THET
Available-for-sale equity A ERARE
investments - - 1,121,372 1,121,372
Equity investments at fair BRBERENTEIRZ
value through profit or loss BAZE 49,500 - - 49,500
Loan receivables JEWE TR = 180,656 = 180,656
Loans to directors MEZEER = 31,900 = 31,900

Financial assets included in STATENTIE  BE R
prepayments, deposits and Hih a2

other receivables CREE = 3,582 = 3,582
Cash and bank balances RERBTER = 4,045 = 4,045
49,500 220,183 1,121,372 1,391,055

Financial liabilities SRBaE

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

3 IR

SRz TR A S

HK$'000

THETT

Trade payables FERT B RN 502
Financial liabilities included in other ATAEMENFEREAERA 2 SRAE

payables and accruals 21,796

Notes payable e Ri% 86,574

108,872
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31 December 2017 —Z—+&F+=A=+—H

40. Offsetting of Financial Instruments 40. EETHMTR
The Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off AREE IR A G AR B 1T HE R 55 e Uk & e
receivable and payable with Hong Kong Securities Clearing NEBFREEERAG([BEBEE]) KA
Company Limited (“HKSCC”) and Hong Kong Futures Exchange BREREMBERARI(THEAERF]Z
Clearing Corporation Limited (“HKCC”); and the Group intends I MAEESIZFREE R ENS
to settle on a net basis as trade receivables from or trade BEERBEREENRIZE SRR

payables to HKSCC and HKCC.

In presenting the amounts due from/to the clearing houses, the RE2FIEY BN EEMRIER AEEE
Group has offset the gross amount of the trade receivables from BREMEEMZESRFTEREIRERNESR
and the gross amount of the trade payables to the clearing Pz B SENERE - DEHESEFHEIITR
houses. The amounts offset and the net balances are shown as N

follows:

Gross amount Amount offset Net amount
e EikEeE FEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET F#ET

31 December 2017

Amount of trade receivables & |4 ;
from the clearing houses 500,404 (488,601)

Gross amount Amount offset Net amount
4 2REEE R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FHET

31 December 2017

Amount of trade payables EAT4 5
to the clearing houses 488,601 (488,601)
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41. Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and bank
balances, loan receivables, trade receivables, trade payables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals and shareholder loan approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The Group’s finance department is responsible for determining
the policies and procedures for the fair value measurement of
financial instruments. The finance manager reports directly to
the financial controller and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the finance department analyses the movements
in the values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the financial controller. The valuation process and
results are discussed with the audit committee twice a year for
interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair value of the notes payable has been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities, which approximate to their carrying
amounts.

The fair values of listed available-for-sale equity investments
and equity investments at fair value through profit or loss are
based on quoted market prices.

41.

Notes to Financial Statements
TG ERER M

31 December 2017 —Z—+&F+=-HA=+—H

EMTERNFEER

MRS RRITET  ERER  EKES
BRFK - [ E SR S ABEMRA - e
REMEUHEZ SRAE - 3T AL
FOAREFH B A SR E BN RRRERA
SREMNIE  RERERARSTAR
TEEHRAEERE -

AEEREMPEEEE BT AN FER
ERRNERF BRELEERAMBEER
BERREQER - NSHREAH - BEM
e TABE 2 REERETHE
AHNERHABE - HEHMBRERMER
ok - BRZ R e GERERERNTH
REEFBREGFIRMR ©

SRAERAEHATENZTARARR
575 (MR BHE) B AR T
XBEEAR - THERBRTBREHR
AT

FENRIBH QAT E B T ARBEUE
FAEOAE - EERBREGTEHEFR
BEHIARKREREMTE - HEAREER

++

Eo

FERBERATFEARN Em Al HERA
KRERBARE 2 R HERTISREMETE °
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31 December 2017 —Z—+&F+=A=+—H

41. Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments 41. €@ T E ATV EERK (&)

(continued)

Fair value hierarchy AFEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRIRAEBESCHTANAFEFERE
hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments: -

Assets measured at fair value: BN FlEF B EE

As at 31 December 2017 R=-Z—t&+=-A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

ERUATEBEfiE2 A FEFE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets input inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
RER BATEE BEXTTEE
TiEHRE (PN ¢ WSS

(B—E&) (FZBR) (F=BR) E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET FET FET
Available-for-sale equity A SRR E
investments 1,710,695 1,710,596
Equity investments at fair ~ FEBIBHIZATE
value through profit or loss ~ ZIJiR Z f& A% & 560,368 560,368
2,271,063 2,271,063
As at 31 March 2017 R-ZE—+t$=A=+—H

Fair value measurement using
ERANATIEEMtEZ A FERE
Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets input inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

KGR BEAUER EXTAIER
[ BABUR BABUR

(B—EH) (EFEZER) (F=ZER) #Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TAET TET TET TET
Available-for-sale equity AR ERAREE
investments 1,121,372 - - 1,121,372
Equity investments at fair ~ FEBIBHIZATFE
value through profit or loss 78R Z f& A% & 49,500 - - 49,500
1,170,872 - - 1,170,872
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41.

42.

Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments
(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the period, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 (31 March 2017:
Nil).

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 31 December 2017 and 31 March 2017.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise equity
investments and cash and bank balances. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables, loan receivables, trade
payables, notes payable, other borrowings, bank borrowings
and shareholder loan. Details of the major financial instruments
and the Group’s accounting policies in relation to them are
disclosed in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

The main risks arising from the Group'’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and equity price risk. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from dealings in securities which are settled in
currencies other than the Company’s functional currency and
holding of bank balances in foreign currency. As at 31
December 2017, bank balances of RMB4,381,000 (31 March
2017: RMB78,400) and US$270,000 (31 March 2017: Nil)
were held by the Group. As the HK$ is pegged to the US$, the
Group considers the risk of movements in exchange rates
between the HK$ and the US$ to be insignificant.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to reasonably possible changes in the RMB
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Company’s profit before tax and the Company’s equity.

41.

42.

Notes to Financial Statements
B Al R 5

31 December 2017 —Z—+&F+=-HA=+—H

EMTANFEERGE)

DFEER (&)
HIR > YES-EREE _ERRNATE
AEEB(CTtF=A=t—B8 8-

AEBR-_ZT—tF+-_A=+—AHK=Z
—+E=A=1t—RVETAIEAFEFE
ZEmams-

MBRREEEERBE

AEEZFEBSRMT ABERANEE KR
SRIRITHET HEESHMIAEFEEERAAR
EECEEEEES - AREHREEMLTR
ZEMEENRAE  WEWEZERN - B
B - EBNEZIER BNEE - H4E
B -BOEEERRREER - T2/ T AR
REBHZELRIT A ZHBE S ERFRE
RIS RR M E2.4 5 -

AEBZeRMTAMEL 2 T 2RBR/INE
Rk - MEER - EERR  RBESER
EEABREAR EFgCRALABLSE
R EEER - AT -

SN R B
AEBEIRZGELER - BRERKE A
AABNEEEE AN EBEE 2 EHR S
LARASNE SR 2 RITHTF - R_ZT—+tF
+ZA=+—H8 ' 2EEFRERTEFEAR
#4381,00C(ZE—+F=A=+—8 :
AR 78,4007T) & 270,0005 L (ZT—+
FZAZ=Z+—H: ) AR BoHEETH
9 AEBRBBILRETLZEREEHEK
E e

TEHBEFARMSRERTE KRS
HRARBER Y A0 LBBH AL TG
B A2 A2 RS 2 B o
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42. Financial Risk Management Objectives and  42. B EBEE R EREE (&)
Policies (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued) S LB ()
(Decrease)/ Increase/
increase in (decrease) Increase/
exchange in profit before (decrease)
rate tax in equity*
E=x BRBL AT R B
(TER), L7 210,/ (L) 2, (R *
% HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET
31 December 2017 RZZE—tF
+=ZA=+—H
If the Hong Kong dollar ST AR KE A
weakens against the RMB
If the Hong Kong dollar WE TR AREHE

strengthens against the RMB

31 March 2017 RZZ—+tF
=A=+—"H
If the Hong Kong dollar BT ARBEZE
weakens against the RMB (5) 5 -
If the Hong Kong dollar BT ARBHE
strengthens against the RMB 5 (5) -
* Excluding retained profits 3 TEERB S
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42. Financial Risk Management Objectivesand 42, BIEEBREEBERBTE (&)
Policies (continued)

Interest rate risk 2= 3 B
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market ARG M ST ERREE MmEAS 2 AR E
interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s borrowings ZEARNGHDEBFI R B ZEERRA -

with a floating interest rate.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably TR E A H i B S S RINRE
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held AR ER - A RSB geEFHEAER
constant and before any impact on tax, of the Company’s profit MR aMN CREE IFEEEZHE) RARD
before tax (through the impact on floating rate borrowings) and AR T B L BURRE o

the Company’s equity.

31 December 2017 31 March 2017
R-E-t&+=-A=+-H RZE—+F=A=1+—H
(Decrease)/ Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ Tl (1t (decrease) in (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in'profit™increase in® R EHHMINS in profit (decrease) in
basis points  before tax equity Maturity  before tax equity
EH  BRBAER B 2H RHANEA Em
gm/ B/ B/ &/ &/ &/
(F4) 1 1 (R 2) CR2) CA2)
HK$/000 HK$/000" HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR FET FET
Hong Kong dollar BT (1,916) - 100 - -
Hong Kong dollar BT 1,916 - (100) - -
@ Exclude retained profits * TRERE &N
The Company’s policy to manage its cash flow interest rate risk ARAERERERENXAR ZBEREE
is to minimise the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings FREARR DI RGF B ZETEEE -

which bore interest at floating rates.
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42. Financial Risk Management Objectives and  42. BIEEMBEE B ERBUEE (&)
Policies (continued)
Credit risk EERE
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third AEBERZERLREBNEZE=HE
parties. It is the Company’s policy that all customers who wish IR - HBAEBE ZBER - FTERIEEE
to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification HETRX G 7BV AR BEZERERF
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored by % AAEE o ko BB EIRIPIEISE
the risk management department on an ongoing basis and the ECPR E AR AE BRI ﬁﬁzlx%lzaﬂﬁﬂ[ﬂﬁ
Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant. The Company PNER - RRBWEEASEFER - T/HER
has no significant concentration risk in view of the fact that the RRGEKE S HIRELEZTREFER -
Company’s trade receivables relates to a large number of
diversified customers.
Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to ERARAEBRERE SREMAEEZER
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note o2 — T BLBBNMBERRME19H
19 to the financial statements. = o
The credit risk of the Company’s other financial assets, which AEFBEMEREE(EThEFERES &ﬂ?{’_
comprise cash and bank balances and accounts and other EFEUARBEREEMERRIA) 2EER
receivables, arises from default of the counterparty, with a BARGHHERMNRTES » B J:KE*H”"EA
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these ZETAZRMEE -
instruments.
Liquidity risk REE
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a AEBFALSEERDECHRE TAEESE
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the SRRER HWETHAZEERMIARS
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets BB E (FInEWE ZRR R ERER) 25
(e.g., trade receivables and loan receivables) and projected HANMEAREEMESZEERE °
cash flows from operations.
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between REBEBRERERERASE 2 AIBA
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of the HERE FTRAKSE  RESSFEMENR
Group's available cash and its listed equity investments. Bl T -
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42. Financial Risk Management Objectives and  42. BB EBREEREREE (&)
Policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) TEE SR ()
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the REBRBRITNATRMNZROTESHEE
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual PSR 2 BB T
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
31 December 2017 —E2—+H&+=-A=+—H
On demand
or within T1to5 Over 5
1 year years years Total
RERH
R—FR —ZERF AFUE e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET FTHET T
Trade payables JERHE SRR 208,078 - - 208,078
Financial liabilities included &F A E A (3R &
in other payables and EAtEBERAZ /AR
accruals 22,378 - - 22,378
Notes payable ANESS7 3,684 18,420 92,201 114,305
Shareholder loan RERE R 122,000 - - 122,000
Other borrowings HiEE 544,623 — — 544,623
Bank borrowings RITEE 174,067 51,904 157,673 383,644
Bank overdrafts RITEX 59,494 - - 59,494
1,134,324 70,324 249,874 1,454,522
31 March 2017 —F—+tF=A=1+—H
On demand
or within 1to5 Over 5
1 year years years Total
R—%FR —ZERF AFEMNE Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THTT THETT T THT
Trade payables FEHE SRR 502 - - 502
Financial liabilities included &+ A £ f& 1~ 7178 K2
in other payables and EErERZ
accruals CA =N} 21,796 = = 21,796
Notes payable ENZEE 3,583 14,736 99,569 117,888
25,881 14,736 99,569 140,186
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42. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the value of
individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk
arising from individual equity investments classified as trading
equity investments (note 17) and available-for-sale investments
(note 16) as at 31 December 2017. The Group’s listed
investments are listed on the Hong Kong stock exchanges and
are valued at quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5%
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all
other variables held constant and before any impact on tax,
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting
period. For the purpose of this analysis, for the available-for-
sale equity investments the impact is deemed to be on the
available-for-sale equity investment revaluation reserve and no
account is given for factors such as impairment which might
impact on the statement of profit or loss.

42. BEERESEEERBEKR(E)

IRAE 4% E R

BB R R R ERE S 2 BELRED
SBRABHAFETHRZAR R-_F—t
FH-A=1+—8 *KEAZADER/R
ZEBIBAKRE (ME17) RAIHEERE
(MtEE16) 2 BRI R AR E M E £ 2 BAE
RER - AEBEZ ETREEEEESFRD
P LT WRBEHRABRHEM-E -

TRETRERSMRZREE  RAKRE
2R FAE 5% B E) 1 A E B B 15 T
WA Z E AR ERZBRE - LA
s HAHREERAREZZERER
HAIRHERAREEGLRBITE BT
WEEERESAETERRRIEE -

Carrying amount  Change in the  Change in the

31 December 2017 =F—tH+=A=t+—-H
Investments listed in: RTISHEZIKRE -

Hong Kong — Available-for-sale & — A[ftH &

Hong Kong — Held-for-trading &% — #EE&

* Excluding accumulated losses
31 March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H
Investments listed in: RTFNEEZKRE

Hong Kong — Available-for-sale &% — Al &
Hong Kong — Held-for-trading &% — #EE =

of equity Group’s loss Group’s
investments before tax equity*
BRAERE AEBERRBA &
AREE BIEZE BESE~

HK$’000 T3 7T HK$'000 /&7t HK$'000 T3 7T

1,710,695
560,368
* TRERFER
1,121,372 - 56,069
49,500 2,475 =

* Excluding accumulated losses

* TRERFER
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42. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the period from 1
April 2017 to 31 December 2017 and year ended 31 March
2017.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity
ratio calculated as total debt divided by total equity. The debt-
to-equity ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as
follows:

42.
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AR

31 December 2017 —E—+F&+=-A=+—H
MEREEEEERBUR (&)
EXER

AEBEEAERZ T RBBRRRENEERE
HELBERERRENEARLLE  UXHFHE
EBA BIREREAEE -

AEBEEREEARRE  WRBKEIRIN
B RABEEZRRFAMELRHE - X
SE AL REIRN TRRMAKE - MERRER
BEARARBITHR MEBHABREARR
B-R-_FT—tFHA-BE_ZFT—+F
ToA=+—HALBRARBE_FT—tF=
A=Z+—RLEE ~5EEEEARNH
3 BRARFUBELZD -

AEBIABEE R X (RERAERE N
REBEE) CEEEREER - RBE
HIR 2 (BIRERERLRIMT

31 March 2017

31 December 2017

—E—+tF T —+F

+=—HA=+—H =HA=+—~H

HK$’000 T8t EEELCHVIED::-

Notes payable e EIE 86,574 86,574
Shareholder loan REER 122,000 =
Other borrowings HfEE 525,930 -
Bank borrowings ﬁﬁﬁfﬁg 331,819 -
Bank overdrafts RITHEL 59,494 =
Total debt fEIEEEE 1,125,817 86,574
Total equity MR ARER 2,723,904 1,315,579
Debt-to-equity ratio BIRH L& 41.3% 6.6%

The significant increase in debt-to-equity ratio was mainly due
to the drawdown of additional borrowings of approximately
HK$1,039.2 million (31 March 2017: Nil). The additional
borrowings was used for the acquisition of property, expansion
of money lending business, investment in securities and
development of brokerage and commission business.

B IR H #E e bb R A MR _E FH £ B R R BB S
BE#91,039,200,0008 L (—E—+F=H
=+—8: &) FIMEEREKREDME -
BAREER REEBHIURERLL LA
SHET o
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43. Statement of Financial Position of the

Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the

. DT Z B AR R
RBEHFR - FRARARBRRR 2 AR

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: T:
31 December 2017 31 March 2017
—E—+tF T —+4F
t=A=+-8 =A=t+—H
HK$’000 TET EEEIEHE w7
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E N 3,246 3,465
Investments in subsidiaries REBRARZIEE 109,459 =
Deposits %e 7,763 27,947
Total non-current assets FRBEEMAE 120,468 31,412
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Due from subsidiaries FEU B A 2,905,011 1,267,541
Prepayments, deposits and FAfTRIA 'ﬂz%&ﬁ@ﬁgﬂk RIA
other receivables 1,161 971
Cash and bank balances R4 RIRTTETE 17,409 2,537
Total current assets BB EAE 2,923,581 1,271,049
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals H it e IR M=t & 14,251 18,916
Due to subsidiaries FERTH B A B 5I8 30,251 22,608
Shareholder loan BREER 122,000 =
Other borrowings HiEE 351,000 -
Total current liabilities mEAEERE 517,502 41,524
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEZRE 2,406,079 1,229,525
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRBER
LIABILITIES 2,526,547 1,260,937
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FRBEE
Notes payable ENERE 86,574 86,574
Net assets FEE 2,439,973 1,174,363
EQUITY fEx
Share capital %N 127,167 89,651
Reserves EE 2,312,806 1,084,712
Total equity e B RE 2,439,973 1,174,363
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43. Statement of Financial Position of the 43. ARTF 2 BBERRE (E)
Company (continued)
Note: MisE -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARIRBERENAT
Equity
component
Share Share of
premium  Contributed Capital option  convertible Accumulated
account surplus reserve reserve bonds losses Total
RRES
R 7% E R BAEBR BARE BRERE ZBEEH RitEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET TET TET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2016 RZZE—A"FMA—H 4,043,864 675,671 556 - 47,257 (4,056,368) 710,980
Profit and total comprehensive ARG EaF| K2 E R ELE
income for the year - - - - - 286,175 286,175
Equity-settled share option R 2 A bk
arrangements, net FE = = = 60,600 = - 60,600
Bonus warrants exercised FIFE AT B E 26,957 - - - - - 26,957
At31 March 2017 and RZZ—tF=A=1+—H
1 April 2017 k=Z—+FMA—H 4,070,821 675,671 556 60,600 47,257 (3,770,193) 1,084,712
Profit and total comprehensive G EEF| & 2 M LEE
income for the period - - - - - 807,426 807,426
Issue of new shares, BITHMRA - MRFAXER
net of expenses 420,668 = = = = = 420,668
At31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+-—A=+—H 4,491,489 675,671 556 60,600 47,257 (2,962,767) 2,312,806

The profit of HK$807,426,000 for the period ended 31 December 2017 included
write-back of due from subsidiaries of the Company of HK$812,653,000.

The profit of HK$286,175,000 for the year ended 31 March 2017 included write-
back of due from subsidiaries of the Company of HK$348,772,000.

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a result of the capital
reorganisation referred to in note 31 and represented the excess of the then
combined net assets of the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

In addition, the capital reorganisation described in note 31 also resulted in an
aggregate credit balance of approximately HK$631,982,000 (31 March 2017:
HK$631,982,000) being transferred to the Company’s contributed surplus.

BE-_Z—+tE+_A=+—BLHPHEZHF
807,426,000 7T 2 1E # [0 fE W AR 2 B i /B 2 B 5K 1B
812,653,000/5 7T °

BE-_T—+tF=A=1T—HILFE 27T 286,175,000
785 7T B4 185 [B1 FE LR A R B BB 2 R]3K38348,772,00078 7T ©

AEBZ BEYRHRAME PR 2 EXREHE - THiEFT
WHKHBARER & HEEFERRRAIRRAZS
BEMBITROZEEBL 28 -

BESN - BEEE31 Bl 2 R AN EE 40 TR B A ££47631,982,000
B (ZE—+tF=A=+—H :631,982,000/87T) 2 #
RSB E NN R 2 B A% -
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44.

45.

172

Events after the Reporting Period

On 29 December 2017, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Wise Victory Group Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of FWF, pursuant to
which the Group agreed to dispose of its entire equity interest
in Goodview Assets Limited and a shareholder loan due by the
Goodview Assets Limited to the Group of approximately
HK$43.7 million for a total consideration of HK$260 million
which shall be settled by the allotment and issue of
1,793,103,448 FWF shares, subject to the fulfilment of certain
conditions.

On 16 March 2018, the Group entered into a supplemental
agreement with Wise Victory Group Limited, pursuant to which
the Vendor and the Purchaser agreed to extend the Long Stop
Date from 30 April 2018 to 31 May 2018.

On 21 March 2018, the Group issued a circular in respect of
the major transactions on the proposed disposal of Goodview
Assets Limited (the “Proposed Disposal”) and the proposed
acquisitions of 1,793,103,448 shares of FWF (the “Proposed
Acquisition”). A special general meeting will be held on 13
April 2018 for shareholders’” approval on the Proposed Disposal
and the Proposed Acquisition.

Details refer to note 11 to the financial statements and the
Group’s announcements dated 29 December 2017 and 21
March 2018, and circular dated 21 March 2018.

Approval of the Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 23 March 2018.

4.

45.

HREHREE
RZZE—tF+-_A=-+ B A5EEH
Wise Victory Group Limited (7 2 & 4 B
BEMk 2 BIR AT AFWF 2 2B K
BRARFZEEWZ Bt - AEBRE
& E 7 Goodview Assets Limited 2 & 3FA%
# &% Goodview Assets Limited 45 /R AN [E
B& R & X £943,700,0007 7T - BRE R
260,000,000 7T © #% % @ B B & B 17
1,793,103,448 RFWF IR fp B+ - AR E
FARHEEX BT EER -

RZZE-NF=A+XB  ~EEHEWise
Victory Group Limited 5] 3/ 1 78 13 & & 1%
b BEARERRE#REEIEEBHA-T
—NEFNA=THERZE=_Z—/\FHA
=+—H-

R-EBE—N\F=ZA=-+—H KNEBEFE—
15 B B 2 & 1 & Goodview Assets Limited
(MEZEHESE]) KEHEWAE,793,103,448
RIWFIRD (2B RESE)D) 2 XERH
2B ARRBR - N\FWUNA+=H
BITRFFR AR AR R EERLES
HEREFEREEIE -

HEE2HUERRM T ITARAEERH
HE—ZT—+tF+-_A-F+NBE=ZZ—N
F=A-t+—BZRAERBHA=ZT—N\F
—A-t+—BZ#K-

MR 2 f
MEBRREN T \FZA-+=BKE
FRHER T -
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